
 

 

 
 

  

   
 
 

AGENDA 
 

STUDY SESSION 5:30 p.m. 
 

Please silence all electronic devices, as a courtesy to those in attendance.   Thank you. 
 

1. Public Comment 

If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under “Public 
Comment.”  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to 
five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the speaker's 
microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 

2. Discussion – Water Conservation 

3. Closed Session Public Comment 

If you wish to comment on an item which is to be considered during Closed Session, you are invited to 
do so at this time.  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are 
limited to five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the 
speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 

4. Adjourn to City Council Closed Session 
 Conference with Labor Negotiator, Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 

Agency Negotiator:  Susan Wells 
Employee Organization:  General Association of Service Employees 

 Conference with Legal Counsel, Anticipated Litigation, Significant Exposure to Litigation 
Pursuant to Paragraph (2) of Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 
Cases – Two (Ed Martin claim and Jeff Briltz claim) 

5. Adjourn to Regular Meeting of the City Council 
 
 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL – 7:30 p.m. 
 

Please silence all electronic devices, as a courtesy to those in attendance.   Thank you. 
 

1. Call to Order:       A. Pledge of Allegiance          B.  Invocation 

2. Public Comment 

If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under “Public 
Comment.”  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to 
five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the speaker’s 
microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 

Items for Council Consideration and Action 
 

3. Consent Calendar 

All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one 
motion.  For discussion of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the 
request of any member of the City Council or any person in the audience.  

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
COUNCIL CHAMBER 

429 “C” STREET 
March 4, 2014 



 

 

A. Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – February 18, 2014 
B. Approval – Warrant Register 13-14 – February 28, 2014 
C. Approval – CIP Budget Amendment – North Water Tank and Fencing at Cinnamon 

Municipal Complex (CMC) 

4. Presentation – Lemoore Police Department - 2013 Annual Report 

5. Report and Recommendation – Appointment - Kings Mosquito Abatement District Appointment 

6. Report and Recommendation – Reclamite Street Project Bid 2014 

7. Report and Recommendation – Local Transportation Fund Share – Resolution 2014-06 

8. Department / City Manager Reports 

9. City Council Reports and Requests for Information 

10. Closed Session Public Comment 

If you wish to comment on an item which is to be considered during Closed Session, you are invited to 
do so at this time.  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are 
limited to five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the 
speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 

11. Adjourn to City Council Closed Session 
 Conference with Labor Negotiator, Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 

Agency Negotiator:  Susan Wells 
Employee Organization:  General Association of Service Employees 

 Conference with Legal Counsel, Anticipated Litigation, Significant Exposure to Litigation 
Pursuant to Paragraph (2) of Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 
Cases – Two (Ed Martin claim and Jeff Briltz claim) 

12. Adjournment 
 

TENTATIVE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

March 18th 
Sewer Rate Increase for Industrial Use Only (Wlaschin) 
PFMD/LLMD Bid Award (Wlaschin) 
Certificate of Acceptance / Resolution 2014-XX – Government Purpose Properties (Holwell) 
Street Closure – Farmers Market (Holwell) 
Gary Burrow Update (Holwell) 
Bid Award - Depot Paint Project (Simonson) 
Audit (Silva) 
CDBG Application (Holwell) 
 
 
Notice of ADA Compliance:  If you or anyone in your party needs reasonable accommodation to attend, or 
participate in, any City Council Meeting, please make arrangements by contacting City Hall at least 24 hours 
prior to the meeting by calling 924-6700, or by mail at 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, California 93245. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be 
made available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, 
CA during normal business hours.  In addition, most documents will be posted on the City’s website at 
www.lemoore.com. 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
I, Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore, do hereby declare that the foregoing agenda for the 
Lemoore City Council regular meeting of Tuesday, March 4, 2014 was posted on the outside bulletin board 
located at City Hall, 119 Fox Street in accordance with applicable legal requirements on the 28th day of February 
2014. 

                  
       Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk  



                                        
WELCOME TO YOUR LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

 

Whether you are attending this meeting because of general interest, or because a particular item of special interest is to be 
reviewed, your presence is an important means of helping to insure an informed public and responsible City Government. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
City Council, the legislative body of the City, is composed of five Councilmembers elected at large for overlapping four year terms.  
The Mayor is elected by the members of the Council every two years. The Council establishes laws, policies, financing and 
standards of municipal services necessary to efficient operation of the City. 
 

CITY MANAGER 
The City Manager is employed by the City Council to administer and manage all of the daily activities and operations of the City 
within the policy guidelines established by the City Council. 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
The Planning Commission has been established to advise the City Council in planning and zoning matters. 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETINGS 
Meetings are held at 7:30 p.m. on First and Third Tuesday of each month.  Business requiring Council action is listed on the Council 
Meeting Agenda (yellow-colored).  An agenda is prepared for each Council Meeting.  In compliance with the State open meeting 
laws (Brown Act), only those items on the agenda may be acted upon by the City Council.  There is normally a study session at 5:30 
p.m. on City Council days. 
 

CONDUCT AT PUBLIC MEETINGS 
Your courtesy is requested to help our meeting run smoothly.  If you’ll be kind enough to follow these simple rules, we can make the 
best possible use of time.  Please silence all electronic devices.  Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as unsolicited 
applause, comments, cheering, foul language, or obscenities.  Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the ability of 
the City to carry out its meeting or prevents/disrupts others from fully participating in the meeting will not be permitted and offenders 
will be requested to leave the meeting pursuant to Government Code § 54957.9. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
At a City Council meeting, those who wish to be heard on matters on the agenda should indicate their desire to speak when the item 
is ready for discussion.  If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under "Public Comments".  In 
order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to five minutes.  Time shall not be shared/loaned 
from speaker to speaker.  If you wish to request time on an upcoming Council Agenda to present a particular item or matter to the 
Council, you may contact the City Manager at any time before 12:00 noon on the Wednesday immediately preceding the Council 
meeting to so request.  If the matter is within the Council's jurisdiction, and the Council has not taken action or considered the item 
at a recent meeting, the City Manager may place the item on the Agenda.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come 
forward to the speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Ordinance 

An Ordinance is the highest form of action taken by the Council.  It is written law enacted to establish a general or lasting rule 
for the citizens.  Normally, an Ordinance requires two readings at separate Council meetings after which it is adopted.  It is 
then published in the local newspaper and becomes effective thirty days after final passage.  An Ordinance can only be 
repealed or amended by another Ordinance. 

 

Resolution  
A Resolution is a formal written expression of a policy, opinion or desire of the City Council.  It requires only one reading and 
becomes effective on adoption. 

 

Minute Order  
Actions of the Council recorded only in the Minutes taken in all cases where formal Resolution or Ordinance is not needed or 
required.  

 

SUGGESTIONS, INQUIRIES OR COMPLAINTS 
While any citizen may speak directly to the Council concerning suggestions, inquiries or complaints, the City Manager or 
Department Head responsible for the service or work concerned, can usually provide pertinent information or handle the matter 
without delay if a request is made directly to him or her.  If you are not sure which department to call, or whenever you feel the 
matter has not been properly handled, please contact the City Manager at the City Hall, 119 Fox Street, telephone 924-6700, or 
email citymanager@lemoore.com.  



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 Public Works 
Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 

STUDY 
SESSION 

ITEM 2 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: David Wlaschin, Director of Public 
Works/Planning 

Date: February 28, 2014  

Subject: Water Conservation  

 
Discussion: 
 
The City of Lemoore adopted Municipal Code Section 7-7A-8.1 in 2003 relating to wasting of 
water.  The ordinance requires: 
 

1. No excessive water running from property. 
2. Filling of swimming pools of 5,000 gallons or more is only permitted every two years. 
3. Washing of cars, boats and other vehicles is prohibited unless a hose is fitted with a quick 

acting positive shut off nozzle. 
4. Washing of exterior asphalt or concrete is prohibited except for businesses regulated by 

Federal, State or County Health Departments. 
5. Outdoor watering is restricted to Tuesday, Thursday, Saturday or Wednesday, Friday, 

Saturday based on address. 
 

In addition to the ordinance, the City will reduce scheduled landscape watering of City property 
by 25% and reduce flushing of fire hydrants to the minimum required by the Fire Department. 
 
Budget Impact: 
Informational only. 
 
Recommendation: 
For discussion. 
 
 
 



 1

ITEM 3A 
 
 

Minutes of the Study Session of the  
LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 

February 18, 2014 
 
 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
At 5:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 

 
ATTENDANCE: 

Mayor Siegel; Mayor Pro Tem Wynne; Council Members Gordon, Rodarmel; 
City Manager Laws; Public Works Director Wlaschin; Police Chief Smith; 
Project Manager Holwell; Executive Secretary/Housing Specialist Austin; City 
Clerk Venegas.  City Attorney Avedisian arrived at 6pm. 
 
Absent:  Council Member Neal 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

There was no comment. 
 

DISCUSSION – Signs, Sign Ordinance and Sign Permits: 
Project Manager Holwell presented the report along with a power point 
presentation.  Project Manager Holwell requested direction from Council 
related to the administration of the Sign Ordinance. 
 
Community Services Officer Soledad Perez spoke on how she is enforcing 
sign violations.  Everything has been verbal and everyone has been receptive 
and complied. 
 
Council agreed the Sign Ordinance is the law and it should be interpreted by 
the City Manager.  If complaints, forward to City Manager and he will send to 
Council. 
 
Council also agreed that the signs that need permits will receive a verbal 
notice and if they do not comply, they will receive written notice of 
enforcement. 
 
Lemoore Gem and Mineral Show asked for permission to put up stick signs for 
directions to the show.  The signs would be up 3/10/14 to 3/17/14.  City 
Manager Laws will look into this. 
 
Mayor Siegel and Council Members Gordon and Rodarmel asked that an 
Ordinance specific to signs on trailers be brought back to Council. 
 

DISCUSSION – Golf Course Proposed Fee Rate Change: 
Parks and Recreation Director Simonson presented the report regarding the 
proposal to increase golf fees.  The new rates include an approximately 10-
12% increase.  The nine-hole rates were adjusted to a lesser percentage so as 
not to surpass competitor’s rates. 



 2

 
Mr. Rich Rhoads, owner of Rhoads Golf, spoke of the effects of the increase.  
He estimates the golf course will see an increase of approximately $45,000 
per year. 
 
Item is later on the agenda as an action item. 
 

CLOSED SESSION PUBLIC COMMENT: 
No closed session public comment. 
 

ADJOURN TO LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION: 
At 6:12 p.m., the Council adjourned to closed session regarding labor 
negotiations and anticipated litigation. 

 
ADJOURNMENT:   
 At 7:28 p.m., Council adjourned to the Regular Meeting. 
 

 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the  

LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
February 18, 2014 

 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
 At 7:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
 
ATTENDANCE: 

Mayor Siegel; Mayor Pro Tem Wynn; Council Members Gordon and 
Rodarmel; City Manager Laws; City Attorney Avedisian; Public 
Works/Planning Director Wlaschin; Finance Director Silva; Parks and 
Recreation Director Simonson; Police Chief Smith; Project Manager Holwell; 
City Clerk Venegas 

   
 Absent:  Council Member Neal.  
 
FORMAL INTRODUCTION OF NEWLY PROMOTED CORPORALS – BADGE PINNING 
CEREMONY: 

Police Chief Smith announced that effective February 1, 2014 Officers 
Matthew Smith and Brandon Cooper were promoted to the rank of Corporal. 

 
City Clerk Venegas administered the oath of office to Corporal Smith and 
Corporal Cooper. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Jane Dart read a prepared written statement in regards to the Siegel recall and 
an incident that occurred at Savemart. 
 
Richard Ray, Acting President of Lemoore Senior Citizens Center, provided a 
status update of the Senior Center.  Treasurer’s Report for January indicated 
they had a net income of $38.98 for January. 
 
Connie Wlaschin spoke in reference to two phone calls received from Mayor 



 3

Siegel and his request for her to resign from the Downtown Merchants 
Association. 
 
William Munoz from the Office of Rudy Salazar’s office invited all to the Senior 
Scan Stopper Seminar on Friday, February 28, 2014 at the Lemoore Veterans 
Memorial Building from 9:30-11:30am. 

  
ANNOUNCEMENT: 

No announcement was made. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 
Council Member Gordon requested Item C be pulled for separate 
consideration. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried that Council approve Items A, B, D and E on the Consent 
Calendar: 
 
A. Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – February 4, 2014 
B. Approval – Warrant Register 13-14 – February 14, 2014 
D. Approval – Resolution 2014-04 -  Redesignation of the Greater South San 

Joaquin Valley Recycling Market Development Zone (RMDZ) 
E. Approval – Notice of Rejection – Marianne Lyons-Penton 
 
Ayes: Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Siegel 
Absent: Neal 
 
C. Approval – Grand Jury Response – Lemoore City Council and Planning 

Commission 
 
Council Member Gordon stated due diligence was performed and apologize if 
incorrect legal opinion. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member 
Rodarmel, and carried that Council approve Item C on the Consent Calendar. 
 
Ayes: Gordon, Rodarmel, Wynne, Siegel 
Absent: Neal 

 

PUBLIC HEARING – Design Phase Community Development Block Grant (CDBG): 

Project Manager Holwell presented the report asking that the City Council 
open the Public Hearing to accept testimony and ideas for the Community 
Development Block Grant application.  Following the Public Hearing, 
determine which activity(ies) the City should pursue and direct Kings 
Community Development Corporation (KCDC) to prepare the application and 
bring it back for an additional Public Hearing prior to submittal to the State.  A 
sign in sheet was passed around to abide by the CDBG requirements. 

 

Alejandro Clark with KCDC answered questions about the submittal of the 
grant from Council.  He stated they are going to focus on the Senior Center 



 4

with construction along with two different services tracks such as someone to 
assist with running the organization and someone to assist with maintenance 
of the organization. 

 

City Manager Laws stated Council Member Neal requested the Boys and Girls 
Club be an option for this grant. 

 

Mayor Siegel opened the Public Hearing at 8:11 p.m and asked that everyone 
sign the sign in sheet to verify attendance. 

 

Myeisha Neal spoke in favor of a Boys and Girls Club and stated there is a 
need. 

 

Mr. Joe Engelbrecht with the Tulare Boys and Girls Club spoke of a need for a 
Boys and Girls Club.  Mr. Engelbrecht said they had a grant writer who would 
be able to write the grant.  He said a feasibility study was done last year and 
the demographics fit in with the CDBG grant. 

 

Mr. Richard Ray with the Lemoore Senior Center stated they are looking for 
assistance to stay open and not necessarily just money.  Anything that will 
keep them solvent. 

  

Council agreed the senior project is the primary objective for the CDBG grant 
or if a way to include the Boys and Girls Club without jeopardizing the senior 
project. 

 
Sherry Pope Joy works with Alejandro Clark and writing the grant with KCDC.  
Formerly worked scoring grants and very familiar with the process.  Stated that 
Boys and Girls Club a good project but have been focusing on the Senior 
Center. 

 

Public hearing was closed at 8:52 p.m. with a short recess to check sound 
system. 

 

Council re-adjourned at 8:56 p.m. 

  

Council agreed with move forward with the Senior Project and possibly next 
year submit for the Boys and Girls Club. 
 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – Establishing a Policy Regarding the Operation and 
Financing of the Golf Course, Resolution 2014-05: 

City Manager Laws presented the report requested by Council Member 
Rodarmel at the last council meeting.  Council Member Rodarmel requested a 
resolution to establish a policy that the City General Fund would not be used to 
advance monies to fund the operating shortfalls in the Golf Course enterprise 
fund.  In the event that there was a shortfall, a set maximum amount of general 



 5

fund monies ($100,000 per year) could be used. 
 
 
Council Member Rodarmel made a motion to withdrawal the Resolution. 
Motion died due to lack of a second. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon and seconded by Council Member 
Wynne to table this item indefinitely. 
 
Ayes: Gordon, Wynne 
Noes: Rodarmel, Siegel 
Absent:  Neal 
 
Item failed due to lack of support. 

 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – Lemoore Police Department Memorandum of 
Understanding with CrisCom for lobbying services: 

Police Chief Smith presented the report.  CrisCom will assist the City of 
Lemoore in pursuing infrastructure funding for the Lemoore Police 
Department.  CrisCom will represent the City of Lemoore and work with 
members of the California Legislature, the Governor’s office and local elected 
officials to identify viable funding sources.  CrisCom will agree that the fee for 
services shall be $1,500 per month.  The agreement will commence on 
February 4, 2014. 
 
Chuck Jelloian with CrisCom answered questions from Council as to strategy 
for lobbying efforts.  
 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member 
Rodarmel, and carried that Council approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding with CrisCom and authorize  the Chief of Police to enter into an 
agreement with CrisCom as outlined under the attached MOU. 
 
Ayes: Gordon, Rodarmel, Wynne, Siegel  
Absent: Neal 

 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – Contracting for Crack Sealing and Patching Services, 
2014 Street Maintenance Program: 

Parks and Recreation Director Simonson presented the report proposing for 
streets not scheduled for major maintenance.  The work will take about two 
weeks beginning in March and is not to exceed $49,999. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Wynne, seconded by Council Member 
Gordon, and carried that Council authorize contracting the Crack Sealing and 
Patching Services for the 2014 Street Maintenance Projects and authorize the 
City Manager to sign the Agreement and Scope of Services not to exceed 
$49,999. 
 
Ayes: Wynne, Gordon, Rodarmel, Siegel  
Absent: Neal 
 



 6

 
 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – Golf Course Proposed Fee Rate Change: 
Parks and Recreation Director Simonson presented the report regarding the 
proposal to increase golf fees. The new rates include an approximately 10-
12% increase.  The nine-hole rates were adjusted to a lesser percentage so as 
not to surpass competitor’s rates. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried that Council approve the rate increase as proposed by 
Rich Rhoades effective March 1, 2014. 
 
Ayes: Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Siegel   
Absent: Neal 

 
ADJOURN TO SUCCESSOR AGENCY: 

At 9:44 p.m. Council adjourned to the Successor Agency regarding the 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule. 
 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – SUCCESSOR AGENCY – RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION 
PAYMENT SCHEDULE FOR JULY – DECEMBER 2014 (ROPS 14-15A): 

Finance Director Silva presented the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule for the period July through December 2014 (ROPS 14-15A) for 
approval.  A copy of the approved ROPS 14-15A will be sent to the California 
Department of Finance (DOF) by the due date of March 3, 2014.  Successor 
Agency expenditures for the period of July –December 2014 total $2,531,880. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried that the Successor Agency Board direct staff to present 
the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for the period July –December 
2014 (ROPS 14-15A) to the Oversight Board for approval and submit it to the 
Department of Finance by March 3, 2014. 
 
Ayes: Gordon, Wynne, Rodarmel, Siegel   
Absent: Neal 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
At 9:49 p.m. the Successor Agency adjourned to the Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

 

DEPARTMENT/CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 
Parks and Recreation Director Simonson invited Council to the Volunteer 
Appreciation Dinner on Thursday, February 27th at 6pm at the Lemoore Senior 
Center. 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION: 
Council Member Gordon request 
He also said a member of the Downtown Merchants Association contacted him 
and voiced their concern about another DMA member discussing political 
items at a DMA meeting rather than DMA items.  City Manager Laws was 
asked to look into this item. 



 7

 
Council Member Rodarmel inquired if the parking lot at the CMC was part of 
the solar was informed it was part.  He also congratulated Arizona on their bill 
to nullify all federal gun laws.  Council Member Rodarmel stated his son is no 
longer working with his business but now employed by the NRA. 
 

CLOSED SESSION PUBLIC COMMENT: 
There was no comment. 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 At 9:56 p.m. the meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved the 4th day of March 2014. 
 
Full digital audio recording is available. 
 
 
 
              
        William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
       
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 



PEI PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 02/27/2014 CITY OF LEMOORE AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43 EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4211 − CITY COUNCIL

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
8 /14 02/27/14 21 FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C 10.00 .00 PARADE/J.SCARBROUGH
8 /14 02/27/14 21 FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C 31.37 .00 COUNCIL MEET/B.AUSTIN    
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES .00 41.37 .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /14 02/27/14 21 14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN 51.89 .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC .00 51.89 .00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES
8 /14 02/27/14 21 FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C 9.71 .00 SNACKS/MEETING/KBALEY    
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES .00 9.71 .00

TOTAL    CITY COUNCIL .00 102.97 .00

RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:45 PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING

Item 3B



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4213 − CITY MANAGER             

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 25.79               .00 HEADPHONES/K.BALEY       
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             25.79               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /14 02/27/14 21             9403197312   5352 SHRED−IT USA− FR                 30.73               .00 SHREDDING SERVICE        
8 /14 02/27/14 21             2014−02      6226 SUSAN WELLS                     400.00               .00 PROF SERVICES            
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            430.73               .00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES          
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 40.00               .00 NCCCA/J.VENEGAS          
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00             40.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             9719554762   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                   .22               .00 01/05/2014−02/04/2014    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                373.69               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             000005141110 5516 AT&T                             28.70               .00 559−924−9003             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            402.61               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 14.00               .00 LUNCH/MEETING/K.BALEY    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  7.50               .00 WORKSHOP/J.HOLWELL       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  8.00               .00 WORKSHOP/J.HOLWELL       
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00             29.50               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                810.62               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            810.62               .00

TOTAL    CITY MANAGER                                            .00          1,739.25               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:45                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4215 − FINANCE                  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  2.66               .00 POSTAGE/A.CHAMPION       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                   .46               .00 POSTAGE/J.MORENO         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  3.22               .00 LYSOL/J.JOHNSON          
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  3.22               .00 KEY/J.JOHNSON            
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00              9.56               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /14 02/27/14 21             66328        6115 EMPLOYEE RELATIO                 21.75               .00 PRE−EMPLOY BCKGRND CK    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             9403197477   5352 SHRED−IT USA− FR                 13.78               .00 SHREDDING SERVICES       
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             35.53               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                138.94               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             000005141110 5516 AT&T                             17.95               .00 559−924−9003             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            156.89               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 33.90               .00 MILEAGE/TRAIN/JOHNSON    
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00             33.90               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                153.25               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            153.25               .00

TOTAL    FINANCE                                                 .00            389.13               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:45                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    4
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4216 − PLANNING                 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4360     TRAINING                 
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02242014     5551 MARRIOTT                        537.99               .00 LODGING/TRAIN/J.BADAS    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02262014     T1817 JUDY BADASCI                   357.43               .00 PER DIEM/J.BADASCI       
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00            895.42               .00

TOTAL    PLANNING                                                .00            895.42               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:45                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    5
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             2877−437419  5333 MEDALLION SUPPLY                127.94               .00 6−LONG LIGHT BULBS       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             CALEM10713   5866 FASTENAL COMPANY                 26.26               .00 250−DRILLING SCREWS      
8 /14 02/27/14 21             CALEM10664   5866 FASTENAL COMPANY                 42.27               .00 VOLT DETECTOR/BIT        
8 /14 02/27/14 21             490001       5573 CENTRAL SANITARY                101.43               .00 SANITARY SUPPLIES        
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            297.90               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /14 02/27/14 21             15117        T909 ASSOCIATED SOILS              8,330.18               .00 BROWNFIELD CLEANUP       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             15120        T909 ASSOCIATED SOILS              3,135.00               .00 BROWNFIELD CLEANUP       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     T1595 HANNSSELTHILL CA                80.00               .00 WEEKEND RENTAL ATTEND    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             0064699      1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 50.00               .00 41 CINNAMON DRIVE        
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     6283 ERIK SURWILL                    792.00               .00 REC CENTER CLEAN UP      
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     T1502 SANTOS MAYA                    400.00               .00 WEEKEND RENTAL ATTEND    
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         12,787.18               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02242014     0423 THE GAS COMPANY                 999.41               .00 01/21/2014−02/20/2014    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 52.26               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 21.27               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 21.27               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             9719554762   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 45.75               .00 01/05/2014−02/04/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          1,139.96               .00

4340S    STREETS−UTILITIES        
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB678006815 0363 P G & E                          86.39               .00 01/14/2014−02/12/2014    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             MAR366272278 0363 P G & E                       6,335.93               .00 01/16/2014−02/14/2014    
TOTAL    STREETS−UTILITIES                                       .00          6,422.32               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 16.69               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             16.69               .00

4850     ASSET REPLACEMENT        
8 /14 02/27/14 21             2017         6369 T&T CONSTRUCTION              2,243.00               .00 CIP14−CITY HALL STEPS    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             2018         6369 T&T CONSTRUCTION              1,728.00               .00 CIP15− CIVIC STEPS       
TOTAL    ASSET REPLACEMENT                                       .00          3,971.00               .00

TOTAL    MAINTENANCE DIVISION                                    .00         24,635.05               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:46                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    6
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4221 − POLICE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             4282         3010 THE ANIMAL HOUSE                151.79               .00 DOG FOOD                 
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  5.60               .00 POSTAGE/K.BALEY          
8 /14 02/27/14 21             970038       1156 HANFORD VETERINA                 78.95               .00 EXAM/STRAY               
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            236.34               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /14 02/27/14 21             5418897      0242 JORGENSEN & COMP                 58.98               .00 RECHARGE EXTINGUISHER    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             2877−437419  0264 KINGS CO. SHERIF              7,139.09               .00 NTF COSTS 2ND QTR        
8 /14 02/27/14 21             0840831      6368 SAN JOAQUIN PEST                 97.50               .00 711 CINN−WEEK 2          
8 /14 02/27/14 21             0840830      6368 SAN JOAQUIN PEST                 97.50               .00 711 CINN− WEEK 1         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             IN1022       0655 WILLIE B. EWING,                225.00               .00 LONG FORM PHYSICAL       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             IN1029       0655 WILLIE B. EWING,                225.00               .00 LONG FROM PHYSICAL       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             SOP36221     6086 CPS HR CONSULTIN              1,104.00               .00 TESTING/SEC. EXAM        
8 /14 02/27/14 21             415−000005   5814 CITY OF HANFORD                 518.75               .00 ESRI LICENSES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             415−000005   5814 CITY OF HANFORD                 764.00               .00 COPLOGIC SERVER          
8 /14 02/27/14 21             840829       6368 SAN JOAQUIN PEST                307.50               .00 711 CINN/SRVC AGREE.     
8 /14 02/27/14 21             835764       6368 SAN JOAQUIN PEST                988.75               .00 657 FOX/SERVICE AGREE    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             001−001194   5814 CITY OF HANFORD              13,902.61               .00 MARCH DISPATCH SRVS      
8 /14 02/27/14 21             JANSERVICES  0772 COUNTY OF KINGS               4,301.63               .00 TECH COMM SERVICES       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             01312014     0772 COUNTY OF KINGS                 156.87               .00 PRINT SHOP               
8 /14 02/27/14 21             9403221022   5352 SHRED−IT USA− FR                132.48               .00 SHREDDING SERVICE        
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         30,019.66               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                520.40               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                965.92               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          1,486.32               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             247450182    5842 U.S.  BANCORP EQ                771.70               .00 PD COPIERS               
8 /14 02/27/14 21             285388       1817 C.A. REDING COMP                770.00               .00 PRINTER/INSTALLATION     
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00          1,541.70               .00

4840AR   AUTOS/TRKS ASSET REPLACE 
8 /14 02/27/14 21 6733    −01 01093078     2484 LEHR AUTO ELECTR             10,965.87        −11,440.41 UPCONVERT KIT/K−9 CAR    
8 /14 02/27/14 21 6733    −02 01093078     2484 LEHR AUTO ELECTR                822.44           −858.03 TAX                      
8 /14 02/27/14 21 6733    −03 01093078     2484 LEHR AUTO ELECTR                475.00           −475.00 SHIPPING                 
TOTAL    AUTOS/TRKS ASSET REPLACE                                .00         12,263.31        −12,773.44

TOTAL    POLICE                                                  .00         45,547.33        −12,773.44

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:46                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    7
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4222 − FIRE                     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 12.51               .00 CALENDAR/J.SCARBROUGH    
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             12.51               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             22260        0388 REED ELECTRIC                     7.23               .00 ELECTRICAL/FIRE DEPT     
8 /14 02/27/14 21             1299032−00   0126 L.N. CURTIS & SO                268.75               .00 FLASHLIGHT CHARGER       
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00            275.98               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /14 02/27/14 21             IN1029       0655 WILLIE B. EWING,                140.00               .00 FIRE/DMV PHYSICAL        
8 /14 02/27/14 21             IN1022       0655 WILLIE B. EWING,                150.00               .00 FIRE PHYSICALS           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             1208         5841 NATIONWIDE FINAN              5,950.00               .00 ACTIVITY REPORT          
8 /14 02/27/14 21             001−001194   5814 CITY OF HANFORD              10,426.95               .00 MARCH DISPATCH SRVS      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         16,666.95               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             9719554762   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 11.07               .00 01/05/2014−02/04/2014    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                124.56               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 33.39               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            169.02               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             22260        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   130.00               .00 ELECTRICAL/FIRE DEPT     
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00            130.00               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
8 /14 02/27/14 21             13796        5636 KAPLAN CONTINUIN                390.00               .00 DVD SUBSCRIPTION         
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00            390.00               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 55.77               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             55.77               .00

TOTAL    FIRE                                                    .00         17,700.23               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:46                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    8
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4224 − BUILDING INSPECTION      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  7.28               .00 PAINT/I.FORD             
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00              7.28               .00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES          
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 11.50               .00 MEETING/I.FORD           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 11.50               .00 MEETING/J.HOLWELL        
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00             23.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             9719554762   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 12.15               .00 01/05/2014−02/04/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             12.15               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 45.89               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             45.89               .00

TOTAL    BUILDING INSPECTION                                     .00             88.32               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:46                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    9
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4230 − PUBLIC WORKS             

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4320     MEETINGS & DUES          
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 18.79               .00 MILEAGE/I.FORD           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  6.78               .00 MILEAGE/BRIDGES          
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00             25.57               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
8 /14 02/27/14 21             00000152764  0199 HANFORD SENTINEL                156.69               .00 PUBLIC NOTICE            
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00            156.69               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 76.66               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 35.99               .00 PHONE/BRIDGES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             9719554762   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 60.42               .00 01/05/2014−02/04/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            173.07               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                133.99               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 46.59               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            180.58               .00

TOTAL    PUBLIC WORKS                                            .00            535.91               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:46                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   10
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4242 − RECREATION               

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             17887        2045 BUDDY’S TROPHIES                 23.65               .00 TROPHIES−CHESS TOURN.    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             34726        5169 NEWMAN−GARCIA PH                450.00               .00 PHOTOGRAPH EVENT         
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            473.65               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     5674 JENNIFER MELENDE                623.00               .00 FEB−CHEERLEADING         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     5827 MUSIC SPECTRUM E                400.00               .00 DJ/CLUB 78 FEB 21        
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     6371 MANUEL VELARDE                  105.00               .00 FEB 14−KARATE            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     6280 CASEY VENEMA                    290.50               .00 FEB−14 DRAMA             
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     6324 EDUARDO SANCHEZ                  44.00               .00 PARKING LOT ATTENDANT    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02262014     5235 STATE DISBURSEME                324.00               .00 FEB CHILD SUPPORT        
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     T1328 DENISE TAYLOR                  455.00               .00 VALENTINE’S HORSEBACK    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     T1508 MAUREEN TOMPKINS               224.00               .00 FEB−DOG OBEDIENCE        
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     6322 MELANIE TATCO                    94.50               .00 FEB 14−KIDS ZUMBA        
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     6291 SANTIAGO COVARRU                325.00               .00 SOCCER REFEREE           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     5614 CHRISTINA DE LA                 304.50               .00 FEB2014 −ZUMBA           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     T1335 CHARLIE ENNES                  637.00               .00 FEB 14−GUITAR CLASS      
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     T1444 JOE CORREIA                    350.00               .00 SOCCER ATTENDANT         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     T1549 SARA BLAIN                     352.50               .00 REC DANCE ATTENDANT      
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     0040 LARRY AVILA                     190.00               .00 REC ATTENDANT−BBALL      
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     6290 DANTE AGUILAR                   150.00               .00 SOCCER REFEREE           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     5962 JASON GLASPIE                   407.50               .00 FEB 14− BOXING           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     6257 RYAN ROCHA                    6,695.00               .00 FEB 14−CROSSFIT          
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     6229 TARA RODRIGUEZ                  455.00               .00 FEB 14−KINDERMUSIK       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02252014     T1586 JOSE PEREZ                     230.00               .00 SOCCER REFEREE           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         12,656.50               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             9719554762   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                130.77               .00 01/05/2014−02/04/2014    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                105.40               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 52.24               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            288.41               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                657.80               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            657.80               .00

TOTAL    RECREATION                                              .00         14,076.36               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00        105,709.97        −12,773.44

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:47                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   11
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 028 − CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ   
BUDGET UNIT − 4726Q − CMC BIG FAN              

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
8 /14 02/27/14 21             4173         5062 ROGER KROEBER ST                534.00               .00 (1) BRAKCET/BIG FAN      
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00            534.00               .00

TOTAL    CMC BIG FAN                                             .00            534.00               .00

TOTAL    CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ                                  .00            534.00               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:47                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   12
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 033 − LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4723B − SLURRY SEALS             

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
8 /14 02/27/14 21             409095FINAL  6320 INTERMOUNTAIN SL             15,365.43               .00 SLURRY SEAL RETENTION    
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00         15,365.43               .00

TOTAL    SLURRY SEALS                                            .00         15,365.43               .00

TOTAL    LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND                               .00         15,365.43               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:47                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   13
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 035 − CITY GRANTS − CDBG & HOME
BUDGET UNIT − 4736A − 10−HOME−6868             

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4375C    GRANT PROG.IMPLEMENTATION
8 /14 02/27/14 21             46 S BYRON   2483 FIRST AMERICAN T             65,000.00               .00 FIRST TIME HOMEBUYER     
TOTAL    GRANT PROG.IMPLEMENTATION                               .00         65,000.00               .00

TOTAL    10−HOME−6868                                            .00         65,000.00               .00

TOTAL    CITY GRANTS − CDBG & HOME                               .00         65,000.00               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:47                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   14
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 040 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        
BUDGET UNIT − 4265 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 20.00               .00 WORKSHOP/R.LAWS          
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 41.72               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             61.72               .00

4220CNG  CNG OPERATING SUPPLIES   
8 /14 02/27/14 21             64582        0535 RUCKSTELL CALIF                  79.52               .00 FRONT LOADER FUEL        
TOTAL    CNG OPERATING SUPPLIES                                  .00             79.52               .00

4220F    OPERATING SUPPLIES FUEL  
8 /14 02/27/14 21             215142       0043 BURROWS & CASTAD             11,648.72               .00 CARDLOCK STATEMENT       
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES FUEL                                 .00         11,648.72               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             64564        0535 RUCKSTELL CALIF                 421.54               .00 BUSHING/PIVOT            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             64665        0535 RUCKSTELL CALIF                 138.81               .00 BIMBA AIR CYLINDER       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             64642        0535 RUCKSTELL CALIF                 926.02               .00 GRABBER CYLINDER         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             50013608     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                150.50               .00 WHEEL ASY                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             50013408     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                216.40               .00 FUEL LINE TUBE ASY       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             6015653/1    2671 KELLER MOTORS                   225.00               .00 UNIT 340 REPAIRS         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             50014052     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                 14.34               .00 KNOB                     
8 /14 02/27/14 21             59858        6146 HANFORD CHRYSLER                257.77               .00 FUEL TUBE/MODULE         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             CM59858      6146 HANFORD CHRYSLER                −40.00               .00 CORE RETURN              
8 /14 02/27/14 21             59858−1      6146 HANFORD CHRYSLER                 33.17               .00 FUEL TUBE                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             4−235801     1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS                 162.48               .00 BATTERIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             4−C28046     1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS                 −85.75               .00 BATTERY RETURN           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             4−237051     1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS                 166.99               .00 BATTERIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14−1748      6307 MATTOS SMALL ENG                331.37               .00 ENGINE−CEMENT MIXER      
8 /14 02/27/14 21             6837014−01   5379 TURF STAR                        22.22               .00 IDLER SPACER             
8 /14 02/27/14 21             33774        0634 TERMINAL AIR BRA                128.53               .00 AXLE COVER/CAP           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             33906        0634 TERMINAL AIR BRA                −72.73               .00 33MM WITH FLANGE         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             3918−183459  6120 O’REILLY AUTO PA                166.99               .00 ALTERNATOR               
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          3,163.65               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /14 02/27/14 21             IN1022       0655 WILLIE B. EWING,                 65.00               .00 DMV PHYSICAL             
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             65.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 52.26               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             9719554762   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                  6.15               .00 01/05/2014−02/04/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             58.41               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             5514         0370 PHIL’S LOCKSMITH                  6.45               .00 DUPLICATE KEYS           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             4756         2956 JONES COLLISION               1,320.00               .00 P33 REPLACE DECALS       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             4698         2956 JONES COLLISION               1,847.93               .00 REPAIR P86               

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:47                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   15
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 040 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        
BUDGET UNIT − 4265 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES     (cont’d)
8 /14 02/27/14 21             4091083      6370 HERWALDT MOTORSP              1,478.92               .00 REPAIR UNIT 27           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             627500       1277 GRAYLIFT, INC.                  234.34               .00 ROAD SERVICE UNIT 581    
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          4,887.64               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         19,964.66               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         19,964.66               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:47                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   16
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FO792769     6058 UNIVAR                        1,317.82               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FO792566     6058 UNIVAR                        1,749.16               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FO793276     6058 UNIVAR                        1,526.95               .00 SODIUM,MILL FEE,FUEL     
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FO793274     6058 UNIVAR                        1,317.82               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          5,911.75               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             1286791      0345 MORGAN & SLATES                 123.82               .00 CUT TUBING               
8 /14 02/27/14 21             0972539      0188 FERGUSON ENTERPR              1,671.69               .00 7− LARGE COUPLERS        
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          1,795.51               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A401001      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                102.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A401002      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A400845      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 42.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A400844      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                212.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A400855      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A401484      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A401737      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A401738      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                212.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A401647      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A401600      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                302.75               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A401566      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                212.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A401999      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A402012      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                212.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A401944      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 15.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A401864      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                212.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A402350      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WASTER TESTING           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A402601      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                212.50               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             A402618      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             001−001194   5814 CITY OF HANFORD               3,475.65               .00 MARCH DISPATCH SRVS      
8 /14 02/27/14 21             IN1029       0655 WILLIE B. EWING,                110.00               .00 DRUG SCREENINGS          
8 /14 02/27/14 21             IN1022       0655 WILLIE B. EWING,                 25.00               .00 DRUG SCREENING           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             ZA14014491   5077 SENSUS METERING               1,638.95               .00 SYS. SUPPORT RENEWAL     
8 /14 02/27/14 21             ZA91400524   5077 SENSUS METERING                 −57.17               .00 TAX ONLY ADJUSTMENT      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          7,489.68               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 86.72               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 86.72               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             MAR826001193 0363 P G & E                      53,441.59               .00 01/08/2014−02/06/2014    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 52.26               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             9719554762   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 20.94               .00 01/05/2014−02/04/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00         53,688.23               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:47                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   17
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             10795        0460 VALLEY PUMP & DA                776.01               .00 WELL 7 MOTOR             
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00            776.01               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                120.64               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            120.64               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00         69,781.82               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:47                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   18
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4251 − UTILITY OFFICE           

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  3.23               .00 KEY/J.JOHNSON            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  3.22               .00 LYSOL/J.JOHNSON          
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00              6.45               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /14 02/27/14 21             66328        6115 EMPLOYEE RELATIO                 21.75               .00 PRE−EMPLOY BCKGRND CK    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             9403197477   5352 SHRED−IT USA− FR                 13.78               .00 SHREDDING SERVICES       
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             35.53               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                138.94               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             000005141110 5516 AT&T                             13.16               .00 559−924−9003             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            152.10               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                149.59               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            149.59               .00

TOTAL    UTILITY OFFICE                                          .00            343.67               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00         70,125.49               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   19
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 056 − REFUSE                   
BUDGET UNIT − 4256 − REFUSE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             61498011     0169 FRESNO OXYGEN                   101.38               .00 CARBON DIOXIDE           
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00            101.38               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /14 02/27/14 21             66328        6115 EMPLOYEE RELATIO                 28.00               .00 PRE−EMPLOY BCKGRND CK    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             001−001194   5814 CITY OF HANFORD               3,475.65               .00 MARCH DISPATCH SRVS      
8 /14 02/27/14 21             IN1029       0655 WILLIE B. EWING,                125.00               .00 DRUG SCRN/PHYSICAL       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             IN1022       0655 WILLIE B. EWING,                140.00               .00 DRUG SCRNS/PHYSICAL      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,768.65               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 52.26               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             9719554762   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 44.70               .00 01/05/2014−02/04/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             96.96               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                  9.88               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00              9.88               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00          3,976.87               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00          3,976.87               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   20
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 060 − SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE
BUDGET UNIT − 4260 − SEWER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             90518        0428 STONEY’S SAND &                 104.06               .00 FILLER SAND              
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            104.06               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /14 02/27/14 21             IN1029       0655 WILLIE B. EWING,                175.00               .00 DRUG SCRNS/PHYSICALS     
8 /14 02/27/14 21             IN1022       0655 WILLIE B. EWING,                 50.00               .00 DRUG SCREENINGS          
8 /14 02/27/14 21             001−001194   5814 CITY OF HANFORD               3,475.65               .00 MARCH DISPATCH SRVS      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,700.65               .00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES          
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02192014     0610 CSJ SECTION OF T                140.00               .00 TRAINING SESSION         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             02242014     1482 CWEA                            148.00               .00 MEM RENEW/R.YANES        
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00            288.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /14 02/27/14 21             9719554762   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 32.68               .00 01/05/2014−02/04/2014    
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 52.26               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 55.80               .00 COMM SERVICES            
8 /14 02/27/14 21             70013FEB14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                119.86               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            260.60               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
8 /14 02/27/14 21             FEB13−FEB14  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  3.24               .00 MEETING/F.JIMENEZ        
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00              3.24               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 67.12               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             67.12               .00

4840AR   AUTOS/TRKS ASSET REPLACE 
8 /14 02/27/14 21 6708    −01 0054828−IN   4015 OLD DOMINION BRU             33,410.25        −33,410.25 TRUCK MOUNTED DEBRI COLLE
8 /14 02/27/14 21 6708    −02 0054828−IN   4015 OLD DOMINION BRU              2,790.00         −2,790.00 INSTAL ON APPROVED CHASSI
8 /14 02/27/14 21 6708    −03 0054828−IN   4015 OLD DOMINION BRU             86,485.35        −86,485.35 DUAL STEERING TRUCK      
8 /14 02/27/14 21 6708    −04 0054828−IN   4015 OLD DOMINION BRU                925.35           −925.35 POLY FENDERS/REAR TIRES  
8 /14 02/27/14 21 6708    −05 0054828−IN   4015 OLD DOMINION BRU              6,696.00         −6,696.00 BOTTOM EXHAUST           
8 /14 02/27/14 21 6708    −06 0054828−IN   4015 OLD DOMINION BRU             12,555.00        −12,555.00 3 AXIS W/HYDRAULIC SYSTEM
8 /14 02/27/14 21 6708    −07 0054828−IN   4015 OLD DOMINION BRU                697.50           −697.50 BAR ON HOPPER NOSE       
8 /14 02/27/14 21 6708    −08 0054828−IN   4015 OLD DOMINION BRU              2,743.50         −2,743.50 HYDRAULIC REAR DOOR LATCH
8 /14 02/27/14 21 6708    −09 0054828−IN   4015 OLD DOMINION BRU              1,116.00         −1,116.00 F/S REAR COLOR CAMERA    
8 /14 02/27/14 21 6708    −10 0054828−IN   4015 OLD DOMINION BRU              5,492.00         −5,492.00 TRANSPOR COST $2/MILE    
TOTAL    AUTOS/TRKS ASSET REPLACE                                .00        152,910.95       −152,910.95

TOTAL    SEWER                                                   .00        157,334.62       −152,910.95

TOTAL    SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE                               .00        157,334.62       −152,910.95

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   21
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 068 − GENERAL FACILITIES CAP   
BUDGET UNIT − 4714B − DEPTS OFFICE SPACE − CMC 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   22
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 068 − GENERAL FACILITIES CAP   
BUDGET UNIT − 4714B − DEPTS OFFICE SPACE − CMC 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
8 /14 02/27/14 21             2004         6253 WALLACE CONTRACT              4,021.66               .00 CMC PH 1− FINAL HVAC     
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00          4,021.66               .00

TOTAL    DEPTS OFFICE SPACE − CMC                                .00          4,021.66               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   23
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 068 − GENERAL FACILITIES CAP   
BUDGET UNIT − 4714C − WAREHOUSE IMPROVEMENTS   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
8 /14 02/27/14 21             4762         1216 C.B.S. DOORS                     74.30               .00 CIP8−(32) 1X16 BOARDS    
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00             74.30               .00

TOTAL    WAREHOUSE IMPROVEMENTS                                  .00             74.30               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FACILITIES CAP                                  .00          4,095.96               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   24
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 074 − PARKS & RECREATION CAP   
BUDGET UNIT − 4730H − PURCHASE/INSTALL 3 FANS  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
8 /14 02/27/14 21             4173         5062 ROGER KROEBER ST              1,602.00               .00 (3) BRACKETS/BIG FANS    
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00          1,602.00               .00

TOTAL    PURCHASE/INSTALL 3 FANS                                 .00          1,602.00               .00

TOTAL    PARKS & RECREATION CAP                                  .00          1,602.00               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   25
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4801 − LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /14 02/27/14 21             01032014     1152 ED GODINHO                    6,000.00               .00 REPLACE RAMP             
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                   .01               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
8 /14 02/27/14 21             419882       5741 PULIDO AND SONS                 350.00               .00 GRIND STUMP              
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          6,350.01               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD                                   .00          6,350.01               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   26
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815B − PFMD ZONE 2 DEVANTE      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /14 02/27/14 21             20849        5638 SHINEN LANDSCAPE              1,072.50               .00 LANDSCAPE/HERBICIDE      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          1,072.50               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 2 DEVANTE                                     .00          1,072.50               .00

TOTAL    LLMD/PFMD                                               .00          7,422.51               .00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   27
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 16:01:43                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 085 − PBIA                     
BUDGET UNIT − 4270 − PBIA                     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /14 02/27/14 21             14919871     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                  4.74               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00              4.74               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00              4.74               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00              4.74               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00        451,136.25       −165,684.39

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:01:48                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 16:03:12                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’2000’ and ’2999’AND transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE         
   8 /14 02/27/14  21              T1594 CASTANEDA, FRANCISCA                                 250.00  REFUND/F.CASTANEDA       
   8 /14 02/27/14  21              T1801 TYLER POTTER                                         180.00  AD SALES/REC GUIDE       
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00            430.00

2248     RECREATION  IN/OUT       
   8 /14 02/27/14  21              T1801 TYLER POTTER                       180.00                    AD SALES/REC GUIDE       
TOTAL    RECREATION  IN/OUT                                                 180.00               .00

2295     TEEN CENTER DONATIONS    
   8 /14 02/27/14  21              T1594 CASTANEDA, FRANCISCA               250.00                    REFUND/F.CASTANEDA       
TOTAL    TEEN CENTER DONATIONS                                              250.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                                       430.00            430.00

TOTAL REPORT                                                                430.00            430.00

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:03:13                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 16:03:39                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’1011’ and ’2021’AND transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

1550     PREPAID EXPENSE          
   8 /14 02/27/14  21              3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   23,439.71                    VISA BANK CARD           
TOTAL    PREPAID EXPENSE                                                 23,439.71               .00

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE         
   8 /14 02/27/14  21              3022 FIRST BANKCARD                                     23,439.71  VISA BANK CARD           
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00         23,439.71

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                                    23,439.71         23,439.71

TOTAL REPORT                                                             23,439.71         23,439.71

         RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:03:39                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 02/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT31
TIME: 16:02:21                                      REVENUE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0304’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C RECEIVE REFERENCE   PAYER/VENDOR        BUDGET          RECEIPTS       RECEIVABLES DESCRIPTION

3625     CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL  
   8 /14 02/27/14 21 0        02252014     T1816 PEDRO GUARDADO                −150.00                   REFUND/P.GUARDADO        
   8 /14 02/27/14 21 0        02252014     T1815 CARMEN RAMIREZ                −250.00                   REFUND/C.RAMIREZ         
TOTAL    CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL                                 .00           −400.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00           −400.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00           −400.00               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00           −400.00               .00

                   RUN DATE 02/27/2014 TIME 16:02:21  PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 Finance 
Department 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3C 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Cheryl Silva, Finance Director 

Date: February 27, 2014  

Subject: CIP Budget Amendment – North Water Tank and Fencing at CMC  

 
Discussion: 
During the 2013-2015 CIP Budget process, two uncompleted projects from the 2011-
2013 CIP Budget were not carried over into the next budget cycle.  These projects 
require Council approval to approve the budget to fund the expected expenses 
necessary to complete the projects.   
 
One of the projects was the Fencing at CMC.  The original budget in the 2011-2013 CIP 
Budget allocated $30,000 for the project.  A total of $6,410 was expended in the 2011-
2012 fiscal year.  The balance of $23,590 needs to be added to the CIP budget for the 
2013-2015 cycle. 
 
The other project was the North Water Tank located at 40 G Street.  The original budget 
in the 2011-2013 CIP Budget allocated $190,000 for the project.  A total of $222,825 
was expended in the 2011-2013 CIP Budget cycle.  The $32,825 over expenditure was 
deducted from the available fund balances for the 2013-2015 CIP Budget, so no budget 
amendment is needed for this deficit.  The final amount due for this project will be paid 
in the 2013-2015 CIP Budget cycle, which requires a budget amendment of $53,000.  
The following information was provided by Public Works Director, David Wlaschin that 
explains the increased costs associated with this project. 
 
The inspection and coating of the water storage tanks is a vital part of our domestic 
water system.  The North Tank at 40 G Street was emptied and prepared for 
maintenance in December of 2012.  The bid was awarded to Blastco, Inc. to do the 
interim treatment. 
 
Upon draining of the tank there were structural problems discovered and the services of 
Certified Tank Inspections (CSI) were brought in to handle review and inspection of 
structural issues. 
 
The structural issues were determined to be critical and the contractor was requested to 
do additional work.  The inspection services were quite extensive to insure the extent of 
damage and needed repairs.  The contractor worked to replace the failing roof rafters, 
perlins and floor failures. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

 
 
 
 
Budget Impact: 
The funding source for the CMC Fencing project is the General Facilities Capital Fund.  
The 6-30-15 estimated balance projected in the 2013-2015 CIP Budget was $101,447.  
The revised estimated balance for 6-30-15 will be $77,857, after deducting the $23,590 
associated this project. 
 
The funding source for the North Water Tank located at 40 G Street project is Water 
Fund Asset Replacement.  The 6-30-14 estimated balance projected in the 2013-2015 
CIP Budget was $588,334.  The revised estimated balance for 6-30-14 will be 
$535,334, after deducting the $53,000 associated this project. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
That Council, by motion, approve the budget amendment of $23,590 for the CMC 
Fencing Project to be funded by the General Facilities Capital Fund and the budget 
amendment of $53,000 for the North Water Tank located at G Street to be funded by 
Water Asset Replacement Funds.  
 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

William Siegel  Police 
Department 

 
657 Fox Street 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-9574 
FAX (559) 924-3116 

 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 4 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Darrell Smith, Chief of Police  

Date: February 26, 2014  

Subject: Lemoore Police Department 2013 Annual Report (Presentation)  

 
Discussion: 
 
The Lemoore Police Department is pleased to present our Annual Report for calendar year 
2013.  The purpose of the Annual Report is to highlight the Department's significant 
achievements in serving our community and to present information and crime statistics in order 
to keep our community members informed and involved.  The active partnership of our residents 
and businesses is critical to our mission and to the safety of our community.  By sharing this 
information, we hope to strengthen these partnerships and identify ways to continually improve 
our service. 
 
Lemoore Police Department Mission Statement:  The Men and Women of the Lemoore Police 
Department are dedicated to preserving the peace of our City through proactive problem solving 
and community partnerships. 
 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
There is no impact to the general fund. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Chief of Police and Lemoore Police Department Staff present the 2013 Annual Report 
to members of the City Council. 



 1

Lemoore Police 
Department

Lemoore Police 
Department

Annual Report 
2013

Annual Report 
2013

 
 
 
 

Lemoore Police Department 
Chief of Police  
Darrell Smith 

 
 
 
 
 



 2

Chiefs Message 
 
The Lemoore Police Department is pleased to present our Annual Report for calendar year 2013.  The 
purpose of the Annual Report is to highlight the Department's significant achievements in serving our 
community and to present information and crime statistics in order to keep our community members 
informed and involved.  The active partnership of our residents and businesses is critical to our mission 
and to the safety of our community.  By sharing this information we hope to strengthen these partnerships 
and identify ways to continually improve our service. 
 
Lemoore Police Department Mission Statement:  The Men and Women of the Lemoore Police Department 
are dedicated to preserving the peace of our City through proactive problem solving and community 
partnerships. 
 
Crime 
 
Felony crimes increased from 2012, up 7.45% to 923.  Misdemeanor crimes increased up, 7.25% with 
1909 misdemeanors reported. 
 
The police department responded to 32,119 calls for service in 2013.  This results in an increase of 7.49%.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Misdemeanor calls for Service 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

781

872

821
859

923

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Felony

Felony

1,234
1,368 1,480

1,780

1,909

0

1,000

2,000

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Misdemeanor

Misdemeanor



 3

All Calls for Service 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Arrests 
 
It is significant to note that both felony arrests and misdemeanor arrests increased.   
 
Adult arrests outpaced juvenile arrests 1,265 to 295; adult arrests increased by 16.30% and juvenile arrests 
increased by 14.59%. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Major Crimes 
 
The following chart reflects the number of crimes committed, which falls within the Seven Major Crimes 
Classification as specified by the FBI.  This year, major crimes included 0 homicides, 6 rapes, 28 
robberies, 336 assaults, 408 larcenies, 88 auto thefts and 112 burglaries. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29,872
28,266

30,984
29,882

32,119

0
5,000

10,000
15,000
20,000
25,000
30,000
35,000
40,000

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

All Calls

All Calls

83

422

1138

212

926

339

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

  Adult
Felony

 Juv.
Felony

 Total
Felony

 Adult
Misd.

 Juv.
Misd.

 Total
Misd.

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

0 6

336

408

88 112

28

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Homicide Rape Assault Larceny Auto
Theft

Burglary Robbery

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013



 4

Recovered/Stolen Property 
 
Over $616,519.00 in stolen property was recovered by officers in 2013.  This is an increase of 99.82% 
over 2012.  The most common type of recovered stolen property continues to be electronics, jewelry and 
precious metals. The Lemoore Police Department recovered 25 stolen vehicles and an additional 14 stolen 
vehicles inside the City of Lemoore for allied agencies. 
 
Response Times 
 

• Priority 1  Immediate Response/Life Threatening. 
• Priority 2  In Progress Call 
• Priority 3  Quick Response Call 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Kings County Narcotic Task Force 
 
The Police Department dedicates one full-time sworn officer to the multi jurisdictional task force.  During 
2013, the task force arrested 171 suspects for narcotics violations.  The total street value of illegal 
controlled substances seized by the task force during 2013 was $2,594,004.00. Asset forfeiture seized 
during 2013 was $88,278.75.  The unit served as co-case agents with Kings County GTF on Operation 
Red Raider, resulting in 24 arrests, over 25 pounds of methamphetamine seized, hundreds of pounds in 
marijuana, and seizure of numerous illegal assault rifles. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5:45 5:48
5:00 4:00

4:33

0:00

1:12

2:24

3:36

4:48

6:00

7:12

20132012201120092008

Priority 1

Priority 2

Priority 3

All Calls



 5

Detective Unit 
 
Our Detective Bureau was assigned 544 cases for investigation or follow-up and, of these cases; the 
detectives cleared 537 with a solution rate 98%.  During 2013, there were a number of major crimes which 
required extensive investigation and consumed a significant amount of time from the investigative 
division. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Number of Cases    544  
Cases Cleared -   537   
Solution Rate –   98% 
 
Detective Avelar  
Investigations -    55 
Arrests -    6 
 
Detective Sgt. Gonsalves  
Investigations -    62 
Arrests -     3 
 
 
Detective Unit Clearance Rates 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Noteworthy Cases 2013 
 
On January 1, 2013, at approximately 1:30 A.M. the Detectives were called out for a subject who was 
stabbed multiple times while attending a New Years Eve party were numerous gang members were 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Assigned Cases

Cleared Cases

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Clearance %

Clearance %



 6

present.  The victim survived the incident and was transported to the Community Regional Medical Center 
in Fresno.  After a lengthy investigation the victim refused to cooperate with law enforcement by not 
giving a statement or identifying his attackers.  This case was suspended. 
 
On March 1, 2013, at approximately 1:00 A.M. the Detectives were called out regarding a subject who 
sustained a knife wound to the head.  The victim survived the assault and was transported to the 
Community Regional Medical Center in Fresno where the knife was successfully removed from his skull.  
Detectives were able to obtain surveillance video and obtain statements that positively identified the two 
assailants.  The two assailants were taken into custody with the assistance of the Kings County Gang Task 
Force and await the court process for their crimes. 
 
On May 16, 2013, at approximately 3:00 P.M. the Detectives assisted Patrol in an armed robbery at Roza's 
Jewelry.  The Lemoore Police Department with the assistance of the Kings County Narcotic Task Force 
was able to apprehend the suspect several hours after the crime had been committed in an orchard east of 
town.  Almost all jewelry taken in this incident was recovered and returned to the owner.  The suspect 
pled guilty. 
 
On July 28, 2013, at approximately 10:30 P.M. the Detectives were called out regarding the shooting at an 
inhabited dwelling.  One of the three persons inside the residence was struck in the abdomen with a 
shotgun pellet.  The victim survived the injury and was transported to Kaweah Delta Hospital in Visalia.  
After a lengthy investigation of interviewing neighbors, witnesses and reviewing surveillance videos there 
is no workable leads.  Case open. 
 
On September 14, 2013, at approximately 5:00 P.M. the Lemoore Wells Fargo bank was robbed at 
gunpoint.  The Detectives spent many hours interviewing witnesses, reviewing surveillance videos and 
working numerous leads.  Approximately one week after the robbery, Lemoore PD Detectives received 
information that a possible suspect in the robbery was arrested by Santa Anna Police Department.  The 
suspect admitted to the Santa Anna Police Department of his involvement in the Lemoore robbery plus, 4 
bank robberies in Visalia, 2 robberies in Bakersfield and six in the Santa Anna area.  The Lemoore 
Detectives drove to Santa Anna and interrogated the suspect, who admitted to the crime in great detail.  
Federal Bureau of Investigation took jurisdiction over the case.  
 
Traffic 
 
Traffic safety continues to be an area of public concern.  Our Department is sensitive to this issue and sets 
a high priority on responding to concerns and inquiries generated by the public. 
 
The Speed Display Boards continue to be an important tool for promoting traffic safety awareness. 
 
Traffic Accidents 
 
There were 250 traffic accidents reported in 2013 as compared to 235 in 2012, a 7.23% increase in 
accidents. 
   
There were 0 fatal accident in 2013 and we investigated 124 non-injury, 71 injury, and 55 hit and run 
traffic accidents. 



 7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Traffic Enforcement 
 
Officers issued 1,424 traffic citations in 2013, an increase of 2.23% over 2012. Moving violations again 
exceeded 50% of total cites issued.  Lemoore officers made 75 Drunk driving arrests. 
 
Citations Issued 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Youth Development Program 
 
We continued to be very pleased with the success of our Youth Development Program.  This program has 
been enthusiastically received at the Lemoore Elementary School District. 
 
During 2013, Officer Wallace served as the departments Youth Development Officer at Liberty Middle 
School.  Officer Wallace made 55 of arrests and conducted 128 investigations.  In addition to the above 
duties, the Youth Development Officer is the liaison between the elementary and middle schools and the 
Police Department.  
 
We continue to be very pleased with the success of our Youth Development Program.  This program has 
been enthusiastically received at the Lemoore High School, Jamison Continuation School and the 
Lemoore Middle College High School. 
 
During 2013, Officer Cooper and Reserve Officer Landrus served as the Departments Youth Development 
Officer at Lemoore High School.  They made 103 arrests and conducted 179 investigations.  In addition to 

71

124

55

1

252

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Injury Non-Injury Hit & Run Fatal Total

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

75

893

192
264

1424

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200
1400
1600
1800

Drunk
Driving

Moving Parking Other Total

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013



 8

the above duties, the Youth Development Officer is the liaison between the schools and the Police 
Department. 
 
The Youth Development Officer attends the School Attendance Resource Board Meetings, Expulsion 
hearings, and conducts home visits on truant students. 
 
The Youth Development Officer organizes security for all the school events i.e. football games, rallies, 
parades and graduation.  They also participate in the Gang Resistance and Education Program, Sober 
Grad, and attend field trips. 
 
YDO Cases Overview 
 
Elementary YDO – Wallace   
Arrests -    55 
Investigations -  128  
 
HS YDO – Cooper 
Arrests -    58  
Investigations -   101 
 
HS YDO – Landrus 
Arrests -    45 
Investigations -   78 
 
Community Service/Crime Prevention 
 
Our Community Relations / Crime Prevention Program continue to be a successful program. 
The Community Service Officer is actively involved in community projects and events. 
 
Much of her attention is focused on the Neighborhood Watch Program as part of our community oriented 
policing efforts and to combat the rise in burglaries.  
 
We have 103 active Neighborhood Watch Groups / Crime Free Multi-Housing Managers. This represents 
a 5.01% increase as comparable to last year’s 98 active Neighborhood Watch Groups. 
 
We continue to take a proactive approach and work as partners with the community in solving crime and 
disorder issues that affect our quality of life.   
 
Community Based Programs 
 
Neighborhood Watch  National Night Out 
Red Ribbon Week  Explorers 
Citizen’s Academy  Volunteers in Policing 
 
The Lemoore City Council continues to be supportive of crime prevention efforts which have helped a 
great deal in our crime reduction efforts. 



 9

 
Volunteers in Policing 
 
The program was implemented in 1997. Graduates of the Citizen Academy volunteer hours to make patrol 
checks, to do clerical work, work radar, finger printing and other tasks as required. 
 
In calendar year 2013 LPD VIP’S donated 5,683.5 hours of service to the Department and our community.  
Since its inception in 1997, LPD VIP’S have donated 64,332.5 hours of service. 
 
This years Red Ribbon week was very successful.  The event was held in Lions Park, with participation by 
over 16 vendors and 1,000 people in attendance. 
 
Evidence Technician 
 
Cases  120 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Training 
 
The Lemoore Police Department personnel continue to receive quality training necessary to maintain 
policing skills and provide the highest level of service to the community.  During 2013, personnel 
received 1,584 hours of training.  
 
Training Courses Attended 2013 
 
Advanced Gang Investigation    Honor Guard 
Advanced Impaired Driving                 ICI Core Course 
Amber Alert                                          ICI Homicide 
Arrest and Control                                Interview and Interrogation 
Assertive Supervision     Leadership Training 
Bath Salts                                               Legislative Update 
Build A Box-Computer Forensics   Motorcycle Mystery School 



 10

CA Gang Investigators Conf.    Patrol Rifle 
CA Sexual Assault     Perishable Skills 
CA Sex and Arson Registration   Radar Operator Child Abuse    
RIMS Conf.      CLEARS    
Sex Offender Supervision    Computer Digital Evidence   
SWAT Basic      Critical Incident and Response   
Taser Instructor     Drug Influence and Recognition  
Traffic Collision Investigation-Basic   Field Training Officer   
Traffic Collision Investigation-Intermediate  Terrorist Liaison Officer 
 
Motor Unit 
 
Motor Officer Alvaro "Danny" Santos was raised in southern California. When he was four years old his 
parents gave him a toy motorcycle police officer. He was fascinated with toy and grew up wanting to be a 
motorcycle police officer. He attended Sylmar High School, College of the Canyons in Santa Clarita, and 
Fresno State University receiving a Bachelor Science degree in Criminology. In 2006 he was hired by City 
of Lemoore hired as a police officer and in 2008 he was selected to replace Sergeant Matt Gonsalves as a 
Motor Officer.  
 
Officer Santos is married, with two children. He still has the Police Motorcycle that he received as a gift 
from his parents. The 27 year old toy has now been passed on to his son and it sits on the dresser of his 
bedroom.  Officer Santos is a critical part of the traffic unit. He believes that the unit is an essential part of 
the public safety system.  It is important because the Motor Officer can focus on traffic issues such as 
reckless drivers, distracted driving, and infractions. This specialized unit also deals with all of the traffic 
collisions that occur in the city. This is important because the Motor Officer gets first hand information of 
where and what kind of violations are being committed. They can focus on the problem and have a direct 
impact in reducing the number of traffic collisions and increasing the level of safety in the city.  
 
As a result of Officer Santos DUI enforcement efforts he has received the Mother's Against Drunk Drivers 
(MADD) award for 2009, 2010, 2011, and 2013. 
  
Officer Kyle Reynolds was born and raised in a Kings County law enforcement family. His father Lee 
Reynolds is a retired Kings Co. Commander. Reynolds graduated from Kings Christian in 2002 and from 
Fresno Pacific University with a degree in Business Administration. He resides in Kings County with his 
wife and son. 
 
In 2011, Reynolds replaced Sergeant Mundy as a Motors Officer in the Traffic Division.  Noticing that the 
number of collisions increase when there is a decrease in traffic enforcement, Reynolds focuses on 
violations that contribute to accidents such as unsafe speed, distracted driving, failure to yield to 
pedestrians, and unsafe turning movements. The more visible and active the traffic unit is, the safer the 
roads are for drivers. 
 
Police Reserve Unit 
 
The Lemoore Police Department Reserve Unit was established to supplement and assist regular, sworn 
police officers in their duties. This unit provides professional, sworn volunteer reserve officers who can 



 11

augment regular staffing levels. The LPD Reserve Program can also be a stepping stone into a regular full 
time police officer position. 
 
Reserve officers assist regular officers in the enforcement of laws and in maintaining peace and order 
within the community. Assignments of reserve officers will usually be to augment the Operations 
Division. Reserve officers may be assigned to other areas within the Department as needed. Reserve 
officers are required to work a minimum of 16 hours per month. 
 
Currently the Lemoore Police Department has two Level 1 Reserve Police Officers. During the past year 
the officers volunteered over 200 hours of time. Their time included augmenting patrol, assisting the 
evidence technician with property room maintenance while he was on vacation and assisted in purging 
over property from over 800 cases. The Reserve Officers have been called out to assist in the investigation 
of major traffic collisions, and assist the investigations division as well.  
 
One of the Officers has been placed on contract and is working patrol. This officer was assigned as the 
Lemoore High School Youth Development Officer for the time period of August thru November of 2013. 
During this time he insured the safety of the campus and was responsible for all law enforcement issues 
that occurred.  The unit is supervised by a Lemoore Police Department Sergeant. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Police Explorer Program 
 
Lemoore Police Explorer Post #1097 is open to young men and women ages 14 (and completed the 8th 
grade) and not yet 21 years old with an interest in learning more about the careers in the field of Law 
Enforcement.  The program provides career orientation experiences, leadership opportunities, and 
community service activities.   
 
Lemoore Police Department combines classroom and practice training with Ride-Alongs in police 
vehicles and Community Policing.  Explores develop leadership skills, respect for police officers and 
other explorers, new personal skills, and learn Law Enforcement Protocols.  In 2013 Lemoore Police 
Explorers had an opportunity to participate in Kings-Tulare Police Academy Explorer Day, Officers active 
shooter training, Volunteer Appreciation Dinner, Lemoore Christmas Parade, and Presents on Patrol.  The 
Lemoore Police Explorer Post had 13 youth participating during 2013.  
 



 12

Animal Control 
 
We again experienced a slight increase in Animal Control calls for service.  Our Community Service 
Officers responded to 1310 calls for service in 2013, compared to 1251 for 2012.  
 

840

143

19

196

7

105

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Loose
Animals

Returned Bites Warnings Citations Decease
Animals

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

 
 
Chaplain's Program 
 
In January 1996 Chief Bob Carden started the Lemoore Police Chaplains program with the help of Pastor 
Buck Dikes (Lemoore Assembly of God) and Pastor Gene Pensiero (Calvary Chapel of Hanford). These 
volunteers began providing 24/7 chaplaincy services to 25 officers, civilian employees, and family 
members of the Lemoore Police Department. 
Our Chaplains have: 

• Responded to unattended deaths 
• Delivered death notification 
• Responded to house and apartment fires 
• Helped with coordinating Red Cross services 
• Visited sick and injured officers and their family members 
• Counseled and made referrals 
• Helped with end-of-life care and decisions 
• Helped arrange assistance for those terminally ill 
• Supported the survivors of officers killed in the line of duty 
• Officiated over police wakes and funerals 
• Hosted official functions, e.g. the Annual Volunteers Banquet 
• Given the invocation at various official events 
 

Chaplains also assist officers in dealing with the incredible stress that comes from taking a life in the line 
of duty.  The Chaplain's are also proactive - meeting with the officers at roll calls, as well as being present 
on the street with the officers in their daily realm. By spending time with the officers in their element, 
Chaplains gain “Street Credibility” and are able to better connect with and relate to those whom they 
serve. 
 
Gang task Force 
 
Lemoore Police Department dedicates two full time officers to the multi-jurisdictional gang unit. 
 
 
 



 13

2013 Stats 
 

• Total Cases   153 
• Gang Enhancements  223 
• Arrests    235 
• FI’S    64 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Operation Red Raider 
 
On November 20, 2013 Kings County Gang Task Force culminated a lengthy investigation of the Norteno 
Gang members in Kings County.  As a result of the investigation, over 20 arrests were made for various 
charges such as possession of illegal weapons, possession of narcotics for sales, and many gang 
enhancements.  Seizures in this operation yielded in excess of a hundred pounds of marijuana, over 20 
pounds of methamphetamine, and several illegal assault rifles. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

Total Cases Gang
Enhancements

Arrests

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013



 14

K-9 Unit 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Lemoore Police Department began its Canine Unit in 2006 and has continued to maintain the highest 
standards for a Canine unit since its inception. The canine unit serves many purposes ranging from 
tracking wanted or missing persons to protecting the handler and other officers from assaults by subjects 
attacking the handler and fellow officers. 
 
During 2013 the canine unit, composed of the handler, Corporal Mike Kendall, and his canine partner 
"Kimo" served the citizens of Lemoore as the Lemoore Police Department Canine Unit.  
 
The canine unit had one physical apprehension of a suspect as well as 20 non-physical apprehensions of 
suspects. Our canine unit located a total of 18.3 ounces of methamphetamine and 63.6 ounces of 
marijuana in 2013. The canine unit additionally provided 5 canine demonstrations at local 
schools/businesses.   The unit also participated in Red Ribbon Week where they conducted several more 
canine demonstrations.   The canine unit, on a daily basis, served as a deterrent to criminal activities, 
officer assaults, as well as fleeing arrest by their mere presence at the scenes of criminal activities which 
can not be defined in numbers for statistical purposes. 
 
On December 11, 2013 the Lemoore Police Department added "Ares", a 2 year old Belgian Malinois from 
Holland to our unit to replace "Kimo" who will retire after 8 long and productive years of service.   "Ares" 
is scheduled to complete 8 weeks of training with Canine handler Mike Kendall in February and March of 
2014 before hitting the streets to continue the tradition of service to the citizens of Lemoore and the 
various agencies in Kings County. 
 
In 2013 the Lemoore Police Department Canine Unit also served the citizens of Kings County and various 
law enforcement agencies as follows: 
 

– Kings County Sheriff's Office: 6 narcotic related searches and 2 patrol related assists. 
– Hanford Police Department: 1 patrol related assist. 
– California Highway Patrol: 1 narcotic related search and 1 patrol related assist. 
– Corcoran Police Department: 1 narcotic related search 
– Central Valley Regional SWAT: 4 assists during tactical operations 
– Kings County Narcotic Task Force: 5 narcotic related searches 
– Kings County Gang Task Force: 7 narcotic related searches and 12 protective/cover assists 



 15

The Lemoore Police Department Canine Unit has met the challenge and proven to be an asset to out 
community, our officers, and our fellow law enforcement agencies. 
 
Code Enforcement 
 
The Lemoore Police Department Community Service Officer assumed Code Enforcement responsibilities 
in May of 2013.  CSO Soledad Perez is a people person, who knows how to deliver when it comes to 
customer service.  Perez has the ability to analyze situations and develop solutions to deal with them in a 
tactful and respectful manner.   She truly is a problem solver! 
 
Code Enforcement is in charge with helping to control community and neighborhood nuisance such as 
illegal dumping, abandoned or inoperable vehicles, and zoning violations.   
 
The Code Enforcement Officer works to improve quality of life issues in Lemoore's neighborhoods and 
business district through awareness, education and enforcement.  Removal of illegally dumped debris or 
accumulated trash and junk. 
 
Code Enforcement stats from May 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 
 
Abandoned Vehicles, Closed cases  17 
   Pending    1 
 
Property Maintenance, Closed Cases  96 
    Pending    6 
Conclusion 
 
It’s time to look forward, evaluating current and future law enforcement trends that will impact what the 
City of Lemoore Police Department priorities will be through calendar year 2014. 
 
While our mission of protecting people and crime prevention remains the same, like all organizations, we 
are facing many new challenges in accomplishing that mission. To ensure the Lemoore Police Department 
adapts to these new realities, we will engage in regular strategic planning to continuously assess the 
external environment for emerging challenges and enhance our capacity to respond effectively to these 
challenges. 
 
We believe in fostering open lines of communication with our citizen partners, and in being accountable to 
the public we serve. We believe it’s important to be transparent and accountable for our level of customer 
service. 
 
With the impacts of AB 109 and jail overcrowding, and early prison releases, we will continue to strive to 
enhance public safety and protect our community through three main actions: enforcement, education, and 
community involvement. We will provide pro-active patrol techniques with an emphasis on prevention of 
violent crimes, gang related incidents, and narcotics enforcement.  
 
We will work together with people and organizations in our communities to promote community policing 
as it connects to all aspects of quality of life issues in our daily lives.  



 16

 
The people we serve continue to be the key to our success as an organization. Whether it’s by being 
vigilant and reporting violators, partnering with us in educational endeavors, working together to solve 
problems or supporting us through your willingness to volunteer, together we can ensure Lemoore 
continues to be one of the safest places in the Central Valley to raise our families.  
 
Darrell Smith 
Chief of Police 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 Office of the 
City Clerk 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 5 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Janie Venegas, Administrative Secretary / City Clerk 

Date: February 26, 2014  

Subject: Appointment to the Kings Mosquito Abatement District  

 
Discussion: 
 
The term of Bobby Lee, the Representative for the City of Lemoore, has expired as of 
December 31, 2013.  The vacancy notice was posted at City Hall.  You would be 
appointing to a four year term ending December 31, 2017.  Attached is Letter of Interest 
from: 
 
  Bobby Lee 
 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
None 
 
Recommendation: 
 
None.  Mayor makes the appointment, with the concurrence of at least two Council 
Members. 
 





“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 Maintenance &     
Fleet Divisions 

 

711 W. Cinnamon Dr. 
Lemoore * CA 93245 

Phone *(559) 924-6739 
FAX * (559) 924-6808 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 6 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director 

Date: February 20, 2014  

Subject: Authorization to Bid 2014 Reclamite Street Project  

 
 
Discussion: 
 
Staff would like to request authorization to request bids for the Capital Improvement 
2014 Street Reclamite Sealing project.   The selected streets are attached and were 
discussed with City Council last fall as part of the CIP budget process.  The project area 
is quite large and will be completed in the 2014 year with approximately $187,200 of the 
total funds being expended. 
 
Bids will be brought to City Council for award at the April 1st meeting.  Upon award of a 
bid, the construction period will commence within the month. 
 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
The Capital Improvement Expenditures is estimated to be $242,689 at $1.08 per square 
yard with $187,277 from Gas Tax 033-4723C and $55,412 will be paid through PFMD 
Zone 2 funds for its scheduled (five year) maintenance program. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the City Council, by motion, authorize staff to go out to bid for the 2014 Reclamite 
Sealing Project, as per described. 
 
 
 



 
L140053 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
 

2014 RECLAMITE SEAL PROJECT 
Notice to Contractors, Bid Proposal,  

General Provisions, Special Provisions,  
Technical Specifications  

and Contract Forms 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

QUAD KNOPF, INC. 
5110 W. Cypress Avenue 
Visalia, California 93277 

559-733-0440 
 
 

FEBRUARY 2014 



i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
TITLE PAGE 

 
 
BID CONDITIONS ...................................................................................... BC-1 through BC-35 
 
GENERAL CONDITIONS ........................................................................ GC-1 through GC-41 
 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 PART I – SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS .............................. SC-1 through SC-8 
 PART II - CONSTRUCTION DETAILS ......................................CD-1 through CD-17 
 
APPENDIX A 
 
EXHIBITS 



BID CONDITIONS 



i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS – BID CONDITIONS 
 

TITLE PAGE 
 
 
NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS) ..................................................................... BC-1 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS ........................................................................................................ BC-3 
 

A. CONDITIONS OF PROPOSAL .............................................................................. BC-3 
B. BIDDER’S QUALIFICATIONS .............................................................................. BC-3 
C. EXAMINATION OF CONDITIONS, DRAWINGS, ETC. ................................... BC-3 
D. INTERPRETATION OF DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTS ............................... BC-4 
E. ADDENDA OR BULLETINS ................................................................................... BC-4 
F. BIDDERS INTERESTED IN MORE THAN ONE BID ........................................ BC-4 
G. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS ........................................................................ BC-4 
H. OPENING OF PROPOSALS ................................................................................... BC-4 
I. AWARD OR REJECTIONS OF BIDS .................................................................... BC-4 
J. TIME ALLOWED FOR SIGNING CONTRACT ................................................. BC-5 
K. BID PROTEST PROCEDURE ................................................................................ BC-5 

 

PROPOSAL  ..................................................................................................................................... BC-7 
 

 BID FORM .............................................................................................................................. BC-9 
 NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT ....................................................................................... BC-10 
 LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS ......................................................................................... BC-11 
 MAJOR MATERIAL SUPPLIERS INFORMATION ..................................................... BC-12 
 INFORMATION REQUIRED OF BIDDER ..................................................................... BC-14 
 STATEMENT OF LICENSURE ......................................................................................... BC-16 
 BID BOND ............................................................................................................................. BC-17 
 

AGREEMENT ................................................................................................................................... BC-20 
 

CORPORATE CERTIFICATE .......................................................................................... BC-23 
 

PERFORMANCE BOND ................................................................................................................. BC-24 
 

LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND ................................................................................................ BC-26 
 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE................................................................................................... BC-28 
 

WORKER’S COMPENSATION/EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY  
    ENDORSEMENT FORM ............................................................................................................. BC-30 
 

GENERAL LIABILITY ENDORSEMENT FORM ...................................................................... BC-31 
 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY ENDORSEMENT FORM .............................................................. BC-32 
 

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH  
    STATE LABOR CODE SECTION 3700  .................................................................................... BC-33 
 

NOTICE OF AWARD ....................................................................................................................... BC-34 
 

NOTICE TO PROCEED .................................................................................................................. BC-35 
 

ACCEPTANCE NOTICE ................................................................................................................. BC-35 



NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 1 

NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS) 
2014 RECLAMITE SEAL PROJECT 

 
Sealed proposals will be received at the office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, 
CA 93245, until   p.m.,   , 2014 and promptly thereafter all proposals that have been 
duly received will be publicly opened and read aloud for furnishing to said City all labor, materials, 
equipment, transportation, and services necessary to perform work as follows: 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
2014 RECLAMITE SEAL PROJECT 

 
Instructions to bidders, Plans, Specifications, and proposal forms may be inspected at the office of 
the City Engineer, c/o Quad Knopf, Inc., 5110 W. Cypress, Visalia, CA 93277, and copies of said 
documents may be obtained at said office upon payment of thirty-five dollars ($35.00) for each set 
(nonrefundable).  No bid will be received unless it is made on a proposal form furnished in the 
Documents.  Special attention of prospective bidders is called to the "Proposal Requirements and 
Conditions" annexed to the blank form of proposal, for full directions as to bidding, etc.  Any 
questions regarding this project during the bidding phase shall be directed to the Project Engineer, 
Mr. Harry A. Tow, and he will field the questions and provide the clarification or answers to your 
questions. 
 
A certified check, cashier's check, or bidder's bond in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the Base 
Bid, made payable to the City of Lemoore, will be required to accompany each proposal. 
 
The City of Lemoore is a charter City and has passed City ordinance 2000-07, exempting the 
payments of (STATE) prevailing wages from City projects. 
 
All bids are to be compared on the basis of the City Engineer's estimate of the quantities of work to 
be done.  The City of Lemoore reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive any 
informality in any bid received not affected by law.  Proposals received after the time announced for 
the bid opening will not be considered.  No bidder may withdraw their bid after the time announced 
for the bid opening. 
 
The project, if awarded, will be based upon all work contemplated in the Base Bid.   
 
No bids will be accepted from a Contractor who has not been licensed in accordance with the 
provisions of Chapter 9, Division III of the Business and Professions Code.  The proper 
classification required to perform this Contract is "A", General Engineering Contractor, or a 
combination of specialty licenses that would include all items of work. 
 
The Contractor may elect to receive 100 percent of payments due under the Contract documents 
from time to time, without retention from any portion of the payment by the City, by depositing 
securities of equivalent value with the City in accordance with the provisions of Section 22300 of the 
California Public Contract Code.  Such securities, if deposited by the Contractor, shall be valued by 
the City, whose decision on valuation of the securities shall be final.  Securities eligible for 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 2 

investment under this provision shall be limited to those listed in Section 22300 and Section 16430 
of the California Government Code. 
 
       City of Lemoore 
 
 
 
 
       Mary J. Venegas 
       City Clerk 
 



INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 3 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 
A. CONDITIONS OF PROPOSAL 
 

Proposals to receive consideration shall be made in accordance with the following 
instructions: 

 
1. The proposal shall be made upon the forms provided and with all items legibly filled out 

in ink or typewritten.  Amounts are to be stated in figures, and noted total amounts in 
words, and the signatures of all persons signing shall be written.  Forms containing 
alterations or erasures shall be initialed by the bidder.  Forms shall be delivered as 
specified in the Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids). 

 
2. Proposals shall contain only the quotations for which the form is prepared.  Proposals are 

to be submitted for the entire work. 
 

3. Each proposal shall be accompanied by a Certified or Cashier’s check or bidder’s Bond 
in an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the proposal amount.  Said check or bond 
shall be a guarantee that the bidder, if awarded the work, will enter into a contract within 
the time prescribed.  The bid security of the two (2) lowest bidders will be retained until 
the contract is awarded.  The bid securities of all other bidders shall be returned within 
two weeks of bid opening.  

 
4. Proposals which are incomplete, unbalanced, conditional, or obscure, which contain 

additions not called for, erasures, alterations, or irregularities of any kind, or which do 
not comply with the Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids) and Instructions to Bidders 
may be rejected at the option of the City. 

 
B. BIDDER’S QUALIFICATIONS 
 

The bidder shall be a licensed contractor in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 9, 
Division III of the Business and Professional Code.  Bidders shall possess a Class A license 
or a combination of Specialty Licenses that would include all items of work. No award will 
be made to a bidder who is not so licensed.  The bidder shall, upon request, furnish evidence 
of responsibility as may be specified.  The bidder shall complete the Statement of Licensure 
in the Proposal. 
 

C. EXAMINATION OF CONDITIONS, DRAWINGS, ETC. 
 

Bidders must examine and judge for themselves the nature of the proposed work and the 
work to be done.  The Plans for the work will show conditions as they are supposed or 
believed by the Engineer to exist, but it is neither intended nor to be inferred that the 
conditions as shown thereon constitute a representation by the City or its officers that such 
conditions actually exist, nor shall the City or any of its officers or representatives be liable 
for any loss sustained by the Contractor as a result of any variance between conditions 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 4 

shown on the Plans and the actual conditions as revealed during the progress of the work or 
otherwise. 
The Contractor’s attention is directed to the possible existence of pole lines, pipelines, 
building structures, and other private or public improvements which may be within the limits 
of work or adjacent thereto and may or may not be shown on the Plans. 
 

D. INTERPRETATION OF DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTS 
 

If any person contemplating submitting a bid for the proposed contract is in doubt as to the 
true meaning of any part of the Plans, Specifications, or other proposed Contract Documents, 
or finds discrepancies, he may submit to the Engineer a written request for an interpretation 
or correction thereof.  The person submitting the request will be responsible for its prompt 
delivery.  Any interpretation or correction of the proposed documents will be made only by 
addendum duly issued, and a copy of any such addendum will be mailed or delivered to each 
person who has received a set of said documents.  Neither the City nor the Engineer will be 
responsible for any other explanation or interpretation of the project documents. 
 

E. ADDENDA OR BULLETINS 
 

Any addenda or bulletins issued during the time of bidding shall become a part of the 
documents and shall be covered in the bid, and made a part of the contract.  
Acknowledgement of addenda or bulletins, as provided in the addendum or bulletin, shall be 
submitted with each proposal. 
 

F. BIDDERS INTERESTED IN MORE THAN ONE BID 
 

No person, firm, or corporation shall be allowed to make or file or be interested in more than 
one bid for the same work, except alternate bids which are called for.  A person, firm, or 
corporation who has submitted a subproposal to a bidder, or who has quoted prices on 
material to a bidder, is not hereby disqualified from submitting a subproposal or quoting 
material prices to other bidders. 

 
G. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS 
 

Any bidder may withdraw his proposal, either personally or by a telegraphic, written, or 
faxed request, at any time prior to the scheduled time for the opening of the bids. 
 

H. OPENING OF PROPOSALS 
 

Bids will be opened publicly and examined.  They will be tabulated for comparison on the 
basis of the total base bid price. 
 

I. AWARD OR REJECTION OF BIDS 
 

The City reserves the right to reject all bids, in which case no award will be made.  If award 
is made, it will be made within thirty (30) calendar days of the bid opening and will be to the 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 5 

single responsive, responsible bidder whose bid for construction is the lowest total base bid 
amount.  The City reserves the right to reject any and all bids, and to waive any informality 
in the bids received.  The Contractor shall bid on all of the items included in the bid form.  
No award will be made on the basis of individual bid items. 
 
The bidder’s attention is specifically directed to the requirements of the Contract Documents 
with respect to insurance, maintenance of facilities at the site of the work, and inspection. 
 
In case of a discrepancy on the proposal between words and figures, the words shall prevail.  
If erasures or other changes appear on this proposal, each such erasure or other change must 
be initialed by the person signing the proposal. 
 
In the event there are unit price Bid items and the amount indicated for a unit price Bid item 
does not equal the product of the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall govern and the 
correct amount will be computed accordingly, and the Bidder shall be bound by said 
correction.  In the event there is more than one Bid item in a Bid Schedule and the total 
indicated for the Schedule does not agree with the sum of the individual items, the prices Bid 
on the individual items shall govern and the correct total for the Schedule will be computed 
accordingly, and the Bidder shall be bound by said correction. 
 

J. TIME ALLOWED FOR SIGNING CONTRACT 
 

The successful bidder or bidders will be allowed ten (10) calendar days after the date the 
contract is awarded to him to deliver to the City the contract with his signature affixed 
thereto, together with the prescribed Guarantee Bonds and Insurance Certificates and Special 
Endorsements.  No proposal shall be considered binding upon the City until the execution of 
the contract.  Failure to execute a contract and file the prescribed bonds and insurance 
certificates and special endorsements within the specified time will be just cause for the 
annulment of the award and the forfeiture of the proposal guarantee. 

 
K. BID PROTEST PROCEDURE 
  

The lack of prompt procedure to resolve disputes regarding the bidding process would impair 
the Owner's ability to carry out its purpose of contracting this project in a timely manner. 
Therefore, to the maximum extent authorized by law and notwithstanding any other 
procedures specified in these Contract Documents, all disputes and/or protests regarding the 
bidding process shall be subject to the following procedure. In submitting a Bid to the Owner 
for this project, the Bidder agrees to comply with and to be bound by this procedure. 

 
1. Any Bid protest must be submitted in writing to the City before 5:00 p.m. on the fifth 

(5th) working day following Bid opening. 
 

2. The Bid protest must contain a complete statement of the basis for the protest, and all 
supporting documentation. A non-refundable fee of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) 
made payable to the "City of Lemoore" shall accompany the protest documents and 
will be used by the Owner to recover costs in evaluating the bid protest. A bid protest 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 6 

submitted without the requisite fee will be considered incomplete and will not be 
considered by the Owner. 

 
3. The party filing the protest must have actually submitted a Bid for the work. A 

subcontractor of a party submitting a Bid for the work may not submit a Bid protest. 
 

4. A party may not rely on the Bid protest submitted by another Bidder, but must timely 
pursue its own protest. 

 
5. The protest must refer to the specific portion of the Contract Documents which forms 

the basis for the protest. 
 

6. The protest must include the name, address and telephone number of the person 
representing the protesting party. 

 
7. The party filing the protest must concurrently transmit a copy of the initial protest 

document and any attached documentation to all other Bidders, and the Bid protest 
must contain proof of service of the Bid protest on the other Bidders. 

 
8. The protested Bidder shall have up to five (5) working days after the filing of a Bid 

protest to submit a written response. The responding Bidder shall transmit the 
response to the protesting Bidder concurrent with the deliver to the Owner. 

 
9. The procedure and time limits set forth in this paragraph are mandatory and are the 

Bidder's sole and exclusive remedy in the event of Bid protest. The Bidder's failure to 
comply with these procedures shall constitute a waiver of any right to further pursue 
the Bid protest, including filing a Government Code Claim or legal proceedings. 

 
The Owner will evaluate all proper Bid protests before the award of the contract to the 
lowest responsive and responsible Bidder. 

 
 

 
 



PROPOSAL 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 7 

PROPOSAL TO THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
KINGS COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

FOR 
2014 RECLAMITE SEAL PROJECT 

 
 
PROPOSAL OF _________________________________________________________(hereinafter 

called “Bidder”) organized and existing under the laws of the State of ______________________, 

doing business as _______________________________________________________________.* 

* Insert “a corporation,” “a partnership,” or “an individual” as applicable. 

 
 
TO: The City Council, City of Lemoore 
 (Hereinafter called “City”) 
 
The undersigned, as bidder, declares that he has carefully examined the location of the proposed 
work, that he has thoroughly examined all the Contract Documents and Plans, and that this proposal 
is made without collusion with any other person, firm, or corporation, and that all laws and 
ordinances relating to the interest of public officers in the contract have been complied with in every 
respect; AND he proposes and agrees, if this proposal is accepted, that he will contract with the City 
in the form of contract contained herein to provide all necessary machinery, tools, equipment, and 
other means of construction, and to furnish all materials and provide superintendence, overhead 
expenses, and all labor and expenses of whatever nature to construct the work in accordance with the 
Plans and the detailed Specifications and other contract provisions contained herein or reasonably 
implied thereby, or as necessary to complete the work in the manner and within the time named 
herein and according to the requirements and to the reasonable satisfaction of the Engineer, and to 
indemnify the City against any loss or damage arising from any act of the undersigned as Contractor 
and that he will take as full payment therefor the sum stated below.  
 
Bidder hereby agrees to commence work under this contract on or before the date specified in the 
written Notice to Proceed from the City, and to fully complete the project within the time allotted in 
the Special Provisions.  Bidder further agrees to forfeit and pay the City for each calendar day of 
delay in the completion of the project as provided for in the Special Provisions. 
 
The undersigned understands that the quantities given are approximate only, being given as a basis 
for the comparison of bids, and the City of Lemoore does not, expressly or by implication, warrant 
that the given quantities of work will be performed but reserves the right to increase or decrease the 
amounts of any portion of the work, or to omit portions of the work as may deemed necessary or 
advisable by the Engineer, without claim for damage or loss of anticipated profit.  The undersigned 
understands that payment will be made only on the basis of the actual quantities or work performed. 
This proposal consists of the following: 
 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 8 

a. Bid form showing unit prices and the amount bid for each item of work. 
 
b. Noncollusion Affidavit. 
 
c. Information required of bidders including a list of subcontractors and a list of suppliers of 

major equipment and materials. 
 
d. Completed Statement of Licensure. 
 
e. Bid security in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the total amount of base bid in accordance 

with the stated requirements contained in the General Conditions. 
 
f. Qualifications of the Contractor  
 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 9 

P R O P O S A L 
 

TO THE CITY OF LEMOORE: 
 

The undersigned declares that he has carefully examined the location of the proposed work, that he has 
carefully examined the Plans and Specifications and hereby proposes to furnish all materials and do all the 
work required to complete the said work in accordance with said Plans and Specifications, for the prices as 
listed below: 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
2014 RECLAMITE SEAL PROJECT 

 

BASE BID 

ITEM QNTY. UNIT ITEM WITH UNIT PRICE  
WRITTEN IN WORDS 

PRICE TOTAL 

1.  L.S. L.S. *Mobilization, including bonds, permits, 
licenses, fees required to perform the work, 
complete and in place @  
 
  Dollars per Lump Sum Amount.  /L.S. 

 

2.  L.S. L.S. Provide, and Remove, all Temporary Signage 
and Traffic Control, complete and in place @ 
 
 
  Dollars per Lump Sum Amount.  /L.S. 

 

3.  L.S. L.S. Apply    Square Yards of Reclamite 
Seal Coat, distributing, sanding and sand 
removal, complete and in place @  
   Dollars per Lump Sum 
Amount.  /L.S. 

 

4.  L.S. L.S. Replace all existing striping, pavement legends, 
and reflective markers as described in the 
Special Provisions, complete and in place @  
 
 
  Dollars per Lump Sum Amount.  /L.S. 

 

TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT  $ 
 

Total Base Bid Amount (written in words) is         
 
       Dollars and       Cents. 
 

In the event of discrepancy between words and figures, the words shall prevail. 
 

*Mobilization Lump Sum Item No. 1 shall not exceed 5% of Total Base Bid. 
 

List the name of the person who inspected the site of the proposed work for your firm: 
 

      .  Date of Inspection:       



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 10 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 

 
Project: City of Lemoore 

2014 RECLAMITE SEAL Project 
 
 
TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER AND SUBMITTED WITH BID 
 
              
(Name) 
 
being first duly sworn, deposes and says that he or she is 
 

 
of 
 
     (Bidding Entity) 
 
The party making the foregoing bid certifies that the bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf 
of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that the 
bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or 
solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, 
conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone 
shall refrain from bidding; that the bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by 
agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other 
bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, 
or to secure any advantage against the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the 
proposed contract; that all statements contained in the bid are true; and, further, that the bidder has 
not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents 
thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any 
corporation, partnership, company association, bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof to 
effectuate a collusive or sham bid. 
 
(Title 23 United States Code Section 112) 
 
(California Public Contract Code Section 7106; Stats. 1988, c. 1548, Section 1) 
 
 
               
Contractor       Date 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ________________day of ___________________, 2014 
 
              
Notary Public 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 11 

SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 4100 to 4113 inclusive, of the Government Code of the State of 
California, every bidder shall set forth the name and location of the place of business of each 
subcontractor who will perform work or labor in or about the construction of the work or 
improvement in an amount in excess of one-half (1/2) of one percent (1%) of the Bidder's total bid.  
If the Bidder fails to specify a subcontractor for any portion of the work in excess of one half (1/2) of 
one percent (1%) of the Bidder's total bid, he agrees to perform that portion himself.  At least 50% of 
the bid price shall be work performed by the Bidder’s own organization.  The following is the 
required list of subcontractors: 
 

BIDDER'S LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS 
(Use extra sheet if necessary) 

 
Description of 

Work Subcontracted 
 Name and Address  

of Subcontractors 
 Contractor’s 

License No. 
 Percent of  

Total Work 
 
 

      

 
 

      

 
 

      

 
 

      

 
 

      

 
 

      

 
 

      

 
 

      

 
 

      

 
 

      

 
 

      

 
 
 
              
  Date     (Contractor's Signature) 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 12 

MAJOR MATERIAL SUPPLIERS INFORMATION 
 
The bidder shall indicate opposite each item of material listed below the name of the manufacturer or 
supplier of the material proposed to be furnished under the bid.  Failure to comply with this 
requirement may render the proposal informal and may cause its rejection. 
 
 Equipment/Material   Manufacturer or Supplier  
 
1. Reclamite             
 
2. Sand             
 
3. Traffic Paint            
 
4. Reflectors             
 
 
 
Awarding a contract under this bid will not imply approval by the City of manufacturers or suppliers 
listed by the bidder.  No substitution will be permitted after award of contract unless equipment or 
material of the listed manufacturer or supplier cannot meet the specifications. 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 13 

We, the undersigned, further agree, if this proposal shall be accepted by the Owner, to sign the 
contract and to furnish the required bonds, with satisfactory surety or sureties, within ten (10) 
calendar days from the date of mailing of the Notice of Award, and if the undersigned shall fail to 
contract as aforesaid, it shall be understood that he has abandoned the contract and therefore this 
proposal shall be null and void and our certified check or bond shall be forfeited to and become the 
property of the City. 
 
WITNESS our hands this __________________ day of __________________________, 2014. 
 
Signature of bidder or bidders with business address and phone number: 
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
NOTICE: In case of a corporation, list below the names and addresses of the following officers: 
 
President:              
 
Secretary:              
 
Treasurer:              
 
Manager:              



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 14 

INFORMATION REQUIRED OF BIDDER 
 
The bidder shall furnish the following information.  Failure to comply with this requirement will 
render the Proposal non-responsive and may cause its rejection.  Additional sheets shall be attached 
as required. 
 
(1) Number of years as a contractor in construction work of this type:      

              
 
(2) Names and titles of all officers of contractor's firm: 
 
              

              

              

              
 
(3) Name of person who inspected site of proposed work for your firm:     
              

 
Date of Inspection:            

 
(4) Name, address, and telephone number of surety company and agent who will provide the 

required bonds on this contract:          

              

              
 
(5) ATTACH TO THIS BID the experience resume of the person who will be designated chief 

construction superintendent. 
 
(6) List up to five projects completed as of recent date involving Reclamite or asphaltic 

emulsion fog seal or asphalt rejuvenator work of similar type and complexity, preferably in 
urban areas: 

 
Project:              

Year:               

Contract Price:             

Name, address and telephone number of owner:         

              

Name and telephone number of Contact Person:         

              



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 15 

 
Project:              

Year:               

Contract Price:             

Name, address and telephone number of owner:         

              

Name and telephone number of Contact Person:         

              

 
Project:              

Year:               

Contract Price:             

Name, address and telephone number of owner:         

              

Name and telephone number of Contact Person:         

              

 
Project:              

Year:               

Contract Price:             

Name, address and telephone number of owner:         

              

Name and telephone number of Contact Person:         

              

 
Project:              

Year:               

Contract Price:             

Name, address and telephone number of owner:         

              

Name and telephone number of Contact Person:         

              



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 16 

STATEMENT OF LICENSURE 
 
UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, I swear that the license or certificate of licensure (a copy of 
which is attached hereto) is mine, is current and valid, and is in a classification appropriate to the 
work to be undertaken. 
 
              
        Licensee 
 
 
              
        Contractor’s License Number and Expiration Date 
 
 
              
        License Classification 
 
 

       Signed:       
 
 
 

If the bidder possesses a current City of Lemoore Business License at Bid Day, the bidder certifies 
its number is   , dated   . 
 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 17 

BID BOND 
 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that         
 
_________________________________________________________, as Principal, and   
 
______________________________________________________________, as Surety, are hereby 
held and firmly bound unto the City of Lemoore as Owner in the penal sum of ___________ 
_______________________________________________________________________, for the 
payment of which, well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, our 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns. 
 

The condition of the above obligation is such that whereas the Principal has 
submitted to the City of Lemoore a certain bid, attached hereto and hereby made a part 
hereof, to enter into a contract in writing for the 2014 RECLAMITE SEAL PROJECT in the 
City of Lemoore for the City of Lemoore. 

 
NOW THEREFORE. 
 

(a) If said bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate, 
 
(b) If said bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in 

the Form of Contract attached hereto (properly completed in accordance with said 
bid) and shall furnish a bond for this faithful performance of said contract and for the 
payment of all persons performing labor or furnishing materials in connection 
therewith, and shall in all other respects perform the agreement created by the 
acceptance of said bid, then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall 
remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood and agreed that the liability 
of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall in no event exceed the penal 
amount of this obligation as stated herein. 

 
The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its 
bond shall in no way be impaired or affected by any extension of time within which the City may 
accept such bid; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension. 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 18 

BID BOND, PAGE TWO 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and 
such of them as are corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these 
presents to be signed by corporate officers, the day and year first set forth below. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  Executed on__________________________, 2014. 
 
  ____________________________________ 
  Principal 
 
 
(Seal if Corporation) By: ____________________________________ 
 
 Title: ____________________________________ 
 
(Attached Acknowledgement of Authorized Representative of Principal) 
 
Any claims under this bond may be addressed to: 
 
 
______________________________ (name and address of Surety) 
  
______________________________ 
  
______________________________ 
 
  
______________________________ (name and address of Surety’s agent for services and   

process in California, if different from above) 
______________________________ 
 
______________________________ 
  
______________________________ (telephone number of Surety’s agent  
 in California, if different from above) 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 19 

BID BOND, PAGE THREE 
 

(Attach Acknowledgement) 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Surety 
  
 ______________________________ 
 Attorney-in-Fact 
 

 

NOTICE:  No substitution or revision to this bond form will be accepted.  Sureties must be authorized to do 
business in and have an agent for service and process in California.  Certified copy of Power of Attorney must 
be attached. 
 
 



 
AGREEMENT 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 20 

AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, entered into by and between      hereinafter referred to as 
“Contractor”, and the City of Lemoore, hereinafter referred to as “the City;” 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of said City has awarded a contract in the amount of $    
for performing the work hereinafter mentioned in accordance with the sealed proposal of said Contractor. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
A. SCOPE OF WORK 
 

The Contractor shall perform all the work defined as the base bid and selected alternatives (if 
applicable) , and furnish all the labor, materials, equipment, and all utility and transportation services 
required to complete all of the work of construction and installation of the improvements at the time 
and in the manner provided in accordance with the Plans, Proposal, Special Provisions, Contract 
Documents, and Specifications for the 2014 RECLAMITE SEAL PROJECT in the City of 
Lemoore and the County of Kings for the City of Lemoore, the items, quantities, and compensation 
for which are set forth in the Contractor’s proposal therefore on file in the office of the City Manager 
of said City, and which by reference are made a part of this agreement. 

 
B. COMPONENT PARTS 

 
This Contract shall consist of the following documents, each of which is on file in the office of the 
City Manager of said City, and all of which are incorporated herein and made a part hereof by 
reference: 
 
1. This Agreement. 

2. Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (bids). 

3. Accepted Proposal. 

4. Specifications. 

5. Performance Bond. 

6. Labor and Materials Bond. 

7. Certification of compliance with State Labor Code Section 3700. 

8. Plans, Detailed Drawings (Exhibits), Specifications, Special Provisions, and any 
Modifications to aforesaid prior to execution of this agreement. 

9. Instructions to Bidders. 

10. General Conditions. 

11. City of Lemoore Standard Specifications. 

12. Referenced Caltrans Standard Specifications. 

13. Addresses. 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 21 

AGREEMENT, PAGE TWO 
 
 

C. TIME OF PERFORMANCE 

 
The Contractor shall begin work within ten (10) consecutive calendar days after execution of the 
contract by the City and receipt of the Notice to Proceed from the City.  The work shall be completed 
within the times set forth in the Special Provisions.  Time is of the essence, and forfeiture due to 
delay will be assessed the Contractor as provided for in the Supplementary Conditions. 

D. PAYMENTS 

 
Payments will be made by the City to the Contractor for said work performed at the times and in the 
manner provided in the Specifications and at the prices stated in the Contractor’s proposal. 

 
E.  ASSIGNMENT  
 

By submitting a bid to the City of Lemoore, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it 
will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may 
have under section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C., Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 Division  7 of the Business and Professions Code), 
arising from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body 
pursuant to the bid.  

 
F.  ATTORNEY’S FEES 
 

If either of the parties to this agreement brings any legal action or seeks arbitration regarding any 
provision of this agreement, the prevailing party in the litigation or arbitration shall be entitled to 
recover reasonable attorney’s fees from the other party, in addition to any other relief that may be 
granted.  This provision applies to the entire agreement. 
 

This agreement is made and executed in duplicate and either copy shall, for all purposes, be deemed an 
original. 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 22 

AGREEMENT, PAGE THREE 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The City of Lemoore has caused these presents to be executed by its officers 
thereunto duly authorized, and the Contractor has subscribed same. 
 
 
Dated:     , 2014         
       Contractor 
 
 
      By:        
 
(Seal if Corporation)            
 
 
 
      CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
Dated:     , 2014 
 
 

By:        
       City Manager 
 

   Attest:        
       City Clerk 
 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 23 

AGREEMENT, PAGE FOUR 
 
 

CORPORATE CERTIFICATE 
 

I, ____________________________________________________________, certify that I am the  

_________________________________Secretary of the Corporation named as CONTRACTOR in 

the forgoing contract; that ___________________________________, who signed said contract on 

behalf of CONTRACTOR was then _____________________ of said corporation, and that said 

contract was duly signed for and in behalf of said corporation by authority of its governing body and 

is within the scope of its corporate powers. 

 

         

Date Secretary 

 

 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 24 

PERFORMANCE BOND (100% OF CONTRACT PRICE) 
 

KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that ____________________________________ 

 
________________________________________________________________, as Principal, and  
 
______________________________________________________________, as Surety are hereby 
held and firmly bound unto the City of Lemoore as Owner in the penal sum of  
_______________________________________________________________________, for the 
payment of which, well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, our 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lemoore, at its regular meeting of        
has awarded to Principal a contract for the 2014 RECLAMITE SEAL PROJECT in the City of 
Lemoore for the City of Lemoore, and, 
 
WHEREAS, said Principal is required under the terms of said contact to provide a bond for the 
faithful performance of said contract. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the above-
bonded Principal, his or its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in all things 
stand to and abide by, and will truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions and agreements in 
said contract and any alteration thereof made as therein provided, on his or their part, to be kept and 
performed at the time of the contract and during a one-year warranty period and in the manner 
therein specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall indemnify 
and save harmless the Obligee, its officers, and agents, as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall 
become null and void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and virtue. 
 
And the said Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said 
Surety and its bond shall in no way be impaired or affected by any extension of time within which 
the City may accept such bid; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension. 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 25 

PERFORMANCE BOND, PAGE TWO 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and 
such of them as are corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these 
presents to be signed by corporate officers, to three (3) identical counterparts, each of which shall for 
all purposes be deemed an original thereof, the day and year first set forth below. 
  
 

    Executed on      , 2014 
 
              
       Principal 
 
(Seal if Corporation)    By:        
 

     Title:        
 
(Attach Acknowledgement of Authorized Representative of Principal) 
 
Any claims under this bond may be addressed to: 
 
      
 (name and address of Surety) 
      
  
      
  
  (name and address of Surety’s agent for services and 

process in California, if different from above) 
      
 
      
  
  (telephone number of Surety’s agent  
 in California, if different from above) 
(Attach Acknowledgement) 
         
 Surety 
  
         
 Attorney-in-Fact 

NOTICE:  No substitution or revision to this bond form will be accepted.  Sureties must be authorized to do 
business in and have an agent for service and process in California.  Certified copy of Power of Attorney must be 
attached. 
 
 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 26 

LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND  
(100% OF CONTRACT PRICE) 

 

KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that         

 
_______________________________________________________________________, as Principal, and  
 
______________________________________________________________, as Surety are hereby held and 
firmly bound unto the City of Lemoore as Owner in the penal sum of       
_______________________________________________________________________, for the payment of 
which, well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, and assigns. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lemoore, at its regular meeting of     has 
awarded to Principal a contract for the 2014 RECLAMITE SEAL PROJECT for the City of Lemoore, and, 
 
WHEREAS, said Principal is required under the terms of said contact to provide a bond for the faithful 
performance of said contract. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such, that if the above-bonded Principal and all 
subcontractors to whom any portion of the work provided for in said contract is sublet, his or its heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall promptly make payment for all labor performed and 
services rendered and materials furnished in the performance of the work provided for in said contract, then 
the above obligation shall be null and void; otherwise to remain in full force and virtue. PROVIDED, 
however, that this bond is subject to the following conditions and limitations: 
 
a. All persons who have performed labor or rendered services or furnished materials as aforesaid shall 

have a direct right of action against the Principal and Surety on this bond, which right of action shall 
be asserted in proceedings instituted in the State in which labor was performed or services rendered 
or materials furnished (or where labor has been performed or services rendered or materials furnished 
in more than one state, then in any such state).  Insofar as permitted by the laws of such state, such 
right of action shall be asserted in a proceeding instituted in the name of the Obligee to the use and 
benefit of the person instituting such action and of all other persons having claims hereunder, and any 
other person having a claim hereunder shall have the right to be made a part of such proceedings (but 
not later than six months and ninety days after the complete performance of said contract and final 
settlement thereof) and to have such claim adjudicated in said action and judgement rendered thereon. 

 
b. The Surety shall not be liable hereunder for any damages recoverable under any worker’s 

compensation or employer’s liability statute. 
 

c. In no event shall the Surety be liable for a greater sum than the penalty of this bond, or subject to any 
suit, action, or proceeding thereof, and the alteration or addition to the terms of the contract, or to the 
work to be performed thereunder or the Specifications accompanying the same shall not in any  way 
affect its obligations of this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of 
time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the contract, or the work or the Specifications. 

 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 27 

LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND, PAGE TWO 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of 
them as are corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed 
by corporate officers, to three (3) identical counterparts, each of which shall for all purposes be deemed an 
original thereof, the day and year first set forth below. 
 
     Executed on       , 2014 
 
              
       Principal 
 
 
(Seal if Corporation)   By:         
 
     Title:         
 
(Attach Acknowledgement of Authorized Representative of Principal) 
 
Any claims under this bond may be addressed to: 
 
______________________________ 
 (name and address of Surety) 
______________________________ 
  
______________________________ 
  
______________________________ (name and address of Surety’s agent for services and 

process in California, if different from above) 
______________________________ 
 
______________________________ 
 
______________________________ (telephone number of Surety’s agent  
 in California, if different from above) 
 
(Attach Acknowledgement) 
 
    
 Surety 
  
    
 Attorney-in-Fact 
 

 

NOTICE:  No substitution or revision to this bond form will be accepted.  Sureties must be authorized to do 
business in and have an agent for service and process in California.  Certified copy of Power of Attorney must 
be attached. 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 28 

 

 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 
TO 

CITY OF LEMOORE (“the City”) 
Lemoore, California 

 

Only this Certificate 
of Insurance Form 
will be Accepted 

 

This certifies to the City that the following described policies have been issued to the insured named below and are in force at this 
time. 
 Insured________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Address________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Description of operations/locations/products insured (show contract name and/or number, if any)_________________ 
 

POLICIES AND INSURERS LIMITS POLICY 
NUMBER 

EXPIRATION 
DATE 

°WORKERS COMPENSATION 
 

   (Insurer) 
 
Best’s Rating______________ 
 

 
 
 

Employers Liability 
 

                           $__________________ 

  

°GENERAL LIABILITY 
 
Check Policy Type: 
 
� Comprehensive 
               Or 
� Commercial 
 
Check Coverage Type: 
 
� “Claims-Made” 
              -or- 
� “Occurrence” 
 

    (Insurer) 
 
Best’s Rating________________ 

Comprehensive General Liability 
 
Each Occurrence $_________________ 
 
Aggregate           $_________________ 
 

 
Commercial General Liability 
 
Each Occurrence $_________________ 
 
General Aggregate, either: per 
project/location   $_________________ 
       -or- 
twice occurrence 
 limit                   $_________________ 

 

  

°BUSINESS AUTO POLICY 
 
 
Liability Coverage Symbol  _____ 
 
 

   (Insurer) 
 
Best’s Rating _________________ 

Each Person     $___________________ 
 
Each Accident  $___________________ 
 
Each Accident, 
Property Damage$__________________ 
         -or 
Combine Single Limit 
                           $__________________ 

  

°UMBRELLA LIABILITY 
Check Coverage Type: 
 
� “Claims-Made” 
              -or- 
� “Occurrence” 
 

    (Insurer) 
 
Best’s Rating ________________ 

 
 
Occurrence/Aggregate 
                       
                           $_________________ 
 
Self-Insured Retention 
                      
                           $__________________ 

  

 
NOTE:  If commercial general liability insurance is used or if aggregate limits are endorsed to the comprehensive general liability 
policy form, the general aggregate must apply per location./project or the aggregate limit must be at least twice the occurrence limit. 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 29 

 
THE FOLLOWING ARE IN EFFECT: Yes NO 

The City, the Engineer, their officials, officers, employees, and volunteers are named on all liability 
policies described above as Insured as respect:  (a) activities performed for the City by or on behalf of 
the named Insured, (b) products and completed operations of the Named 
Insured, and (c) any premises owned, leased, or used by the Named Insured. 

  

Products and Completed Operations   
The undersigned will m ail to the City 30 days’ written notice of cancellation or reduction of coverage 
of limits. 

  

Cross Liability Clause (or equivalent wording)   
Personal Injury, Perils A,B and C   
Broad Form Property Damage   
X, C, U Hazards Included   
Contractual Liability Coverage applying to this Contract   
Liquor Liability   
Coverage afforded the City, the Engineer, their officials, officers employees, and volunteers as Insured 
applies primary and not excess or contributing to any insurance issued in the name of the City. 

  

Waiver of Subrogation from Worker’s Compensation insurer.   
 
This certificate is issued as a matter of information.  This certificate is not an insurance policy and does not amend, extend, or alter the 
coverage afforded by the policies listed herein.  Notwithstanding any requirement, term, condition, of any contract or other document 
with respect to which this certificate of insurance may be issued or may pertain, the insurance afforded by the policies described 
herein is subject to all the terms, exclusions, and conditions of such policies. 
 
_______________________________________________   _________________________________________________ 
 Insurance Agency or Brokerage   Insurance Company 
 
_______________________________________________   _________________________________________________ 
 Address      Home Office 
 
_______________________________________________   _________________________________________________ 
 City  State  Zip  Authorized Signature  Date 
 
____________________________________________ 

Name of Person to be contacted 
  

 
____________________________________________ 
 Telephone 
 
 

Note:  Authorized signature may be agent’s if agent has placed 
insurance through an agency agreement with the insurer.  If 
insurance is brokered, authorized signature must be that of official 
of insurer. 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 30 

 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY 
SPECIAL ENDORSEMENT 
FOR   CITY OF LEMOORE  (the "Entity") 

SUBMIT IN TRIPLICATE 

ENDORSEMENT NO. 

 
ISSUE DATE (MMDDYY) 

 
PRODUCER 
 
 
 

POLICY INFORMATION: 
Insurance Company: 
Policy No.: 
Policy Period:  (from)  (to) 

 

Telephone 
 
 

OTHER PROVISIONS 

NAMED INSURED 
 
 
 
 

 

CLAIMS:  Underwriter's representative for claims pursuant to 
this          
              insurance. 
Name:  
      
 

Address:  _ 
_      
 

Telephone:  
 ( )      

 

EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY LIMITS 
 
$                                          (Each Accident) 
 
$                                          (Disease - Policy Limit) 
 
$                                          (Disease - Each Employee) 

 

In consideration of the premium charges and notwithstanding any inconsistent statement in the policy to which this endorsement is 
attached or any endorsement now or hereafter attached thereto, it is agreed as follows: 
 
1. CANCELLATION NOTICE.  This insurance shall not be canceled, or materially reduced in coverage or limits except after thirty 

(30) days prior written notice by receipted delivery has been given to the Entity. 
2. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION.  The Insurance Company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the Entity, its  officers, 

officials,  employees and volunteers for losses paid under the terms of this policy which arise from the work performed by the 
Named Insured for the Entity. 

 
Except as stated above nothing herein shall be held to waive, alter or extend any of the limits conditions, agreements or exclusions 
of the policy to which this endorsement is attached. 
 

ENDORSEMENT HOLDER 
 

ENTITY 
 
 CITY OF LEMOORE 
 119 FOX STREET 
 LEMOORE, CA 93245 
 
 ATTENTION: CITY MANAGER 
 

AUTHORIZED       Broker/Agent    Underwriter    
___________                          
REPRESENTATIVE 
 
I,                                          (print/type name), warrant that I have 
authority to bind the above-mentioned insurance company and by 
my signature hereby do so bind this company to this 
endorsement. 
 
Signature       
           (original signature required) 
 

Telephone (      )   Date Signed    
 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 31 

 
GENERAL LIABILITY SPECIAL ENDORSEMENT 
FOR      CITY OF LEMOORE                     (the “Entity”) 

SUBMIT IN TRIPLICATE 

ENDORSEMENT NO. 

 
ISSUE DATE (MMDDYY) 

 
PRODUCER 
 
 

POLICY INFORMATION: 
Insurance Company: 
Policy No.: 
Policy Permit:  (from)  (to) 

  Deductible  Self-Insured Retention (check which) of $ ___________________ 

 
NAMED INSURED 
 
 

APPLICABILITY.  This insurance pertains to the operations and/or tenancy of the 
named insured under all written agreements and permits in force with the Entity unless 
checked here  in which case only the following specific agreements and permits with the 
Entity are covered: 
ENTITY AGREEMENTS/PERMITS 

 

TYPE OF INSURANCE 
 

 

 

LIMIT OF LIABILITY 
 

OTHER PROVISIONS 

  
 

$                            per accident, for bodily injury and 
property damage. 
LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSE  INCLUDED IN LIMITS 

                                                       IN ADDITION TO 
LIMITS 

CLAIMS:  Underwriter's representative for claims pursuant to this          
              insurance. 
Name:      ______________________________________________________                                                                              
Address:  ______________________________________________________                                                                                          
               ______________________________________________________                                                                                     
 
Telephone:  (________)_____________________________________________                                                                     

In consideration of the premium charges and notwithstanding any inconsistent statement in the policy to which this endorsement is attached or any 
endorsement now or hereafter attached thereto, it is agreed as follows: 
1. INSURED.  The Entity, its elected or appointed officers, agents, volunteers and employees are included as insureds. 
2. CONTRIBUTION NOT REQUIRED. As respects work performed by the Named Insured for or on behalf of the Entity; the insurance afforded by this 

policy (a) be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers; or (b) stand in an unbroken 
chain of coverage excess of the Named Insurer’s scheduled underlying primary coverage.  Any other insurance maintained by the Entity, its elected or 
appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers shall be in excess of this insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

3. CANCELLATION NOTICE.  With respect to the interests of the Entity, this insurance shall not be canceled, except after thirty (30) days prior written 
notice by receipted delivery has been given to the Entity. 

4. SCOPE OF COVERAGE.  This policy, if primary, affords coverage at least as broad as: 
(1) Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability Coverage, "occurrence" form CG 0001 (Ed. 11/88); or 
(2) If excess, affords coverage which is at least as broad as the primary insurance form referenced in the preceding section (1). 

 
Except as stated above nothing herein shall be held to waive, alter or extend any of the limits conditions, agreements or exclusions of the policy to which 
this endorsement is attached. 
 

ENDORSEMENT HOLDER 
. 

ENTITY 
 
 CITY OF LEMOORE 
 119 FOX STREET 
 LEMOORE, CA 93245 
 
 ATTENTION: CITY MANAGER 

AUTHORIZED         Broker/Agent    Underwriter    ___________                          
REPRESENTATIVE 
 
I,                                          (print/type name), warrant that I have authority to bind the above-
mentioned insurance company and by my signature hereby do so bind this company to this 
endorsement. 
 

Signature 
_______________________________________________________                                                                                      
 (original signature required) 
 

Telephone (         )                                 Date Signed   
 
 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 32 

 
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY SPECIAL ENDORSEMENT 
FOR    CITY OF LEMOORE                          (the "Entity") 

SUBMIT IN TRIPLICATE 
ENDORSEMENT NO. 

 
ISSUE DATE (MMDDYY) 

 
PRODUCER 
 
 

POLICY INFORMATION: 
Insurance Company: 
Policy No.: 
Policy Period:  (from)  (to) 

  

  Deductible  Self-Insured Retention (check which) of $ ___________________ 

NAMED INSURED 
 
 
 
 

APPLICABILITY,  This insurance pertains to the operations and/or tenancy of the 
named insured under all written agreements and permits in force with the Entity unless 
checked here  in which case only the following specific agreements and permits with the 
Entity are covered: 
ENTITY AGREEMENTS/PERMITS 

 

TYPE OF INSURANCE 
 

 

 

   Commercial Auto Policy 
   Business Auto Policy 
   Other 
_______________________________ 
 

OTHER PROVISIONS 

 

LIMIT OF LIABILITY 
 

CLAIMS:  Underwriter's representative for claims pursuant to this          
              insurance. 
Name:      ________________________________________________________                                                                              
Address:  ________________________________________________________                                                                                          
               ________________________________________________________                                                                                     
 
Telephone:  (________)_____________________________________________                                                                     

 

$                            per accident, for bodily injury and 
property damage. 
LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSE  INCLUDED IN LIMITS 

                                                       IN ADDITION TO 
LIMITS 
In consideration of the premium charges and notwithstanding any inconsistent statement in the policy to which this endorsement is attached or any 

endorsement now or hereafter attached thereto, it is agreed as follows: 
1.  INSURED.  The Entity, its elected or appointed officers, agents, volunteers and employees are included as insureds with regard to damages and defense 

of suits arising from the ownership, operations, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by the Named 
Insured, for which the Named Insured is responsible. 

2. CONTRIBUTION NOT REQUIRED. As respects work performed by the Named Insured for or on behalf of the Entity; the insurance afforded by this 
policy shall: a)  be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers; or  

     (b) stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Named Insurer’s scheduled underlying primary coverage.  Any other insurance maintained by 
the Entity, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers shall be in excess of this insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

3. CANCELLATION NOTICE.  With respect to the interests of the Entity, this insurance shall not be canceled,  except after thirty (30) days prior written 
notice by receipted delivery has been given to the Entity. 

4. SCOPE OF COVERAGE.  This policy, if primary, affords coverage at least as broad as: 
(1) Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 (Ed. 6/92), Code 1 ("any auto"); or 
(2) If excess, affords coverage which is at least as broad as the primary insurance form referenced in the preceding section (1). 
Except as stated above nothing herein shall be held to waive, alter or extend any of the limits conditions, agreements or exclusions of the policy to which 

this endorsement is attached. 

 

ENDORSEMENT HOLDER 
. 

ENTITY 
 
CITY OF LEMOORE 
119 FOX STREET 
LEMOORE, CA 93245 
 
ATTENTION: CITY MANAGER 

AUTHORIZED            Broker/Agent    Underwriter    ___________                          
REPRESENTATIVE 
 
I,                                          (print/type name), warrant that I have authority to bind the above-
mentioned insurance company and by my signature hereby do so bind this company to this 
endorsement. 

Signature _____________________________________________
 (original signature required) 
 
 

Telephone (         )                                 Date Signed                             



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 33 

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH  
STATE LABOR CODE SECTION 3700 

 
In compliance with State Labor Code Section 1861:   

 
I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to be insured 
against  liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of 
that code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this contract. 
 
 
Dated: _____________________, 2014 ____________________________________ 
      Contractor 
 
 
     By: ____________________________________ 
 
(Seal if Corporation)    ____________________________________ 
 
 
 



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 34 

NOTICE OF AWARD 
 
TO:       
       
       
       
 
PROJECT Description: 
CITY OF LEMOORE 2014 RECLAMITE SEAL PROJECT  
 
The OWNER has considered the BID submitted by you for the above described WORK in response to its 
Advertisement for BIDS dated     .  You are hereby notified that your BID has 
been accepted for items in the amount of    . 
 
You are required by the Information for BIDDERS to execute the Agreement and furnish the required 
CONTRACTOR's Performance BOND, Payment BOND and certificates of insurance within ten (10) 
calendar days from the date of this Notice to you. 
 
If you fail to execute said Agreement and to furnish said BONDS within (10) days from the date of this 
Notice, said OWNER will be entitled to consider all your rights arising out of the OWNER's acceptance 
of your BID as abandoned and as a forfeiture of your BID BOND.  The OWNER will be entitled to such 
other rights as may be granted by law. 
 
You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this NOTICE OF AWARD to the OWNER. 
 
Dated this    day of     . 
 
Owner  City of Lemoore           
 
By          Title       
 
 
 ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 
 
Receipt of the above NOTICE OF AWARD is hereby acknowledged by: 
 
              

(Contractor) 

this, the   day of     2014. 

By          Title       



 
City of Lemoore Bid Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page BC - 35 

NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 
TO:       DATE:        
       PROJECT:  2014 RECLAMITE SEAL PROJECT 
       
       
 
 
You are hereby notified to commence WORK in accordance with the Agreement dated    
  on or before      and you are to complete the WORK within    
consecutive calendar days thereafter.  The date of completion of all WORK is therefore    . 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE    
Owner     

 
By        

Harry A. Tow, PE   
 

Title   Project Engineer   
 

 
2014 RECLAMITE SEAL PROJECT 

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 
 
Receipt of the above NOTICE TO PROCEED is hereby acknowledged by 
 
              
(Contractor) 

this, the   day of     2014 
 

By        
(Signature)    

 
Title        

(Please Type)    
 

Employer Tax Identification Number:  
 

       
 

Telephone Number (      )     
 

Fax Number (      )      



GENERAL CONDITIONS 



i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS GENERAL CONDITIONS 

 

TITLE PAGE 
 
 
ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS............................................................................................... GC-1 
 
ARTICLE 2 – PRELIMINARY MATTERS ...................................................................... GC-4 
 
ARTICLE 3 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: INTENT, AMENDING, REUSE ............. GC-5 
 
ARTICLE 4 – AVAILABILITY OF LANDS, PHYSICAL CONDITIONS, 
  REFERENCE POINTS ................................................................................. GC-6 
 
ARTICLE 5 – BONDS AND INSURANCE ........................................................................ GC-9 
 
ARTICLE 6 – CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES ............................................... GC-12 
 
ARTICLE 7 – OTHER WORK .......................................................................................... GC-19 
 
ARTICLE 8 – OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITY ................................................................ GC-20 
 
ARTICLE 9 – ENGINEER’S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION .......................... GC-21 
 
ARTICLE 10 – CHANGES IN THE WORK.................................................................... GC-23 
 
ARTICLE 11 – CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE ....................................................... GC-24 
 
ARTICLE 12 – CHANGE OF CONTRACT TIME ......................................................... GC-28 
 
ARTICLE 13 – WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE; TESTS AND 
      INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL, OR 
      ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE WORK ........................................... GC-29 
 
ARTICLE 14 – PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR AND COMPLETION ................... GC-32 
 
ARTICLE 15 – SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION .............................. GC-36 
 
ARTICLE 16 – DISPUTE RESOLUTION ....................................................................... GC-38 
 
ARTICLE 17 – MISCELLANEOUS ................................................................................. GC-40 
 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-1 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
 
ARTICLE 1 – DEFINITIONS  
 
Wherever used in these General Conditions or in the other Contract Documents, the following terms have 
the meanings indicated which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof: 
 
Addenda  
Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of Bids which clarify, correct, or change the 
bidding documents or the Contract Documents. 
 
Agreement 
The written agreement between OWNER and CONTRACTOR covering the Work to be performed; other 
Contract Documents are attached to the agreement and made a part thereof as provided therein. 
 
Application for Payment  
The form accepted by ENGINEER which is to be used by CONTRACTOR in requesting progress or final 
payment and which is to include such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents. 
 
Bid   
The offer or proposal of the Bidder submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the prices for the Work 
to be performed.  
 
Bonds  
Bid, performance, and payment bonds and other instruments of security. 
 
Change Order 
A document recommended by ENGINEER, which is signed by CONTRACTOR and OWNER and 
authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work, or an adjustment in the Contract price, or the 
Contract Time, issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement. 
 
Contract Documents 
The Agreement, Addenda (which pertain to the Contract Documents), CONTRACTOR’s Bid (including 
documentation accompanying the Bid and any post-Bid documentation), the Bonds, these General 
Conditions, the Supplementary Conditions, the Specifications, the Drawings as the same are more 
specifically identified in the Agreement, together with all amendments, modifications, and supplements 
issued pursuant to paragraphs 3.4 and 3.5 on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement. 
 
Contract Price 
The monies payable by OWNER to CONTRACTOR under the Contract Documents as stated in the 
Agreement (subject to the provisions of paragraph 11.9.1 in the case of Unit Price Work). 
 
Contract Time 
The number of days (computed as provided in Paragraph 17.2) or the date stated in the Agreement for the 
completion of the Work. 
 
CONTRACTOR  
The person, firm, or corporation with whom OWNER has entered into the Agreement. 
 
Day 
A calendar day of twenty-four hours measured from midnight to the next midnight. 
 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-2 

Defective 
An adjective which when modifying the work Work refers to Work that is unsatisfactory, faulty, or 
deficient, or does not conform to the Contract Documents, or does not meet the requirements of any 
inspection, test, or approval referred to in the Contract Documents, or has been damaged prior to 
ENGINEER’s recommendation of final payment (unless responsibility for the protection thereof has been 
assumed by OWNER at Substantial Completion in accordance with paragraph 14.8 or 14.10. 
 
Drawings 
The drawings (plans) which show the character and scope of the Work to be performed and which have 
been prepared or approved by ENGINEER and are referred to in the Contract Documents. 
 
Effective Date of the Agreement 
The date indicated in the Agreement on which it becomes effective, but if no such date is indicated it means 
the date on which the Agreement is signed and delivered by the last of the two parties to sign and deliver.  
 
ENGINEER 
The person, firm, or corporation named as such in the Agreement; Quad Knopf, Inc. 
 
Field Order 
A written order issued by ENGINEER which orders minor changes in the Work in accordance with 
paragraph 9.5 but which does not involve a change in the Contract Price or the Contract Time. 
 
General Requirements 
The special provisions of the Specifications. 
 
Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations 
Laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes, and/or orders. 
 
Notice of Award 
The written notice by OWNER to the apparent successful Bidder stating that upon compliance by the 
apparent successful Bidder with the conditions precedent enumerated therein, within the time specified, 
OWNER will sign and deliver the Agreement. 
 
Notice to Proceed 
A written notice given by OWNER to CONTRACTOR (with a copy to ENGINEER) fixing the date on 
which the Contract Time will commence to run and on which CONTRACTOR shall start to perform 
CONTRACTOR’s obligation under the Contract Documents. 
 
OWNER 
The public body or authority, corporation, association, firm, or person with whom CONTRACTOR shall 
start to perform CONTRACTOR’s obligation under the Contract Documents; the City of Lemoore. 
 
Whenever reference is made to these General Conditions for any paragraphs from 2.1 through 17.4 said 
reference is to paragraphs of the General Conditions. 
 
Partial Utilization 
Placing a portion of the work in service for the purpose for which it is intended (or a related purpose) 
before reaching Substantial Completion of all the Work. 
 
Project 
The total construction of which the work to be provided under the Contract Documents may be the whole, 
or a part as indicated elsewhere in the Contract Documents. 
 
Resident Project Representative 
The authorized representative of ENGINEER or OWNER who is assigned to the site or any part thereof. 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-3 

Shop Drawings 
All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data which are specifically prepared by or for 
CONTRACTOR to illustrate some portion of the Work, and all illustrations, brochures, standard schedules, 
performance charts, instructions, diagrams, and other information prepared by a Supplier and submitted by 
CONTRACTOR to illustrate material or equipment for some portion of the Work. 
 
Specifications 
Those portions of the Contract Documents consisting of written technical descriptions of materials, 
equipment, construction systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to the Work and certain 
administrative details applicable thereto. 
 
Subcontractor 
An individual, firm, or corporation having a direct contract with CONTRACTOR or with any other 
Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work at the site. 
 
Substantial Completion 
The Work (or specified part thereof) has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of the ENGINEER as 
evidenced by ENGINEER’s definitive Notice of Substantial Completion, it is sufficiently complete, in 
accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Work (or specified part) can be utilized for the 
purposes for which it is intended; or if there be no such Notice issued, when final payment is due in 
accordance with paragraph 14.13.  The terms “substantially complete” and “substantially completed” as 
applied to any Work refer to Substantial Completion thereof. 
 
Supplementary Conditions 
The part of the Contract Documents which amends or supplements these General Conditions. 
 
Supplier 
A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or vendor. 
 
Underground Facilities 
All pipelines, conduits, ducts, cables, wires, manholes, vaults, tanks, tunnels, or other such facilities or 
attachments, and any encasements containing such facilities, which have been installed underground to 
furnish any of the following services or materials: electricity, gases, steam, liquid petroleum products, 
telephone or other communications, cable television, sewage and drainage removal, traffic or other control 
systems, or water. 
 
Unit Price Work 
Work to be paid for on the basis of unit prices. 
 
Work 
The entire completed construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be 
furnished under the Contract Documents.  Work is the result of performing services, furnishing labor, and 
furnishing and incorporating materials and equipment into the construction, all as required by the Contract 
Documents.  
 
Work Directive Change 
A written directive to CONTRACTOR, issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement and signed 
by OWNER and recommended by ENGINEER, ordering an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work, or 
responding to differing or unforeseen physical conditions under which the Work is to be performed as 
provided in Paragraphs 4.2 and 4.3 or to emergencies under Paragraph 6.22.  A Work directive change may 
not change the Contract Price or the Contract Time, but is evidence that the parties expect that the change 
directed or documented by a Work Directive Change will be incorporated in a subsequently issued Change 
Order following negotiations by the parties as to its effect, if any, on the Contract Price or the Contract 
Time, as provided in Paragraph 10.2. 
 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-4 

Written Amendment 
A written amendment of the Contract Documents signed by OWNER and CONTRACTOR on or after the 
Effective Date of the Agreement and normally dealing with the nonengineering or nontechnical rather than 
strictly Work-related aspects of the Contract Documents. 
 
 
ARTICLE 2 – PRELIMINARY MATTERS  
 
Delivery of Bonds: 
 
2.1 When CONTRACTOR delivers the executed Agreements to OWNER, CONTRACTOR shall also 

deliver to OWNER such Bonds as CONTRACTOR may be required to furnish in accordance with 
Paragraph 5.1. 

 
Copies of Documents: 
 
2.2 OWNER shall furnish to CONTRACTOR up to six copies (unless otherwise specified in the 

Supplementary Conditions) of the Contract Documents as are reasonably necessary for the 
execution of the Work. Additional copies will be furnished, upon request, at the cost of 
reproduction. 

 
Commencement of Contract Time; Notice to Proceed: 
 
2.3 The Contract Time will commence to run on the thirtieth day after the effective date of the 

Agreement, or, if a Notice to Proceed is given, on the day indicated in the Notice to Proceed.  A 
Notice to Proceed may be given at any time within thirty days after the Effective Date of the 
Agreement. In no event shall the Contract Time commence to run later than the seventy-fifth day 
after the day of Bid opening or the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Agreement, 
whichever date is earlier. 

 
Starting the Project: 
 
2.4 CONTRACTOR shall start to perform the Work on the date when the Contract Time commences 

to run, but no Work shall be done at the site prior to the date on which the Contract Time 
commences to run. 

 
Before Starting Construction: 
 
2.5 Before undertaking each part of the Work, CONTRACTOR shall carefully study and compare the 

Contract Documents and check and verify pertinent figures shown thereon and all applicable field 
measurements.  CONTRACTOR shall promptly report in writing to ENGINEER any conflict, 
error, or discrepancy which CONTRACTOR may discover and shall obtain a written 
interpretation or clarification from ENGINEER before proceeding with any work affected thereby; 
however, CONTRACTOR shall not be liable to OWNER or ENGINEER for failure to report any 
conflict, error, or discrepancy in the Contract Documents, unless CONTRACTOR had actual 
knowledge thereof or should reasonably have known thereof. 

 
2.6 Within ten days after the Effective Date of the Agreement (unless otherwise specified in the 

General Requirements), CONTRACTOR shall submit to ENGINEER for review: 
 

2.6.1 An estimated progress schedule indicating the starting and completion dates of the 
various stages of the Work. 

 
2.6.2 A preliminary schedule of Shop Drawing submissions; and 
 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-5 

2.6.3 A preliminary schedule of values for all of the Work, which shall include quantities and 
prices of items aggregating the Contract Price and will subdivide the Work into 
component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during 
construction.  Such prices shall include an appropriate amount of overhead and profit 
applicable to each item of Work which shall be confirmed in writing by the 
CONTRACTOR at the time of submission. 

 
2.7 Before any Work at the site is started, CONTRACTOR shall deliver to OWNER, with a copy to 

ENGINEER, certificates (and other evidence of insurance requested by OWNER) which 
CONTRACTOR is required to purchase and maintain in accordance with Paragraphs 5.3 and 5.4, 
and OWNER shall deliver to CONTRACTOR certificates (and other evidence of insurance 
requested by CONTRACTOR) which OWNER is required to purchase and maintain in accordance 
with Paragraphs 5.6 and 5.7. 

 
Pre-construction Conference: 
 
2.8 Within ten days after the Effective Date of the Agreement, but before CONTRACTOR starts the 

Work at the site, a conference to be attended by the CONTRACTOR, ENGINEER, and others as 
appropriate will be held to discuss the schedules referred to in Paragraph 2.6, to discuss 
procedures for handling Shop Drawings and other submittals and for processing Applications for 
payment, and to establish a working understanding among the parties as to the Work. 

 
Finalizing Schedules: 
 
2.9 At least ten days before submission of the first Application for payment a conference to be 

attended by CONTRACTOR, ENGINEER, and others as appropriate will be held to finalize the 
schedule submitted in accordance with paragraph 2.6.  The finalized progress schedule must be 
acceptable to the ENGINEER as providing an orderly progression of the Work to a completion 
within the Contract Time, but such acceptance will neither impose on ENGINEER responsibility 
for the progress or scheduling of the Work nor relieve CONTRACTOR from full responsibility 
therefor.  The finalized schedule of Shop Drawings must be acceptable to ENGINEER as 
providing a workable arrangement for processing the submissions.  The finalized schedule of 
values must be acceptable to ENGINEER as to form and substance. 

 
 
ARTICLE 3 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: INTENT, AMENDING, AND REUSE  
 
Intent: 
 
3.1 The Contract Documents comprise the entire Agreement between OWNER and CONTRACTOR, 

concerning the Work.  The Contract Documents are complementary; what is called for by one is as 
binding as if called for by all.  The Contract Documents will be construed in accordance with the 
law of the place of the Project. 

 
3.2 It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete Project (or part 

thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents.  Any Work, materials, or 
equipment that may reasonably be inferred from the Contract Documents as being required to 
produce the intended result shall be supplied whether or not specifically called for.  When words 
which have a well-known technical or trade meaning are used to describe Work, materials, or 
equipment, such words shall be interpreted in accordance with that meaning.  Reference to 
standard specifications, manuals, or codes of any technical society, organization, or association, or 
to the laws or Regulations of any governmental authority, whether such reference be specific or by 
implication, shall mean the latest standard specification, manual, code, or Laws or Regulations in 
effect at the time of opening of bids (or, on the Effective Date of the Agreement if there were no 
Bids), except as may be otherwise specifically stated.  However, no provision of any referenced 
standard specification, manual, or code (whether or not specifically incorporated by reference in 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-6 

the Contract Documents) shall be effective to change the duties and responsibilities of OWNER, 
CONTRACTOR, or ENGINEER, or any of their consultants, agents, or employees from those set 
forth in the Contract Documents, nor shall it be effective to assign to ENGINEER  or any of 
ENGINEER’s consultants, agents, or employees, any duty or authority to supervise or direct the 
furnishing or performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility 
contrary to the provisions of Paragraph 9.15 or 9.16.  Clarifications and interpretations of the 
Contract Documents shall be issued by ENGINEER as provided in paragraph 9.4. 

 
3.3 If, during the performance of the Work, CONTRACTOR finds a conflict, error, or discrepancy in 

the Contract Documents, CONTRACTOR shall so report to ENGINEER in writing at once, and 
before proceeding with the Work affected thereby, shall obtain a written interpretation or 
clarification from ENGINEER; however, CONTRACTOR shall not be liable to OWNER or 
ENGINEER for failure to report any conflict, error, or discrepancy in the Contract Documents 
unless CONTRACTOR had actual knowledge thereof or should reasonably have known thereof. 

 
Amending and Supplementing Contract Documents 
 
3.4 The Contract Documents may be amended to provide for additions, deletions, and revisions in the 

Work or to modify the terms and conditions thereof in one or more of the following ways: 
 
 3.4.1 A formal Written Amendment; 
 
 3.4.2 A Change Order (pursuant to paragraph 10.4); or 
 
 3.4.3 A Work Directive Change (pursuant to paragraph 10.1). 
 

As indicated in Paragraphs 11.2 and 12.1, Contract Price and Contract Time may only be changed 
by a Change Order or a Written Amendment. 
 

3.5 In addition, the requirements of the Contract Documents may be supplemented, and minor 
variations and deviations in the Work may be authorized, in one or more of the following ways: 

 
 3.5.1 A Field Order (pursuant to Paragraph 9.5); 
 

3.5.2 ENGINEER’s approval of a Shop Drawing or sample (pursuant to Paragraphs 6.26 and 
6.27); or 

 
3.5.3 ENGINEER’s written interpretation or clarification (pursuant to Paragraph 9.4). 
 

Reuse of Document: 
 
3.6 Neither CONTRACTOR nor any Subcontractor or supplier or other person or organization 

performing or furnishing any of the Work under a direct or indirect contract with OWNER shall 
have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Drawings, Specifications, or other 
documents (or copies of any thereof) prepared by or bearing the seal of ENGINEER; and they 
shall not reuse any of them on extensions of the Project or any other project without written 
conse3nt of OWNER or ENGINEER and specific written verification or adaptation by 
ENGINEER. 

 
 
ARTICLE 4 – AVAILABILITY OF LANDS; PHYSICAL CONDITIONS; REFERENCE POINTS  
 
Availability of Lands: 
 
4.1 OWNER shall furnish, as indicated in the Contract Documents, the lands upon which the Work is 

to be performed, right-of-way and easements for access thereto, and such other lands which are 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-7 

designated for the use of CONTRACTOR.  Easements for permanent structures or permanent 
changes in existing facilities will be obtained and paid for by OWNER, unless otherwise provided 
in the Contract Documents.  If CONTRACTOR believes that any delay in OWNER’s furnishing 
these lands, right-of-way, or easements entitles CONTRACTOR to an extension of the Contract 
Time, CONTRACTOR may make a claim therefor as provided in Article 12. CONTRACTOR 
shall provide for all additional lands and access thereto that may be required for temporary 
construction facilities or storage of materials and equipment. 

 
Physical Conditions – Investigations and Reports: 
 

4.2.1 Explorations and Reports:  Reference is made to the Supplementary Conditions for 
identification of those any reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at the 
site that have been utilized by ENGINEER in the preparation of the Contract Documents.  
CONTRACTOR may rely upon the accuracy of the technical data contained in such 
reports, but not upon nontechnical data, interpretations, or opinions contained therein, or 
the completeness thereof, for CONTRACTOR’s purposes.  Except as indicated in the 
immediately preceding sentence and in Paragraph 4.2.6, CONTRACTOR shall have full 
responsibility with respect to subsurface conditions at the site. 

 
4.2.2 Existing Structures:  Reference is made to the Supplementary Conditions for 

identification of those any drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing 
surface and subsurface structures (except Underground Facilities referred to in Paragraph 
4.3) which are at or contiguous to the site that have been utilized by ENGINEER in the 
preparation of the Contract Documents.  CONTRACTOR may rely on the accuracy of the 
technical data contained in such drawings, but not the completeness thereof, for 
CONTRACTOR’s purposes.  Except as indicated in the immediately preceding sentence 
and in Paragraph 4.2.6, CONTRACTOR shall have full responsibility with respect to 
physical conditions in or relating to such structures. 

 
4.2.3 Report of Differing Conditions: If CONTRACTOR believes that: 

 
4.2.3.1 Any technical data on which CONTRACTOR is entitled to rely as provided in 

Paragraphs 4.2.1 and 4.2.2 is inaccurate, or 
 

4.2.3.2 Any physical condition uncovered or revealed at the site differs materially from 
that indicated, reflected, or referred to in the Contract Documents, 

 
CONTRACTOR shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before performing 
any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency as permitted by Paragraph 
6.22), notify OWNER and ENGINEER in writing about the inaccuracy or difference. 

 
4.2.4 ENGINEER’s Review: ENGINEER will promptly review the pertinent conditions, 

determine the necessity of obtaining additional exploration or tests with respect thereto 
and advise OWNER in writing (with a copy to CONTRACTOR) of ENGINEER’s 
findings and conclusions. 

 
4.2.5 Possible Document Change:  If ENGINEER concludes that there is a material error in the 

Contract Documents or that because of the newly discovered conditions a change in the 
Contract Documents is required, a Work Directive Change or a Change Order will be 
issued as provided in Article 10 to reflect and document the consequences of the 
inaccuracy or difference. 

 
4.2.6 Possible Price and Time Adjustments:  In each such case, an increase or decrease in the 

Contract Price or an extension or shortening of the Contract Time, or any combination 
thereof, will be allowable to the extent that they are attributable to any such inaccuracy or 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-8 

difference.  If OWNER and CONTRACTOR are unable to agree as to the amount or 
length thereof, a claim may be made therefor as provided in Articles 11 and 12. 

 
Physical Conditions – Underground Facilities: 
 

4.3.1 Shown or Indicated:  The information and data shown or indicated in the Contract 
Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site is 
based on information and data furnished to OWNER or ENGINEER by the owners of 
such Underground Facilities or by others.  Unless it is otherwise expressly provided in 
the Supplementary Conditions: 

 
4.3.1.1 OWNER and ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the accuracy or 

completeness of any such information or data; and 
 

4.3.1.2 CONTRACTOR shall have full responsibility for reviewing and checking all 
such information and data, for locating all Underground Facilities shown or 
indicated in the Contract Documents, for coordination of the Work with the 
owners of such Underground Facilities during construction, for the safety and 
protection thereof as provided in Paragraph 6.20, and repairing any damage 
thereto resulting from the Work, the cost of all of which will be considered as 
having been included in the Contract Price. 

 
4.3.2 Not Shown or Indicated:  If an Underground Facility is uncovered or revealed at or 

contiguous to the site which was not shown or indicated in the Contract Documents and 
which the CONTRACTOR could not reasonably have been expected to be aware of, 
CONTRACTOR shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before performing 
any Work affected thereby (except in an emergency as permitted by Paragraph 6.22), 
identify the owner of such Underground Facility and give written notice thereof to that 
owner and to OWNER and ENGINEER.  ENGINEER will promptly review the 
Underground Facility to determine the extent to which the Contract Documents should be 
modified to reflect and document the consequences of the existence of the Underground 
Facility, and the Contract Documents will be amended or supplemented to the extent 
necessary.  During such time, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the safety and 
protection of such Underground Facility as provided in Paragraph 6.20.  CONTRACTOR 
shall be allowed an increase in the Contract Price or extension in the Contract Time, or 
both, to the extent that they are attributable to the existence of any Underground Facility 
which was not shown in the contract Documents and which the CONTRACTOR could 
not reasonably have been expected to be aware of.  If the parties are unable to agree as to 
the amount or length thereof, CONTRACTOR may make a claim therefor as provided in 
Articles 11 and 12. 

 
Reference Points: 
 
4.4 OWNER shall provide engineering surveys to establish reference points for construction which in 

ENGINEER’s judgement are necessary to enable CONTRACTOR to proceed with the Work.  
CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for laying out the Work (unless otherwise specified in the 
General Requirements), shall to the extent feasible protect and preserve the established reference 
points, and shall make no changes or relocations without the prior written approval of OWNER   
ENGINEER CONTRACTOR shall report to ENGINEER whenever any reference point is lost or 
destroyed or requires relocation because of necessary specified changes in grades or locations., 
and shall be responsible for replacement or relocation of such reference points by professionally 
qualified personnel. 

 
4.5 Prior to CONTRACTOR beginning work ENGINEER will establish reset references for any 

existing reference point, which is not in a box or pipe container, and will relocate and reset such 
existing points after the completion of the work on the contract.  CONTRACTOR shall reset or 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-9 

raise the enclosures for any reference points which are so protected.  CONTRACTOR shall pay 
ENGINEER for any costs of resetting such structurally protected existing reference points if they 
are disturbed by Contractor's work. 

 
ARTICLE 5 – BONDS AND INSURANCE  
 
Performance and Other Bonds: 
 
5.1 CONTRACTOR shall furnish Performance and Payment Bonds, each in an amount at least equal 

to the Contract Price as security for the faithful performance and payment of all CONTRACTOR’s 
obligations under the Contract Documents.  These Bonds shall remain in effect at least until one 
year after the date when final payment becomes due, except as otherwise provided by Law or 
Regulation or the Contract Documents.  CONTRACTOR shall also furnish such other Bonds as 
are required by  the Supplementary Conditions.  All Bonds shall be in the forms prescribed by 
Law or Regulation or the Contract Documents and be executed by such Sureties as are named in 
the current list of “Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal 
Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies” as published in Circular 570 (amended) by the 
Audit Staff Bureau of Accounts, U.S. Treasury Department.  All Bonds signed by an agent must 
be accompanied by a certified copy of the authority to act. 

 
5.2 If the surety on any Bond furnished by CONTRACTOR is declared a bankrupt or becomes 

insolvent or its right to do business is terminated in any state where part of the Project is located or 
it ceases to meet the requirements of paragraph 5.1, CONTRACTOR shall, within five days 
thereafter, substitute another Bond and surety, both of which must be acceptable to OWNER.  

 
Contractor’s Liability Insurance: 
 
5.3 CONTRACTOR shall purchase and maintain such comprehensive general liability and other 

insurance as is appropriate for the Work being performed and furnished and as will provide 
protection from claims set forth below which may arise out of or result from CONTRACTOR’s 
performance and furnishing of the Work and CONTRACTOR’s other obligations under the 
Contract Documents, whether it is to be performed or furnished by CONTRACTOR, by any 
Subcontractor, by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any 
of the Work, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable: 

 
5.3.1 Claims under workers’ or workmen’s compensation, disability benefits, and other similar 

employee benefit acts; 
 

5.3.2 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death 
of CONTRACTOR’s employees; 

 
5.3.3 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person 

other than CONTRACTOR’s employees; 
 
5.3.4 Claims for damages insured by personal injury liability coverage which are sustained (a) 

by any person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to the employment of 
such person by CONTRACTOR, or (b) by any other person for any other reason; 

 
5.3.5 Claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or destruction of 

tangible property wherever located, including loss of use resulting therefrom;  
 
5.3.6 Claims arising out of operation of Laws or Regulations for damages because of bodily 

injury or death of any person or for damage to property; and, 
 
5.3.7 Claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage 

arising out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of any motor vehicle. 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-10 

 
 The insurance required by this paragraph 5.3 shall include the specific coverages and be written 

for not less than the limits of liability and coverages provided in the Supplementary Conditions, or 
required by law, whichever is greater.  The comprehensive general liability insurance shall include 
completed operations insurance.  All of the policies of insurance so required to be purchased and 
maintained (or the certificates or other evidence thereof) shall contain a provision or endorsement 
that the coverage afforded will not be canceled, materially changed, or renewal refused until at 
least thirty days’ prior written notice has been given to OWNER and ENGINEER by certified 
mail.  All such insurance shall remain in effect until final payment and at all times thereafter when 
CONTRACTOR may be correcting, removing, or replacing defective Work in accordance with 
Paragraph 13.12.  In addition, CONTRACTOR shall maintain such completed operations 
insurance for at least two years after final payment and furnish OWNER with evidence of 
continuation of such insurance at final payment and one year thereafter. 

 
Contractual Liability Insurance: 
 
5.4 The comprehensive general liability insurance required by Paragraph 5.3 shall include contractual 

liability insurance applicable to CONTRACTOR’s obligations under paragraphs 6.30 and 6.31. 
 
Owner’s Liability Insurance: 
 
5.5 OWNER shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining OWNER’s own liability insurance 

and, at OWNER’s option, may purchase and maintain such insurance as will protect OWNER 
against claims which may arise from operations under the Contract Documents. 

 
Property Insurance: 
 
5.6 Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, OWNER shall purchase and 

maintain property insurance upon the Work at the site to the full insurable value thereof (subject to 
such deductible amounts as may be provided in the Supplementary Conditions or required by 
Laws and Regulations).  This insurance shall include the interests of OWNER, CONTRACTOR, 
subcontractors, ENGINEER, and ENGINEER’s consultants in the Work, all of whom shall be 
listed as insureds or additional  insured parties, shall  insure against the perils of fire and extended 
coverage and shall include “all risk” insurance for physical loss and damage including theft, 
vandalism and malicious mischief, collapse, and water damage, and such other perils as may be 
provided in the Supplementary Conditions, and shall include damages, losses, and expenses 
arising out of or resulting from any insured loss or incurred in the repair or replacement of any 
insured property (including fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other 
professionals).  If not covered under the “all risk” insurance or otherwise provided in the 
Supplementary Conditions, CONTRACTOR shall purchase and maintain similar property 
insurance on portions of the Work stored on and off the site or in transit when such portions of the 
Work are to be included in an Application for Payment. 

 
5.7 OWNER shall purchase and maintain such boiler and machinery insurance or additional property 

insurance as may be required by the Supplementary Conditions or Laws and Regulations which 
will include the interests of OWNER, CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, ENGINEER, and 
ENGINEER’s consultants in the Work, all of whom shall be listed as insureds or additional 
insured parties. 
 

5.8 All of the policies of insurance (or the certificates or other evidence thereof) required to be 
purchased and maintained by OWNER in accordance with Paragraphs 5.6 and 5.7 shall contain a 
provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled or materially changed, or 
renewal refused until at least thirty days’ prior written notice has been given to CONTRACTOR 
by certified mail, and shall contain waiver provisions in accordance with Paragraph 5.11.2. 

 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-11 

5.9 OWNER shall not be responsible for purchasing and maintaining any property insurance to protect 
the interests of CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, or others in the Work to the extent of any 
deductible amounts that are provided in the Supplementary Conditions.  The risk of loss within the 
deductible amounts will be borne by CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, or others suffering any 
such loss and if any of them wishes property insurance coverage within the limits of such 
amounts, each may purchase and maintain it at the purchaser’s own expense. 

 
5.10 If CONTRACTOR requests in writing that other special insurance be included in the property 

insurance policy, OWNER shall, if possible, include such insurance, and the cost thereof shall be 
charged to CONTRACTOR by appropriate Change Order or Written Amendment.  Prior to 
commencement of the Work at the site, OWNER shall in writing advise CONTRACTOR whether 
or not such other insurance has been procured by OWNER.  

 
Waiver of Rights: 
 

5.11.1 OWNER and CONTRACTOR waive all rights against each other for all losses and 
damages caused by any of the perils covered by the policies of insurance provided in 
response to Paragraphs 5.6 and 5.7, and any other property insurance applicable to the 
Work, and also waive all such rights against the Subcontractors, ENGINEER, 
ENGINEER’s consultants, and all other parties named as insureds in such policies for 
losses and damages so caused.  As required by paragraph 6.11, each subcontract between 
CONTRACTOR and a Subcontractor shall contain similar waiver provisions by the 
Subcontractor in favor of OWNER, CONTRACTOR, ENGINEER, ENGINEER’s 
consultants, and all  other parties named as insureds.  None of the above waivers shall 
extend to the rights that any of the insured parties may have to the proceeds of insurance 
held by OWNER as trustee or otherwise payable under any policy so issued. 

 
5.11.2 OWNER and CONTRACTOR intend that any policies provided in response to 

Paragraphs 5.6 and 5.7 shall protect all of the parties insured and provide primary 
coverage for all losses and damages caused by the perils covered thereby.  Accordingly, 
all such policies shall contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any 
loss or damage the insurer will have no rights of recovery against any of the parties 
named as insureds or additional insureds, and if the insurers require separate waiver 
forms to be signed by the ENGINEER or ENGINEER’s consultants, OWNER will obtain 
the same, and if such waiver forms are required of any Subcontractor, CONTRACTOR 
will obtain the same. 

 
Receipt and Application of Proceeds: 
 
5.12 Any insured loss under the policies of insurance required by Paragraphs 5.6 and 5.7 will be 

adjusted with OWNER and made payable to OWNER as trustee for the insureds, as their interests 
may appear, subject to the requirements of any applicable mortgage clause and of Paragraph 5.13.  
OWNER shall deposit in a separate account any money so received, and shall deposit in a separate 
account any money so received, and shall distribute it in accordance with such agreement as the 
parties in interest may reach.  If no other special agreement is reached the damaged Work shall be 
repaired or replaced, the monies so received applied on account thereof and the Work and the cost 
thereof covered by an appropriate Change Order or Written Amendment. 

 
5.13 OWNER as trustee shall have power to adjust and settle any loss with the insurers unless one of he 

parties in interest shall object in writing within fifteen days after the occurrence of loss to 
OWNER’s exercise of this power.  If such objection be made, OWNER as trustee shall make 
settlement with the insurers in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may 
reach.  If required in writing by any party in interest, OWNER as trustee shall, upon the 
occurrence of an insured loss, give bond for the proper performance of his duties. 

 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-12 

Acceptance of Insurance: 
 
5.14 If OWNER has any objection to the coverage afforded by or other provisions of the insurance 

required to be purchased and maintained by CONTRACTOR in accordance with Paragraphs 5.3 
and 5.4 on the basis of its not complying with the Contract Documents,, OWNER shall notify 
CONTRACTOR in writing thereof within ten days of the date of delivery of such certificates to 
OWNER in accordance with Paragraph 2.7.  if CONTRACTOR has any objection to the coverage 
afforded by or other provisions of the policies of insurance required to be purchased and 
maintained by OWNER in accordance with Paragraphs 5.6 and 5.7 on the basis of their not 
complying with the Contract Documents, CONTRACTOR shall notify OWNER in writing thereof 
within ten days of the date of delivery of such certificates to CONTRACTOR in accordance with 
paragraph 2.7.  OWNER and CONTRACTOR shall each provide to the other such additional 
information in respect of insurance provided by each as the other may reasonably request.  Failure 
by OWNER or CONTRACTOR to give any such notice of objection within the time provided 
shall constitute acceptance of such insurance purchased by the other as complying with the 
Contract Documents. 

 
Partial Utilization – Property Insurance: 
 
5.15 If OWNER finds it necessary to occupy or use a portion or portions of the Work prior to 

Substantial Completion of all the Work, such use or occupancy may be accomplished in 
accordance with Paragraph 14.10; provided that no such use or occupancy shall commence before 
the insurers providing the property insurance have acknowledged notice thereof and in writing 
effected the changes in coverage necessitated thereby.  The insurers providing the property 
insurance shall consent by endorsement on the policy or policies, but the property insurance shall 
not be canceled or lapse on account of any such partial use or occupancy. 

 
 
ARTICLE 6 – CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
Supervision and Superintendence: 
 
6.1 CONTRACTOR shall supervise and direct the Work competently and efficiently, devoting such 

attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform the Work 
in accordance with the Contract Documents.  CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for the 
means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, but CONTRACTOR shall 
not be solely responsible for the negligence of others in the design or selection of a specific means, 
method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction which is indicated in and required by 
the Contract Documents.  CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to see that the finished Work 
complies accurately with the Contract Documents. 

 
6.2 CONTRACTOR shall keep on the Work at all times during its progress a competent resident 

superintendent, who shall not be replaced without written notice to OWNER and ENGINEER 
except under extraordinary circumstances.  The superintendent will be CONTRACTOR’s 
representative at the site and shall have authority to act on behalf of CONTRACTOR  all 
communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to CONTRACTOR. 

 
Labor, Materials, and Equipment: 
 
6.3.1 CONTRACTOR shall provide competent, suitably qualified personnel to survey and lay out the 

Work and perform construction as required by the Contract Documents.  CONTRACTOR shall at 
all times maintain good discipline and order at the site.  Except in connection with the safety or 
protection of persons or the Work or property at the site or adjacent thereto, and except as 
otherwise indicated in the Contract Documents, all Work at the site shall be performed during 
regular working hours, and CONTRACTOR will not permit overtime work or the performance of 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-13 

Work on Saturday, Sunday, or any legal holiday without OWNER’s written consent given after 
prior written notice to ENGINEER. 

 
6.3.2 No discrimination shall be made in the employment of persons upon public works because of the 

race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical 
condition, marital status, or sex of such persons, except as provided in Section 12940 of the 
Government Code, and every contractor for public works violating this section is subject to all the 
penalties imposed for a violation of this chapter. 

  
6.4 Unless otherwise specified in the General Requirements, CONTRACTOR shall furnish and 

assume full responsibility for all materials, equipment, labor, transportation, construction 
equipment and machinery, tools, appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, telephone, water, sanitary 
facilities, temporary facilities, and all other facilities and incidentals necessary for the furnishing, 
performance, testing, startup, and completion of the Work. 

 
6.5 All materials and equipment shall be of good quality and new, except as otherwise provided in the 

Contract Documents.  If required by ENGINEER, CONTRACTOR shall furnish satisfactory 
evidence (including reports of required tests) as to the kind and quality of materials and 
equipment.  All materials and equipment shall be applied, installed, connected, erected, used, 
cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with the instructions of the applicable Supplier, except as 
otherwise provided in the Contract Documents; but no provision of any such instruction will be 
effective to assign to ENGINEER, or any of ENGINEER’s  consultants, agents, or employees, any 
duty or authority to supervise or direct the furnishing or performance of the Work or any duty or 
authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of Paragraph 9.15 or 9.16. 

 
Adjusting Progress Schedule: 
 
6.6 CONTRACTOR shall submit to ENGINEER for acceptance (to the extent indicated in Paragraph 

2.9) adjustments in the progress schedule to reflect the impact thereon of new developments; these 
shall conform generally to the progress schedule then in effect and additionally shall comply with 
any provisions of the General Requirements applicable thereto. 

 
Substitutes or “Or-Equal” Items: 
 

6.7.1 Whenever materials or equipment are specified or described in the Contract Documents 
by using the name of a proprietary item or the name of a particular Supplier, the naming 
of the item is intended to establish the type, function, and quality required.  Unless the 
name is followed by words indicating that no substitution is permitted, materials or 
equipment of other Suppliers may be accepted by ENGINEER if sufficient information is 
submitted by CONTRACTOR to allow ENGINEER to determine that the material or 
equipment proposed is equivalent or equal to that named.  The procedure for review by 
ENGINEER will include the following as supplemented in the General Requirements.  
Requests for review of substitute items of material and equipment will not be accepted by 
ENGINEER from anyone other than CONTRACTOR.  If CONTRACTOR wishes to 
furnish or use a substitute item of material or equipment, CONTRACTOR shall make 
written application to ENGINEER for acceptance thereof, certifying that the proposed 
substitute will perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the 
general design, be similar and of equal substance to that specified, and be suited to the 
same use as that specified.  The application will state that the evaluation and acceptance 
of the proposed substitute will not prejudice CONTRACTOR’s achievement of 
Substantial Completion on time, whether or not acceptance of the substitute for use in the 
Work will require a change in the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other 
direct contract with OWNER for work on the Project) to adapt the design to the proposed 
substitute and whether or not incorporation or use of the substitute in connection with the 
Work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty.  All variations of the proposed 
substitute from that specified shall be identified in the application and available 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-14 

maintenance, repair, and replacement service shall be indicated.  The application shall 
also contain an itemized estimate of all costs that will result directly or indirectly from 
the acceptance of such substitute, including costs of redesign and claims of other 
contractors affected by the resulting change, all of which shall be considered by 
ENGINEER in evaluating the proposed substitute.  ENGINEER may require 
CONTRACTOR to furnish at CONTRACTOR’s expense additional data about the 
proposed substitute. 

 
6.7.2 If a specific means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction is 

indicated in or required by the Contract Documents, CONTRACTOR may furnish or 
utilize a substitute means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction 
acceptable to the ENGINEER, if CONTRACTOR submits sufficient information to allow 
ENGINEER to determine that the substitute proposed is equivalent to that indicated or 
required by the Contract Documents.  The procedure for review by the ENGINEER will 
be similar to that provided in Paragraph 6.7.1 as applied by ENGINEER and as may be 
supplemented in the General Requirements. 

 
6.7.3 ENGINEER will be allowed a reasonable time within which to evaluate each proposed 

substitute.  ENGINEER will be the sole judge of acceptability, and no substitute shall be 
ordered, installed, or utilized without ENGINEER’s prior written acceptance which will 
be evidenced by either a Change Order or an approved Shop Drawing.  OWNER may 
require CONTRACTOR to furnish at CONTRACTOR’s expense a special performance 
guarantee or other surety with respect to any substitute.  ENGINEER will record time 
required by ENGINEER and ENGINEER’s consultants in evaluating substitutions 
proposed by CONTRACTOR and in making changes to the Contract Documents 
occasioned thereby.  Whether or not ENGINEER accepts a proposed substitute, 
CONTRACTOR shall reimburse OWNER for the charges of ENGINEER and 
ENGINEER’s consultants for evaluating each proposed substitute. 

 
Concerning Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others: 
 

6.8.1 CONTRACTOR shall not employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other person or 
organization (including those acceptable to OWNER and ENGINEER as indicated in 
paragraph 6.8.2), whether initially or as a substitute, against whom OWNER or 
ENGINEER may have reasonable objection.  CONTRACTOR shall not be required to 
employ any Subcontractor, Supplier or other person or organization to furnish or perform 
any of the Work against whom CONTRACTOR has reasonable objection. 

 
6.8.2 If the Supplementary Conditions require the identity of certain Subcontractors, Suppliers, 

or other persons or organizations (including those who are to furnish the principal items 
of materials and equipment) to be submitted to OWNER in advance of the specified date 
prior to the Effective Date of the Agreement for acceptance by the OWNER and 
ENGINEER, and if CONTRACTOR has submitted a list thereof in accordance with the 
Supplementary Conditions, OWNER’s or ENGINEER’s acceptance (either in writing or 
by failing to make written objection thereto by the date indicated for acceptance or 
objection in the bidding documents or the Contract Documents) of any such 
Subcontractor, Supplier, or other person or organization so identified may be revoked on 
the basis of reasonable objection after due investigation, in which case CONTRACTOR 
shall submit an acceptable substitute, the Contract Price will be increased by the 
difference in cost occasioned by such substitution and an appropriate Change Order will 
be issued or Written Amendment signed.  No acceptance by OWNER or ENGINEER of 
any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other person or organization shall constitute a 
waiver of any right of OWNER or ENGINEER to reject defective Work.  

 
6.9 CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible to OWNER and ENGINEER for all acts and omissions 

of the Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other persons and organizations performing or furnishing 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-15 

any of the Work under a direct or indirect contract with CONTRACTOR, just as CONTRACTOR 
is responsible for CONTRACTOR’s own acts and omissions.  Nothing in the Contract Documents 
shall create any contractual relationship between OWNER or ENGINEER and any such 
Subcontractor, Supplier, or other person or organization, nor shall it create any obligation on the 
part of OWNER or ENGINEER to pay or to see to the payment of any monies due any such 
Subcontractor, Supplier, or other person or organization, except as may otherwise be required by 
Laws and Regulations. 

 
6.10 The divisions and sections of the Specifications and the identifications of any Drawings shall not 

control CONTRACTOR in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or Suppliers or delineating 
the Work to be performed by any specific trade. 

 
6.11 All Work performed by CONTRACTOR by a Subcontractor will be pursuant to an appropriate 

agreement between CONTRACTOR and the Subcontractor which specifically binds the 
Subcontractor to the applicable terms and conditions of the Contract Documents for the benefit of 
OWNER and ENGINEER and contains waiver provisions as required by paragraph 5.11.  
CONTRACTOR shall pay each Subcontractor a just share of any insurance monies received by 
CONTRACTOR on account of losses under policies issued pursuant to Paragraphs 5.6 and 5.7. 

 
Patent Fees and Royalties: 
 
6.12 CONTRACTOR shall pay all license fees and royalties and assume all costs incident to the use in 

the performance of the Work or the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, 
product, or device which is the subject of patent rights or copyrights held by others.  If a particular 
invention, design, process, product or device is specified in the Contract Documents for use in the 
performance of the Work and if to the actual knowledge of OWNER or ENGINEER its use is 
subject to patent rights or copyrights calling for payment of any license fee or royalty to others, the 
existence of such rights shall be disclosed by OWNER in the Contract Documents.  
CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless OWNER and ENGINEER and anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by either of them from and against all claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses (including attorneys’ fees and court and arbitration costs) arising out of any infringement 
of patent rights or copyrights incident to the use in the performance of the Work or resulting from 
the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device not specified in 
the Contract Documents, and shall defend all such claims in connection with any alleged 
infringement of such rights. 

 
Permits: 
 
6.13 Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, CONTRACTOR shall obtain and 

pay for all construction permits and licenses.  OWNER shall assist CONTRACTOR, when 
necessary, in obtaining such permits and licenses.  CONTRACTOR shall pay all governmental 
charges and inspection fees necessary for the prosecution of the Work which are applicable at the 
time of opening of Bids, or if there are no bids, on the Effective Date of the Agreement.  
CONTRACTOR shall pay all charges of utility owners for connections to the Work, and OWNER 
shall pay all charges of such utility owners for capital costs related thereto such as plant 
investment fees. 

 
Laws and Regulations 
 

6.14.1 CONTRACTOR shall give all notices and comply with all Laws and Regulations 
applicable to furnishing all performance of the Work.  Except where otherwise expressly 
required by applicable Laws and Regulations, neither OWNER nor ENGINEER shall be 
responsible for monitoring CONTRACTOR’s compliance with any Laws and 
Regulations. 

 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-16 

6.14.2 If CONTRACTOR observes that the Specifications or Drawings are at variance with any 
Laws or Regulations, CONTRACTOR shall give ENGINEER prompt written notice 
thereof, and any necessary changes will be authorized by one of the methods indicated in 
paragraph 3.4.  if CONTRACTOR performs any Work knowing or having reason to 
know that it is contrary to such Laws and Regulations, and without such notice to  

 
ENGINEER, CONTRACTOR shall bear all costs arising therefrom; however, it shall not 
be CONTRACTOR’s primary responsibility to make certain that the Specifications and 
Drawings are in accordance with such Laws and Regulations. 

 
Taxes 
 
6.15 CONTRACTOR shall pay all sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes required to be paid by 

CONTRACTOR in accordance with the Laws and Regulations of the place of the Project which 
are applicable during the performance of the Work.  

 
Use of Premises: 
 
6.16 CONTRACTOR shall confine construction equipment, the storage of materials and equipment, 

and the operations of workers to the Project site and land and areas identified in and permitted by 
the Contract Documents and other land and areas permitted by Laws and Regulations, right-of-
way, permits, and easements, and shall not unreasonably encumber the premises with construction 
equipment or other materials or equipment.  CONTRACTOR shall assume full responsibility for 
any damage to any such land or area, or to the owner or occupant thereof or of any land or areas 
contiguous thereto, resulting from the performance of the Work.  Should any claim be made 
against OWNER or ENGINEER by any such owner or occupant because of the performance of 
the Work, CONTRACTOR shall promptly attempt to settle with such other party by agreement or 
otherwise resolve the claim by arbitration or at law.  CONTRACTOR shall, to the fullest extent 
permitted by Laws and Regulations, indemnify and hold OWNER and ENGINEER harmless from 
and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including, but not limited to, fees of 
engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and court and arbitration costs) arising 
directly, indirectly, or consequentially out of any action, legal or equitable, brought by any such 
other party against OWNER or ENGINEER to the extent based on a claim arising out of 
CONTRACTOR’s performance of the Work. 

 
6.17 During the progress of the Work, CONTRACTOR shall keep the premises free from 

accumulations of waste materials, rubbish, and other debris resulting from the Work.  At the 
completion of the Work, CONTRACTOR shall remove all waste materials, rubbish, and debris 
from and about the premises as well as all tools, appliances, construction equipment and 
machinery, and surplus materials, and shall leave the site clean and ready for occupancy by 
OWNER.  CONTRACTOR shall restore to their original condition all property not designated for 
alteration by the Contract Documents.  

 
6.18 CONTRACTOR shall not load nor permit any part of any structure to be loaded in any manner 

that will endanger the structure, nor shall CONTRACTOR subject any part of the Work or 
adjacent property to stresses or pressures that will endanger it. 

 
Record Documents: 
 
6.19 CONTRACTOR shall maintain in a safe place at the site one record copy of all Drawings, 

Specifications, Addenda, Written Amendments, Change Orders, work Directive Changes, Field 
Orders, and written interpretations and clarifications (issued pursuant to Paragraph 9.4) in good 
order and annotated to show all changes made during construction.  These record documents 
together with all approved Shop Drawings shall be available to ENGINEER for reference.  Upon 
completion of the Work, these record documents, samples, and Shop Drawings shall be delivered 
to the ENGINEER for the OWNER. 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-17 

 
Safety and Protection: 
 
6.20 CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety 

precautions and programs in connection with the Work.  CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary 
precautions for the safety of, and shall provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury, 
or loss to: 

 
6.20.1 All employees on the Work and other persons and organizations who may be affected 

thereby; 
 
6.20.2 All the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage 

on or off the site; and 
 
6.20.3 Other property at the site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, 

pavements, roadways, structures, utilities, and Underground Facilities not designated for 
removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of construction. 

 
 CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable Laws and Regulations of any public body 

having jurisdiction for the safety of persons or property or to protect them from damage, injury, or 
loss, and shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection.  
CONTRACTOR shall notify owners of adjacent property and of Underground Facilities and 
utility owners when prosecution of the Work may affect them, and shall cooperate with them in 
the protection, removal, relocation, and replacement of their property.  All damage, injury, or loss 
to any property referred to in Paragraph 6.20.2 or 6.20.3 caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or 
in part, by CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, Supplier or any other person or organization 
directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work, or anyone 
for whose acts any of them may be liable, shall be remedied by CONTRACTOR (except damage 
or loss attributable to the fault of Drawings and Specifications or to the acts or omissions of 
OWNER or ENGINEER or anyone employed by either of them or anyone for whose acts either of 
them may be liable, and not attributable, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to the fault or 
negligence of CONTRACTOR). CONTRACTOR’s duties and responsibilities for the safety and 
protection of the Work shall continue until such time as all the Work is completed and 
ENGINEER has issued a notice to OWNER and CONTRACTOR in accordance with Paragraph 
14.13 that the Work is acceptable (except as otherwise expressly provided in connection with 
Substantial Completion). 

 
6.21 CONTRACTOR shall designate a responsible representative at the site whose duty shall be the 

prevention of accidents.  This person shall be CONTRACTOR’s superintendent unless otherwise 
designated in writing by the CONTRACTOR to the OWNER. 

 
Emergencies: 
 
6.22 In emergencies affecting the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the site or 

adjacent thereto, CONTRACTOR, without special instruction or authorization from ENGINEER 
or OWNER, is obligated to act to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss.  CONTRACTOR 
shall give ENGINEER prompt written notice in CONTRACTOR believes that any significant 
changes in the Work or variations from the Contract Documents have been caused thereby.  If 
ENGINEER determines that a change in the Contract Documents is required because of the action 
taken in response to an emergency, a Work Directive Change or Change Order will be issued to 
document the consequences of the changes or variations. 

 
 In the event a national emergency occurs, and a public work being performed under this contract is 

stopped, directly or indirectly, because of the freezing or diversion of materials, equipment or 
labor, as the result of an order or a proclamation of the President of the United States, or of an 
order of any federal authority, and the circumstances or conditions are such that it is impracticable 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-18 

within a reasonable time to proceed with a substantial portion of the work, then the OWNER and 
the CONTRACTOR may, by written agreement, terminate said contract. 

 
Shop Drawings and Samples: 
 
6.23 After checking and verifying all field measurements and after complying with applicable 

procedures specified in the General Requirements, CONTRACTOR shall submit to ENGINEER 
for review and approval in accordance with the accepted schedule of Shop Drawing submissions 
(see paragraph 2.9), or for other appropriate action if so indicated in the Supplementary 
Conditions, three copies (unless otherwise specified in the General Requirements) of all Shop 
Drawings, which will bear a stamp or specific written indication that CONTRACTOR has 
satisfied CONTRACTOR’s responsibilities under the Contract Documents with respect to review 
of the submittal.  All submittals shall be identified as ENGINEER may require.  The data shown 
on the Shop Drawings shall be complete with respect to quantities, dimensions, specified 
performance and design criteria, materials, and similar data to enable ENGINEER to review the 
information as required. 

 
6.24 CONTRACTOR shall also submit to ENGINEER for review and approval, with such promptness 

as to cause no delay in the Work, all samples required by the Contract Documents.  All samples 
shall have been checked by and accompanied by a specific written indication that CONTRACTOR 
has satisfied CONTRACTOR’s responsibilities under the Contract Documents with respect to 
review of the submittal and shall be identified clearly as to material, Supplier, pertinent data such 
as catalog numbers, and the use for which intended. 

 
6.25.1 Before submission of each Shop Drawing or sample, CONTRACTOR shall have 

determined and verified all quantities, dimensions, specified performance criteria, 
installation requirements, materials, catalog numbers, and similar data with respect 
thereto and reviewed or coordinated each Shop Drawing or sample with other Shop 
Drawings and samples and with the requirements of the Work and the Contract 
Documents. 

 
6.25.2 At the time of each submission, CONTRACTOR shall give ENGINEER specific written 

notice of each variation that the Shop Drawings or samples may have from the 
requirements of the Contract Documents, and, in addition, shall cause a specific notation 
to be made on each Shop Drawing submitted to ENGINEER for review and approval of 
each such variation. 

 
6.26 ENGINEER will review and approve with reasonable promptness Shop Drawings and samples, 

but ENGINEER’s review and approval will be only for conformance with the design concept of 
the Project and for compliance with the information given in the Contract Documents and shall not 
extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction (except where a 
specific means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction is indicated in or 
required by the Contract Documents) or to safety precautions or programs incident thereto.  The 
review and approval of a separate item as such will not indicate approval of the assembly in which 
the item functions.  CONTRACTOR shall make corrections required by ENGINEER and shall 
return the required number of corrected copies of Shop Drawings and submit as required new 
samples for review and approval.  CONTRACTOR shall direct specific attention in writing to 
revisions other than the corrections called for by ENGINEER on previous submittals. 

 
6.27 ENGINEER’s review and approval of Shop Drawings or samples shall not relieve 

CONTRACTOR from responsibility for any variation from the requirements of the Contract 
Documents unless CONTRACTOR has in writing called ENGINEER’s attention to each such 
variation at the time of submission as required by Paragraph 6.25.2 and ENGINEER has given 
specific written approval of each such variation by a specific written notation thereof incorporated 
in or accompanying the Shop Drawing or sample approval; nor will any approval by the 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-19 

ENGINEER relieve CONTRACTOR from responsibility for errors or omissions in the Shop 
Drawing or from responsibility for having complied with the provisions of Paragraph 6.25.1. 

 
6.28 Where a Shop Drawing or sample is required by the Specifications, any related Work performed 

prior to ENGINEER’s review and approval of the pertinent submittal will be at the sole expense 
and responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. 

 
Continuing the Work: 
 
6.29 CONTRACTOR shall carry on the Work and adhere to the progress schedule during all disputes 

or disagreements with OWNER.  No Work shall be delayed or postponed pending resolution of 
any disputes or disagreements, except as permitted by Paragraph 15.5 or as CONTRACTOR and 
OWNER may otherwise agree in writing. 

 
Indemnification: 
 
6.30 To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and 

hold harmless OWNER and ENGINEER and their consultants, agents, and employees from and 
against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, direct, indirect, or consequential (including but 
not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and 
court and arbitration costs) arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Work, provided 
that any such claim, damage, loss, or expense (a) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, 
or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself) including 
the loss of use resulting therefrom and (b) is caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or 
omission of CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, any person or organization directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of 
them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it is caused in part by a party indemnified 
hereunder or arises by or is imposed by Laws and Regulations regardless of the negligence of any 
such party. 

 
6.31 In any and all claims against OWNER or ENGINEER or any of the consultants, agents, or 

employees by any employee of CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, any person or organization 
directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work, or anyone 
for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under Paragraph 6.30 
shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, 
or benefits payable by or for CONTRACTOR or any such Subcontractor or other person or 
organization under the worker’s or workmen’s compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 
employee benefit acts. 

 
6.32 The obligations of CONTRACTOR under Paragraph 6.30 shall not extend to the liability of 

ENGINEER, ENGINEER’s consultants, agents, or employees arising out of the preparation or 
approval  of maps, drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, Change Orders, designs, or specifications. 

 
 
ARTICLE 7 – OTHER WORK  
 
Related Work at Site: 
 
7.1 OWNER may perform other work related to the Project at the site by OWNER’s own forces, have 

other work performed by utility owners, or let other direct contracts therefor which shall contain 
General Conditions similar to these.  If the fact that other such work is to be performed was not 
noted in the Contract Documents, written notice thereof will be given to CONTRACTOR prior to 
starting any such additional work; and, if CONTRACTOR believes that such performance will 
involve additional expense to CONTRACTOR or requires additional time, and parties are unable 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-20 

to agree as to the extent thereof, CONTRACTOR may make a claim therefor as provided in 
Articles 11 and 12. 

 
7.2 CONTRACTOR shall afford each utility owner and other contractor who is a party to such direct 

contract (or OWNER, if OWNER is performing the additional work with OWNER’s employees) 
proper and safe access to the site and a reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of 
materials and equipment and the execution of such work, and shall properly connect and 
coordinate the Work with theirs.  CONTRACTOR shall do all cutting, fitting, and patching of his 
Work that may be required to make its several parts come together properly and integrate with 
such other work.  CONTRACTOR shall not endanger any work of others by cutting, excavating, 
or otherwise altering their work and will only cut or alter their work with the written consent of 
ENGINEER and the others whose work will be affected.  The duties and responsibilities of 
CONTRACTOR under this paragraph are for the benefit of such utility owners and other 
contractors to the extent that there are comparable provisions for the benefit of CONTRACTOR in 
said direct contract between OWNER and such utility owners and other contractors. 

 
7.3 If any part of CONTRACTOR’s Work depends for proper execution or results upon the work of 

any such other contractor or utility owner (or OWNER), CONTRACTOR shall inspect and 
promptly report to ENGINEER in writing any delays, defects, or deficiencies in such work that 
render it unavailable or unsuitable for such proper execution and results.  CONTRACTOR’s 
failure so to report will constitute an acceptance of the other work as fit and proper for integration 
with CONTRACTOR’s work except for latent or nonapparent defects and deficiencies in the other 
work. 

 
Coordination: 
 
7.4 If OWNER contracts with others for the performance of other work on the Project at the site, the 

person or organization who will have the authority and responsibility for coordination of the 
activities among the various prime contractors will be identified in the Supplementary Conditions, 
and the specific matters to be covered by such authority and responsibility will be itemized, and 
the extent of such authority and responsibility will be provided, in the Supplementary Conditions.  
Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, the specific matters to be covered by 
such authority and responsibility will be itemized, and the extent of such authority and 
responsibility will be provided, in the Supplementary Conditions.  Unless otherwise provided in 
the Supplementary Conditions, neither OWNER nor ENGINEER shall have any authority or 
responsibility in respect of such coordination. 

 
 
ARTICLE 8 – OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
8.1 OWNER shall issue all communications to CONTRACTOR through ENGINEER or through 

OWNER'S RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE. 
 
8.2 In case of termination of the employment of ENGINEER, OWNER shall appoint an engineer 

against whom CONTRACTOR makes no reasonable objection, whose status under the Contract 
Documents shall be that of the former ENGINEER.  Any dispute in connection with such 
appointment shall be subject to arbitration. 

 
8.3 OWNER shall furnish the data required by OWNER under the Contract Documents promptly and 

shall make payments to CONTRACTOR promptly after they are due as provided in Paragraphs 
14.4 and 14.13. 

 
8.4 OWNER’s duties in respect of providing lands and easements and providing engineering surveys 

to establish reference points are set forth in Paragraphs 4.1 and 4.4.  Paragraph 4.2 refers to 
OWNER’s identifying and making available to CONTRACTOR copies of reports of explorations 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-21 

and tests of subsurface conditions at the site and in existing structures which have been utilized by 
ENGINEER in preparing the Drawings and Specifications. 

 
8.5 OWNER’s responsibilities in respect of purchasing and maintaining liability and property 

insurance are set forth in Paragraphs 5.5 through 5.8. 
 
8.6 OWNER is obligated to execute Change Orders as indicated in Paragraph 10.4. 
 
8.7 OWNER’s responsibility in respect of certain inspections, tests, and approvals is set forth in 

Paragraph 13.4. 
 
8.8 In connection with OWNER’s right to stop Work or suspend Work, see Paragraphs 13.10 and 

15.1.  Paragraph 15.2 deals with OWNER’s right to terminate services of CONTRACTOR under 
certain circumstances. 

 
 
ARTICLE 9 – ENGINEER’S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION  
 
Owner’s Representative: 
 
9.1 ENGINEER will may be an OWNER’s representative during the construction period.  The duties 

and responsibilities and the limitations of authority of ENGINEER as OWNER’s representative 
during construction are set forth in the Contract Documents and shall not be extended without 
written consent of OWNER and ENGINEER. 

 
Visits to Site: 
 
9.2 ENGINEER will make visits to the site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of 

construction to observe the progress and quality of the executed Work and to determine, in 
general, if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents.  ENGINEER will 
not be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or 
quantity of the Work.  ENGINEER’s efforts will be directed toward providing for OWNER a 
greater degree of confidence that the completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents.  
On the basis of such visits and on-site observations, ENGINEER will keep OWNER informed of 
the progress of the Work and will endeavor to guard OWNER against defects and deficiencies in 
the Work. 

 
Project Representation: 
 
9.3 The OWNER and ENGINEER agree, ENGINEER will furnish a Resident Project Representative 

to assist ENGINEER in observe the performance of the Work or such Representative may be 
furnished to the City by the Engineer.  The duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of 
any such Resident Project Representative and assistants will be as provided in the Supplementary 
Conditions.  If OWNER designates another agent at the site who is not ENGINEER’s agent or 
employee, the duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such other person will be as 
provided in the Supplementary Conditions.  

 
Clarifications and Interpretations: 
 
9.4 ENGINEER will issue with reasonable promptness such written clarifications or interpretations of 

the Contract Documents (in the form of Drawings or otherwise) as ENGINEER may determine 
necessary, which shall be consistent with or reasonably inferable from the overall intent of the 
Contract Documents.  If CONTRACTOR believes that a written clarification or interpretation 
justifies an increase in the Contract Price or an extension in the Contract Time and the parties are 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-22 

unable to agree as to the amount or extent thereof, CONTRACTOR may make a claim therefor as 
provided in Article 11 or Article 12. 

 
Authorized Variations in Work: 
 
9.5 ENGINEER may authorize minor variations in the Work from the requirements of the Contract 

Documents which do not involve a change in the Contract Price or the Contract Time and are 
consistent with the overall intent of the Contract Documents.  These may be accomplished with a 
Field Order, and shall be binding on OWNER, and also on CONTRACTOR, who shall perform 
the Work involved promptly.  If CONTRACTOR believes that a Field Order justifies an increase 
in the Contract Price or an extension in the Contract Time and the parties are unable to agree as to 
the amount or extent thereof, CONTRACTOR may make a claim therefor as provided in Article 
11 or Article 12. 

 
Rejecting Defective Work: 
 
9.6 ENGINEER will have authority to disapprove or reject Work which ENGINEER believes to be 

defective, and will also have authority to require special inspection or testing of the Work as 
provided in Paragraph 13.9, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed. 

 
Shop Drawings, Samples, Change Orders, and Payments: 
 
9.7 In connection with ENGINEER’s responsibility for Shop Drawing and samples, see Paragraphs 

6.23 through 6.28 inclusive. 
 
9.8 In connection with ENGINEER’s responsibilities as to Change Orders, see Articles 10, 11, and 12. 
 
9.9 In connection with ENGINEER’s responsibility in respect of applications for Payment, etc., see 

Article 14. 
 
Determinations for Unit Prices: 
 
9.10 ENGINEER will determine the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed 

by CONTRACTOR.  ENGINEER will review with CONTRACTOR ENGINEER’s preliminary 
determinations on such matters before rendering a written determination thereon (by 
recommending an Application for Payment or otherwise).  ENGINEER’s written decision thereon 
shall be final and binding upon OWNER and CONTRACTOR, unless, within ten days after the 
date of any such decision, either OWNER or CONTRACTOR delivers to the other party to the 
Agreement and to ENGINEER written notice of intent to appeal from such a decision. 

 
Decisions on Disputes: 
 
9.11 ENGINEER will be the initial interpreter of the requirements of the Contract Documents and 

judge of the acceptability of the Work thereunder.  Claims, disputes, and other matters relating to 
the acceptability of the Work or the interpretation of the requirements of the Contract Documents 
pertaining to the performance and furnishing of the Work and claims under Article 11 and 12 in 
respect of changes in the Contract Price or Contract Time will be referred initially to ENGINEER 
in writing with a request for a formal decision in accordance with this paragraph, which 
ENGINEER will render in writing within a reasonable time.  Written notice of each such claim, 
dispute, and other matter shall be delivered by the claimant to ENGINEER and the other party to 
the Agreement promptly (but in no event later than thirty days) after the occurrence of the event 
giving rise thereto, and written supporting data will be submitted to ENGINEER and the other 
party within sixty days of such occurrence unless ENGINEER allows an additional period of time 
to ascertain more accurate data in support of the claim. 

 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-23 

9.12 When functioning as interpreter and judge under Paragraphs 9.10 and 9.11 ENGINEER shall not 
show partiality to OWNER or CONTRACTOR and will not be liable in connection with any 
interpretation or decision rendered in good faith in such capacity.  The rendering of a decision by 
ENGINEER pursuant to Paragraphs 9.10 and 9.11 with respect to any such claim, dispute, or other 
matter (except any which have been waived by the making or acceptance of final payment as 
provided in paragraph 14.16) will be a condition precedent to any exercise by OWNER or 
CONTRACTOR of such rights or remedies as either may otherwise have under the Contract 
Documents or by Laws and Regulations in respect of any such claim, dispute, or other matter. 

 
Limitations of ENGINEER’s Responsibilities: 
 
9.13 Neither ENGINEER’s authority to act under this Article 9 or elsewhere in the Contract Documents 

nor any decision made by ENGINEER in good faith either to exercise or not exercise such 
authority shall give rise to any duty or responsibility of ENGINEER to CONTRACTOR, any 
Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any other person or organization performing any of the Work, or 
to any surety for any of them. 

 
9.14 Whenever in the Contract Documents the terms “as ordered,” “as directed,” “as required,” “as 

allowed,” “as approved,” or terms of like effect or import are used, or the adjectives “reasonable,” 
“suitable,” “acceptable,” “proper,” or “satisfactory,” or adjectives of like effect or import are used, 
to describe requirement, direction, review, or judgment of ENGINEER as to the Work, it is 
intended that such requirement, direction, review, or judgment will be solely to evaluate the Work 
for compliance with the Contract Documents (unless there is a specific statement indicating 
otherwise).  The use of any such term or adjective shall not be effective to assign to ENGINEER 
any duty or authority to supervise or direct the furnishing or performance of the Work or any duty 
or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of paragraph 9.15 or 9.16. 

 
9.15 ENGINEER will not be responsible for CONTRACTOR’s means, methods, techniques, 

sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, 
and ENGINEER will not be responsible for CONTRACTOR’s failure to perform or furnish the 
Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
9.16 ENGINEER will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or of any 

Subcontractor, any Supplier, or of any other person or organization performing or furnishing any 
of the Work. 

 
 
ARTICLE 10 – CHANGES IN THE WORK  
 
10.1 Without invalidating the Agreement and without notice to any surety, OWNER may, at any time 

or from time to time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work; these will be authorized 
by a Written Amendment, a Change Order, or a Work Directive Change. Upon receipt of any such 
document, CONTRACTOR shall promptly proceed with the Work involved, which will be 
performed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents (except as otherwise 
specifically provided). 

 
10.2 If OWNER and CONTRACTOR are unable to agree as to the extent, if any, of an increase or 

decrease in the Contract Price, or an extension of shortening of the Contract Time that should be 
allowed as a result of a Work Directive Change, a claim may be made therefor as provided in 
Article 11 or Article 12. 

 
10.3 CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the 

Contract Time with respect to any Work performed that is not required by the Contract Documents 
as amended, modified, and supplemented as provided in Paragraphs 3.4 and 3.5, except in the case 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-24 

of an emergency as provided in Paragraph 6.22 and except in the case of uncovering work as 
provided in Paragraph 13.9. 

 
10.4 OWNER and CONTRACTOR shall execute appropriate Change Orders (or Written Amendments) 

covering: 
 

10.4.1 Changes in the Work which are ordered by OWNER, pursuant to Paragraph 10.1, are 
required because of acceptance of defective Work under Paragraph 13.13 or correcting 
defective Work under Paragraph 13.14, or are agreed to by the parties; 

 
10.4.2 Changes in the Contract Price or Contract Time which are agreed to by the parties; and 
 
10.4.3 Changes in the Contract Price or Contract Time which embody the substance of any 

written decision rendered by ENGINEER pursuant to Paragraph 9.11; 
 
provided that, in lieu of executing any such Change Order, an appeal may be taken from any such 
decision in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents and applicable Laws and 
Regulations, but during any such appeal, CONTRACTOR shall carry on the Work and adhere to 
the progress schedule as provided in Paragraph 6.29. 

 
10.5 If notice of any change affecting the general scope of the Work or provisions of the Contract 

Documents (including but not limited to, Contract Price or Contract Time) is required by the 
provisions of any Bond to be given to a surety, the giving of any such notice will be 
CONTRACTOR’s responsibility, and the amount of each applicable Bond will be adjusted 
accordingly. 

 
 
ARTICLE 11 – CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE  
 
11.1 The Contract Price constitutes the total compensation (subject to authorized adjustments) payable 

to CONTRACTOR for performing the Work. All duties, responsibilities, and obligations assigned 
to or undertaken by CONTRACTOR shall be at his expense without change in the Contract Price. 

 
11.2 The Contract Price may only be changed by a Change Order or by a Written Amendment. Any 

claim for an increase or decrease in the Contract Price shall be based on written notice delivered 
by the party making the claim to the other party and to ENGINEER promptly (but in no event later 
than thirty days) after the occurrence of the event giving rise to the claim and stating the general 
nature of the claim. Notice of the amount of the claim with supporting data shall be delivered 
within sixty days of such occurrence (unless ENGINEER allows an additional period of time to 
ascertain more accurate data in support of the claim) and shall be accompanied by claimant’s 
written statement that the amount claimed covers all known amounts (direct, indirect, and 
consequential) to which the claimant is entitled as a result of the occurrence of said event. All 
claims for adjustment in the Contract Price shall be determined by ENGINEER in accordance with 
Paragraph 9.11 if OWNER and CONTRACTOR cannot otherwise agree on the amount involved. 
No claim for an adjustment in the Contract Price will be valid if not submitted in accordance with 
this Paragraph 11.2. 

 
11.3 The value of any Work covered by a Change Order  or of any claim for an increase or decrease in 

the Contract Price shall be determined in one of the following ways: 
 

11.3.1 Where the Work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, 
by application of unit prices to the quantities of the items involved (subject to the 
provisions of Paragraphs 11.9.1 through 11.9.3 inclusive); 

 
11.3.2 By mutual acceptance of a lump sum (which may include an allowance for overhead and 

profit not necessarily in accordance with Paragraph 11.6.2.1); or 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-25 

 
11.3.3 On the basis of the Cost of the Work (determined as provided in Paragraphs 11.4 and 

11.5) plus a CONTRACTOR’s Fee for overhead and profit (determined as provided in 
Paragraphs 11.6 and 11.7). 

 
Cost of the Work: 
 
11.4 The term “Cost of the Work” means the sum of all costs necessarily incurred and paid by 

CONTRACTOR in the proper performance of the Work. Except as otherwise may be agreed to in 
writing by OWNER, such costs shall be in amounts no higher than those prevailing in the locality 
of the Project, shall include only the following items, and shall not include any of the costs 
itemized in Paragraph 11.5: 

 
11.4.1 Payroll costs for employees in the direct employ of CONTRACTOR in the performance 

of the Work under schedules of job classifications agreed upon by OWNER  and 
CONTRACTOR. Payroll costs for employees not employed full time on the work shall 
be apportioned on the basis of their time spent on the Work. Payroll costs shall include, 
but not be limited to, salaries and wages plus the cost of fringe benefits which shall 
include social security contributions, unemployment, excise, and payroll taxes, workers’ 
or workmen’s compensation, health and retirement benefits, bonuses, sick leave, 
vacation, and holiday pay applicable thereto. Such employees shall include 
superintendents and foremen at the site. The expenses of performing Work after regular 
working hours, on Sunday, or legal holidays, shall be included in the above to the extent 
authorized by OWNER. 

 
11.4.2 Cost of all materials and equipment furnished and incorporated in the Work, including 

costs of transportation and storage thereof, and Suppliers’ field services required in 
connection therewith. All cash discounts shall accrue to CONTRACTOR unless OWNER 
deposits funds with CONTRACTOR with which to make payments, in which case the 
cash discounts shall accrue to OWNER. All trade discounts, rebates, and refunds, and all 
returns from sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to OWNER, and 
CONTRACTOR shall make provisions so that they may be obtained. 

 
11.4.3 Payments made by CONTRACTOR to the Subcontractors for Work performed by 

Subcontractors. If required by OWNER, CONTRACTOR shall obtain competitive bids 
from Subcontractors acceptable to CONTRACTOR and shall deliver such bids to 
OWNER who will then determine, with the advice of ENGINEER, which bids will be 
accepted. If a subcontract provides that the Subcontractor is to be paid on the basis of 
Cost of the Work Plus a Fee, the Subcontractor’s Cost of the Work shall be determined in 
the same manner as CONTRACTOR’s Cost of the Work.  All subcontracts shall be 
subject to the other provisions of the Contract Documents insofar as applicable. 

 
11.4.4 Costs of special consultants (including, but not limited to engineers, architects, testing 

laboratories, surveyors, attorneys, and accountants) employed for service specifically 
related to the Work. 

 
11.4.5 Supplemental costs including the following: 

 
11.4.5.1 The proportion of necessary transportation, travel, and subsistence expenses of 

CONTRACTOR’s employees incurred in discharge of duties connected with the 
Work. 

 
11.4.5.2 Cost, including transportation and maintenance, of all materials, supplies, 

equipment, machinery, appliances, office and temporary facilities at the site, and 
hand tools not owned by the workers which are consumed in the performance of 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-26 

the Work, and cost less market value of such items used but not consumed 
which remain the property of CONTRACTOR. 

 
11.4.5.3 Rentals of all construction equipment and machinery and the parts thereof 

whether rented from CONTRACTOR or others in accordance with rental 
agreements approved by OWNER with the advice of ENGINEER, and all costs 
of transportation, loading, unloading, installation, dismantling, and removal 
thereof – all in accordance with terms of said rental agreements. The rental of 
any such equipment, machinery, or parts shall cease when the use thereof is no 
longer necessary for the Work. 

 
11.4.5.4 Sales, consumer, use, or similar taxes related to the Work and for which 

CONTRACTOR is liable, imposed by Laws and Regulations. 
 
11.4.5.5 Deposits lost for causes other than negligence of CONTRACTOR, any 

Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for 
whose acts any of them may be liable, and royalty payments and fees for permits 
and licenses. 

 
11.4.5.6 Losses and damages (and related expenses), not compensated by insurance or 

otherwise, to the Work or otherwise sustained by CONTRACTOR in connection 
with the performance and furnishing of the Work (except losses and damages 
within the deductible amounts of property insurance established by OWNER in 
accordance with Paragraph 5.9), provided they have resulted from causes other 
than the negligence of CONTRACTOR, and Subcontractor, or anyone directly 
or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be 
liable. Such losses shall include settlements made with the written consent and 
approval of OWNER. No such losses, damages, and expenses shall be included 
in the Cost of the Work for the purpose of determining CONTRACTOR’s Fee. 
If, however, any such loss or damage requires reconstruction and 
CONTRACTOR is placed in charge thereof, CONTRACTOR shall be paid for 
services a fee proportionate to that stated in Paragraph 11.6.2. 

 
11.4.5.7 The cost of utilities, fuel and sanitary facilities at the site. 
 
11.4.5.8 Minor expenses such as telegrams, long distance telephone calls, telephone 

service at the site, expressage, and similar petty cash items in connection with 
the Work. 

 
11.4.5.9 Cost of premiums for additional Bonds and insurance required because of 

changes in the Work and premiums for property insurance within the deductible 
amounts established by OWNER in accordance with Paragraph 5.9. 

 
11.5 The term “Cost of the Work” shall not include any of the following: 
 

11.5.1 Payroll costs and other compensation of CONTRACTOR’s officers, executives, 
principals (of partnership and sole proprietorships), general managers, engineers, 
architects, estimators, attorneys, auditors, accountants, purchasing and contracting agents, 
expediters, timekeepers, clerks, and other personnel employed by CONTRACTOR 
whether at the site or in CONTRACTOR’s principal or a branch office for general 
administration of the Work and not specifically included in the agreed upon schedule of 
job classifications referred to in Paragraph 11.4.1 or specifically covered by Paragraph 
11.4.4 – all of which are to be considered administrative costs covered by the 
CONTRACTOR’s Fee. 

 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-27 

11.5.2 Expenses of CONTRACTOR’s principal and branch offices other than 
CONTRACTOR’s office at the site. 

 
11.5.3 Any part of CONTRACTOR’s capital expenses, including interest on CONTRACTOR’s 

capital employed for the Work and charges against CONTRACTOR for delinquent 
payments. 

 
11.5.4 Cost of premiums for all Bonds and for all insurance whether or not CONTRACTOR is 

required by the Contract Documents to purchase and maintain the same (except for the 
cost of premiums covered by Paragraph 11.4.5.9 above). 

 
11.5.5 Costs due to the negligence of CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or 

indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable 
including, but not limited to, the correction of defective Work, disposal of materials or 
equipment wrongly supplied, and making good any damage to property. 

 
11.5.6 Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the costs of any item not 

specifically and expressly included in Paragraph 11.4. 
 

Contractor’s Fee: 
 
11.6 The Contractor's Fee allowed to CONTRACTOR for overhead and profit shall be determined as 

follows: 
 
 11.6.1 A mutually acceptable fixed fee; or if none can be agreed upon, 
 
 11.6.2 A fee based on the following percentages of the various portions of the Cost of the Work: 
 

11.6.2.1 For costs incurred under Paragraphs 11.4.1 and 11.4.2, the Contractor's Fee shall 
be fifteen percent; 

 
11.6.2.2 For costs incurred under Paragraph 11.4.3, the Contractor's Fee shall be five 

percent; and if a subcontract is on the basis of Cost of the Work Plus a Fee, the 
maximum allowable to CONTRACTOR on account of overhead and profit of all 
Subcontractors shall be fifteen percent. 

 
11.6.2.3 No fee shall be payable on the basis of costs itemized under Paragraphs 11.4.4, 

11.4.5, and 11.5; 
 
11.6.2.4 The amount of credit to be allowed by CONTRACTOR to OWNER for any 

such change which results in a net decrease in cost shall be the amount of the 
actual net decrease plus a deduction in the CONTRACTOR’s Fee by an amount 
equal to ten percent of the net decrease; and  

 
11.6.2.5 When both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the adjustment 

in CONTRACTOR’s Fee shall be computed on the basis of the net change in 
accordance with Paragraphs 11.6.2.1 through 11.6.2.4 inclusive. 

 
11.7 Whenever the cost of any Work is to be determined pursuant to paragraph 11.4 or 11.5, 

CONTRACTOR shall submit in form acceptable to ENGINEER an itemized cost breakdown 
together with supporting data. 

 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-28 

Cash Allowances: 
 
11.8 It is understood that CONTRACTOR has included in the Contract Price all allowances so named 

in the Contract Documents and shall cause the Work so covered to be done by such 
Subcontractors or Suppliers and for such sums within the limit of the allowances as may be 
acceptable to ENGINEER.  CONTRACTOR agrees that: 

 
11.8.1 The allowances include the cost to CONTRACTOR (less any applicable trade discounts) 

of materials and equipment required by the allowances to be delivered at the site, and all 
applicable taxes; and 

 
11.8.2 CONTRACTOR’s cost for unloading and handling on the site, labor, installation costs, 

overhead, profit, and other expenses contemplated for the allowances have been included 
in the Contract Price and not in the allowances.  No demand for additional payment on 
account of any thereof will be valid. 

 
 Prior to final payment, an appropriate Change Order will be issued as recommended by 

ENGINEER to reflect actual amounts due CONTRACTOR on account of Work covered by 
allowances, and Contract Price shall be correspondingly adjusted. 

 
Unit Price Work: 
 
11.9.1 Where the Contract Documents provide that all or part of the Work is to be Unit Price Work, 

initially the Contract Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amount equal to 
the sum of the established unit prices for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times 
the estimated quantity of each item as indicated in the Agreement.  The estimated quantities of 
items of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed and are solely for the purpose of comparison of the 
Bids and determining an initial Contract Price.  Determinations of the actual quantities and 
classifications of Unit Price Work performed by  CONTRACTOR will be made by ENGINEER in 
accordance with paragraph 9.10. 

 
11.9.2 Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by CONTRACTOR to be 

adequate to cover CONTRACTOR’s overhead and profit for each separately identified item. 
 
11.9.3 Where the quantity of any item of Unit Price Work performed by CONTRACTOR differs 

materially and significantly from the estimated quantity of such item indicated in the Agreement 
and there is no corresponding adjustment with respect to any other item of Work and if 
CONTRACTOR believes that CONTRACTOR has incurred additional expense as a result thereof, 
CONTRACTOR may make a claim for an increase in the Contract Price in accordance with 
Article 11 if the parties are unable to agree as to the amount of any such increase. 

 
 
ARTICLE 12 – CHANGE OF CONTRACT TIME  
 
12.1 The Contract Time may only be changed by a Change Order or a Written Amendment.  Any claim 

for an extension or shortening of the Contract Time shall be based on written notice delivered by 
the party making the claim to the other party and ENGINEER promptly (but in no case later than 
thirty days) after the occurrence of the event giving rise to the claim and stating the general nature 
of the claim.  Notice of the extent of the claim with supporting data shall be delivered within sixty 
days of such occurrence (unless ENGINEER allows an additional period of time to ascertain more 
accurate data in support of the claim) and shall be accompanied by the claimant’s written 
statement that the adjustment claimed is the entire adjustment to which claimant has reason to 
believe it is entitled as a result of the occurrence of said event.  All claims for adjustment in the 
Contract Time shall be determined by ENGINEER in accordance with paragraph 9.11 if OWNER 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-29 

and CONTRACTOR cannot otherwise agree.  No claim for adjustment in Contract Time will be 
valid if not submitted in accordance with the requirements of this paragraph 12.1. 

 
12.2 The Contract Time will be extended in an amount equal to time lost due to delays beyond the 

control of CONTRACTOR if a claim is made therefor as provided in Paragraph 12.1.  Such delays 
shall include, but not be limited to, acts or neglect by OWNER or others performing additional 
work as contemplated by Article 7, or to fires, floods, labor disputes, epidemics, abnormal weather 
conditions, or acts of God. 

 
12.3 All time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Agreement.  The 

provisions of this Article 12 shall not exclude recovery for damages (including but not limited to 
fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and court and 
arbitration costs) for delay by either party. 

 
 
ARTICLE 13 – WARRANTY AND GUARANTEE; TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; 
CORRECTION, REMOVAL, OR ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE WORK  
 
Warranty and Guarantee: 
 
13.1 CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees to OWNER and ENGINEER that all Work will be in 

accordance with the Contract Documents and will not be defective.  Prompt notice of all defects 
shall be given to CONTRACTOR.  All defective Work, whether or not in place, may be rejected, 
corrected, or accepted as provided in this Article 13. 

 
Access to Work: 
 
13.2 ENGINEER and ENGINEER’s representatives, other representatives of OWNER, testing 

agencies, and governmental agencies with jurisdictional interests shall have access to the Work at 
reasonable times for their observation, inspection, and testing.  CONTRACTOR shall provide 
proper and safe conditions for such access. 

 
Tests and Inspections: 
 
13.3 CONTRACTOR shall give ENGINEER timely notice of readiness of the Work for all required 

inspections, tests, or approvals. 
 
13.4 If Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction require any Work (or part thereof) 

to specifically be inspected, tested, or approved, CONTRACTOR shall assume full responsibility 
therefor, pay all costs in connection therewith and furnish ENGINEER the required certificates of 
inspection, testing, or approval.  CONTRACTOR shall also be responsible for and shall pay all 
cost in connection with OWNER’s or ENGINEER’s acceptance of a Supplier of materials or 
equipment proposed to be incorporated in the Work, or of materials or equipment submitted for 
approval prior to CONTRACTOR’s purchase thereof for incorporation in the Work.  The cost of 
all other inspections, tests, and approvals in addition to the above which are required by the 
Contract Documents shall be paid by OWNER (unless otherwise specified). 

 
13.5 All inspections, tests, or approvals other than those required by Laws or Regulations of any public 

body having jurisdiction shall be performed by organizations acceptable to OWNER and 
CONTRACTOR (or by ENGINEER if so specified). 

 
13.6 If any Work (including the work of others) that is to be inspected, tested, or approved is covered 

without written concurrence of ENGINEER, it must, if requested by ENGINEER, be uncovered 
for observation.  Such uncovering shall be at CONTRACTOR’s expense unless CONTRACTOR 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-30 

has given ENGINEER timely notice of CONTRACTOR’s intention to cover such Work and 
ENGINEER has not acted with reasonable promptness in response to such notice. 

 
13.7 Neither observations by ENGINEER nor inspections, tests, or approvals by others shall relieve 

CONTRACTOR from his obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents.  

 
Uncovering Work: 
 
13.8 If any Work is covered contrary to the written request of ENGINEER, it must, if requested by 

ENGINEER, be uncovered for ENGINEER’s observation and replaced at CONTRACTOR’s 
expense. 

 
13.9 If ENGINEER considers it necessary or advisable that covered Work be observed by ENGINEER 

or inspected or tested by others, CONTRACTOR, at ENGINEER’s request, shall uncover, expose, 
or otherwise make available for observation, inspection, or testing as ENGINEER may require, 
that portion of the Work in question, furnishing all necessary labor, material, and equipment. If it 
is found that such Work  is defective, CONTRACTOR shall bear all the direct, indirect, and 
consequential costs of such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, and testing and of 
satisfactory reconstruction (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, 
attorneys, and other professionals), and OWNER shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the 
Contract Price, and, if the parties are unable to agree as to the amount thereof, may make a claim 
therefor as provided in Article 11.  If, however, such Work is not found to be defective, 
CONTRACTOR shall be allowed increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract 
Time, or both, directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing, 
and reconstruction; and, if the parties are unable to agree as to the amount or extent thereof, 
CONTRACTOR may make a claim therefor as provided in Articles 11 and 12. 

 
Owner May Stop the Work: 
 
13.10 If the Work is defective, or CONTRACTOR fails to supply sufficient skilled workmen or suitable 

materials or equipment, or fails to furnish or perform the Work in such a way that the completed 
Work will conform to the Contract Documents, OWNER may order CONTRACTOR to stop the 
Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this 
right of OWNER to stop the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of OWNER to 
exercise this right for the benefit of CONTRACTOR or any other party. 

 
Correction or Removal of Defective Work: 
 
13.11 If required by ENGINEER, CONTRACTOR shall promptly, as directed, either correct all 

defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed, or, if the Work has been 
rejected by ENGINEER, remove it from the site and replace it with nondefective Work.  
CONTRACTOR shall bear all direct, indirect, and consequential costs of such correction or 
removal (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other 
professionals) made necessary thereby. 

 
One-Year Correction Period: 
 
13.12 If within one year after the date of Substantial Completion, or such longer period of time as may 

be prescribed by Laws or Regulations or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required 
by the Contract Documents or by any specific provisions of the Contract Documents, any Work is 
found to be defective, CONTRACTOR shall promptly, without cost to OWNER and in 
accordance with OWNER’s written instruction, either correct such defective Work, or, if it has 
been rejected by OWNER, remove it from the site and replace it with nondefective Work.  If 
CONTRACTOR does not promptly comply with the terms of such instructions, or in an 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-31 

emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage, OWNER may have the 
defective Work corrected or the rejected Work removed and replaced, and all direct, indirect, and 
consequential costs of such removal and replacement (including but not limited to fees and 
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals), will be paid by 
CONTRACTOR.  In special circumstances where a particular item of equipment is placed in 
continuous service before Substantial Completion of all the Work, the correction period for that 
item may start to run from an earlier date if so provided in the Specifications or by Written 
Amendment. 

 
Acceptance of Defective Work: 
 
13.13 If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of defective Work, OWNER  (and, 

prior to ENGINEER’s recommendation of final payment, also ENGINEER) prefers to accept it, 
OWNER may do so.  CONTRACTOR shall bear all direct, indirect, and consequential costs 
attributable to OWNER’s evaluation of and determination to accept such defective Work (such 
costs to be approved by ENGINEER as to reasonableness and to include but not be limited to fees 
and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals).  If any such acceptance 
occurs prior to ENGINEER’s recommendation of final payment, a Change Order will be issued 
incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work; and 
OWNER shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price, and, if the parties are 
unable to agree as to the amount thereof, OWNER may make a claim therefor as provided in 
Article 11.  If the acceptance occurs after such recommendation, an appropriate amount will be 
paid by CONTRACTOR to OWNER. 

 
Owner May Correct Defective Work: 
 
13.14 If CONTRACTOR fails within a reasonable time after written notice of ENGINEER to proceed to 

correct and to correct defective Work or to remove and replace rejected Work as required by 
ENGINEER in accordance with Paragraph 13.11, or if CONTRACTOR fails to perform the Work 
in accordance with the Contract Documents, or if CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any other 
provision of the Contract Documents, OWNER may, after seven days’ written notice to 
CONTRACTOR, correct and remedy any such deficiency.  In exercising the rights and remedies 
under this paragraph OWNER shall proceed expeditiously.  To the extent necessary to complete 
corrective and remedial action, OWNER may exclude CONTRACTOR from all or part of the site, 
take possession of all or part of the Work, and suspend CONTRACTOR’s services related thereto, 
take possession of CONTRACTOR’s tools, appliances, construction equipment, and machinery at 
the site and incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the site or for which 
OWNER has paid CONTRACTOR but which are stored elsewhere.  CONTRACTOR shall allow 
OWNER, OWNER’s representatives, agents, and employees such access to the site as may be 
necessary to enable OWNER to exercise the rights under this paragraph.  All direct, indirect, and 
consequential costs of OWNER in exercising such rights and remedies shall be charged against 
CONTRACTOR in an amount approved as to reasonableness by ENGINEER, and a Change 
Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect 
to the Work; and OWNER shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price, and, if 
the parties are not able to agree as to the amount thereof, OWNER may make a claim therefor as 
provided in Article 11.  Such direct, indirect, and consequential costs shall include but not be 
limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, all court 
and arbitration costs, and all costs of repair and replacement of work of others destroyed or 
damaged by correction, removal, or replacement of CONTRACTOR’s defective Work.  
CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed an extension of the Contract Time because of any delay in 
performance of the Work attributable to the exercise by OWNER of OWNER’s rights and 
remedies hereunder. 

 
 
 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-32 

ARTICLE 14 – PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR AND COMPLETION  
 
Schedule of Values: 
 
14.1 The schedule of values established as provided in paragraph 2.9 will serve as the basis for progress 

payments and will be incorporated into an Application for Payment acceptable to the ENGINEER.  
Acceptable form shall be AIA Document G702 or equal.  Progress payments on account of Unit 
Price Work will be based on the number of units completed. 

 
Application for Progress Payment: 
 
14.2 At least twenty days before each progress payment falls due (but not more often than once a 

month), CONTRACTOR shall submit to ENGINEER for review an Application for Payment 
filled out and signed by CONTRACTOR covering the Work completed as of the date of the 
Application and accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract 
Documents and also as ENGINEER may reasonably require.  If payment is requested on the basis 
of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored at the 
site or at another location agreed to in writing, the Application for Payment shall also be 
accompanied by a bill of sale, invoice, or other documentation warranting that OWNER has 
received the materials and equipment free and clear of all liens, charges, security interests, and 
encumbrances (which are hereinafter in these General Conditions referred to as “Liens”) and 
evidence that the materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance and other 
arrangements to protect OWNER’s interest therein, all of which must be satisfactory to OWNER.  
The amount of retainage with respect to progress payments will be as stipulated in the Agreement.  

 
CONTRACTOR’s Warranty of Title: 
 
14.3 CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials, and equipment covered 

by any Application for Payment, whether incorporated in the Project or not, will pass to OWNER 
no later than the time of payment, free and clear of all Liens. 

 
Review of Applications for Progress Payment: 
 
14.4 ENGINEER will, within ten days after receipt of each  Application for Payment, either indicate in 

writing a recommendation of payment and present the Application to OWNER, or return the 
Application to CONTRACTOR indicating in writing ENGINEER’s reasons for refusing to 
recommend payment.  In the latter case, CONTRACTOR may make the necessary corrections and 
resubmit the Application.  Ten days after presentation of the Application for Payment with 
ENGINEER’s recommendation, the amount recommended will (subject to the provisions of the 
last sentence of paragraph 14.7) become due and when due shall be paid by OWNER to 
CONTRACTOR. 

 
14.5 ENGINEER’s recommendation of any payment requested in an Application for Payment will 

constitute a representation by ENGINEER to OWNER, based on ENGINEER’s on-site 
observations of the Work in progress and on ENGINEER’s review of the Application for Payment 
and the accompanying data and schedules that the Work has progressed to the point indicated; 
that, to the best to ENGINEER’s knowledge, information, and belief, the quality of the Work is in 
accordance with the Contract Documents (subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning 
whole prior to or upon Substantial Completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in 
the Contract Documents, to a final determination of quantities and classifications for Unit Price 
Work under Paragraph 9.10, and to any other qualifications stated in the recommendation); and 
that CONTRACTOR is entitled to payment of the amount recommended. However, by 
recommending any such payment ENGINEER will not thereby be deemed to have represented 
that exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections have been made to check the quality or the 
quantity of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to ENGINEER in the 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-33 

Contract Documents, or that there may not be other matters or issues between the parties that 
might entitle CONTRACTOR to be paid additionally by OWNER or OWNER to withhold 
payment to CONTRACTOR. 

 
14.6 ENGINEER’s recommendation of final payment will  constitute an additional representation by 

ENGINEER to OWNER that the conditions precedent to CONTRACTOR’s being entitled to final 
payment as set forth in paragraph 14.13 have been fulfilled. 

 
14.7 ENGINEER may refuse to recommend the whole or any part of any payment if, in ENGINEER’s 

opinion, it would be incorrect to make such representations to OWNER.  ENGINEER may also 
refuse to recommend any such payment, or, because of subsequently discovered evidence or the 
results or subsequent inspections or tests, nullify any such payment previously recommended to 
such extent as may be necessary in ENGINEER’s opinion to protect OWNER from loss because: 

 
14.7.1 The Work is defective, or completed Work has been damaged requiring correction or 

replacement;  
 
 14.7.2 The Contract Price has been reduced by Change Order or Written Amendment; 
 

14.7.3 OWNER has been required to correct defective Work or complete work in accordance 
with Paragraph 13.14; or 

 
14.7.4 Of ENGINEER’s actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events enumerated in 

paragraphs 15.2.1 through 15.2.9 inclusive. 
 

OWNER may refuse to make payment of the full amount recommended by ENGINEER because 
claims have been made against OWNER on account of CONTRACTOR’s performance or 
furnishing of the Work or Liens have been filed in connection with the Work or there are other 
items entitling OWNER to a set-off against the amount recommended, but OWNER must give 
CONTRACTOR immediate written notice (with a copy to ENGINEER) stating the reasons for 
such action. 

 
Substantial Completion: 
 
14.8 When CONTRACTOR considers the entire Work ready for its intended use CONTRACTOR shall 

notify OWNER and ENGINEER in writing that the entire Work is substantially complete (except 
for items specifically listed by CONTRACTOR as incomplete) and request that ENGINEER issue 
a Notice of Substantial Completion.  Within a reasonable time thereafter, OWNER, 
CONTRACTOR, and ENGINEER shall make an inspection of the Work to determine the status of 
completion.  If ENGINEER does not consider the Work substantially complete, ENGINEER will 
notify CONTRACTOR in writing giving the reasons therefor.  If ENGINEER considers the Work 
substantially complete, ENGINEER will prepare and deliver to OWNER a tentative Notice of 
Substantial Completion which shall fix the date of Substantial Completion.  There shall be 
attached to the Notice a tentative list of items to be completed or corrected before final payment.  
Owner shall have seven days after receipt of the tentative Notice during which to make written 
objection to ENGINEER as to any provisions of the Notice or attached list.  If, after considering 
such objections, ENGINEER concludes that the Work is not substantially complete, ENGINEER 
will within fourteen days after submission of the tentative Notice to OWNER notify 
CONTRACTOR in writing, stating the reasons therefor.  If, after consideration of OWNER’s 
objections, ENGINEER considers the Work substantially complete, ENGINEER will within said 
fourteen days execute and deliver to OWNER and CONTRACTOR a definitive Notice of 
substantial Completion (with a revised tentative list of items to be completed or corrected) 
reflecting such changes from the tentative Notice ENGINEER believes justified after 
consideration of any objections from OWNER.  At the time of delivery of the tentative Notice of 
Substantial Completion ENGINEER will deliver to OWNER and CONTRACTOR a written 
recommendation as to division of responsibilities pending final payment between OWNER and 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-34 

CONTRACTOR with respect to security, operation, safety, maintenance, heat, utilities, insurance, 
and warranties.  Unless OWNER and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing and so inform 
ENGINEER prior to ENGINEER’s issuing the definitive Notice of Substantial Completion, 
ENGINEER’s aforesaid recommendation will be binding on OWNER and CONTRACTOR until 
final payment. 

 
14.9 OWNER shall have the right to exclude CONTRACTOR from the Work after the date of 

Substantial Completion, but OWNER shall allow CONTRACTOR reasonable access to complete 
or correct items on a the tentative list of items to be completed or corrected. 

 
Partial Utilization: 
 
14.10 Use by OWNER of any finished part of the Work,  which has specifically been identified in the 

Contract Documents, or which OWNER, ENGINEER, and CONTRACTOR agree constitutes a 
separately functioning and fully usable part of the Work that can be used by OWNER without 
substantial interference with CONTRACTOR’s performance of the remainder of the Work, may 
be accomplished prior to Substantial Completion of all the work subject to the following: 

 
14.10.1 OWNER at any time may request CONTRACTOR in writing to permit OWNER to use 

any part of the Work which OWNER believes to be ready for its intended use and 
substantially complete.  If CONTRACTOR agrees, CONTRACTOR will certify to 
OWNER and ENGINEER that said part of the Work is substantially complete (except 
Striping) and request ENGINEER to issue a Notice of Substantial Completion for that 
part of the Work.  CONTRACTOR may at any time notify OWNER and ENGINEER in 
writing that CONTRACTOR considers any such part of the Work ready for its intended 
use and request ENGINEER to issue a Notice of Substantial Completion for that part of 
the Work.  Within a reasonable time after either such request, OWNER, 
CONTRACTOR, and ENGINEER shall make an inspection of that part of the Work to 
determine its status of completion.  If ENGINEER does not consider that part of the 
Work to be substantially complete, ENGINEER will notify OWNER and 
CONTRACTOR in writing giving his reasons therefor.  If ENGINEER considers that 
part of the Work to be substantially complete, the provisions of paragraphs 14.8 and 14.9 
will apply with respect to Notice of Substantial Completion of that part of the Work and 
the division of responsibility in respect thereof and access thereto. 

 
14.10.2 OWNER may at any time request CONTRACTOR in writing to permit OWNER to take 

over operation of any such part of the work although it is not substantially complete.  A 
copy of such request will be sent to ENGINEER, and within a reasonable time thereafter, 
OWNER, CONTRACTOR, and ENGINEER shall make an inspection of that part of the 
Work to determine its status of completion and will prepare a list of the items remaining 
to be completed or corrected thereon prior to final payment.  If CONTRACTOR does not 
object in writing to OWNER and ENGINEER that such part of the Work is not ready for 
separate operation by OWNER, ENGINEER will finalize the list of items to be 
completed or corrected and will deliver such list to OWNER and CONTRACTOR 
together with a written recommendation as to the division of responsibilities pending 
final payment between OWNER and CONTRACTOR with respect to security, operation, 
safety, maintenance, utilities, insurance, warranties, and guarantees for that part of the 
Work which will become binding upon OWNER and CONTRACTOR at the time when 
OWNER takes over such operation (unless they shall have otherwise agreed in writing 
and so informed ENGINEER). During such operation and prior to Substantial 
Completion of such part of the Work, OWNER shall allow CONTRACTOR reasonable 
access to complete or correct items on said list and to complete other related Work. 

 
14.10.3 On projects involving street maintenance or street reconstruction/reconstruction traffic, 

on such streets ("occupancy") will be allowed as soon as the work is completed to the 
satisfaction of the Project Representative for such usage  and no written authorization to 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-35 

the contractor will be required.  Such usage does not preclude later determination by the 
Engineer or the City that deficiencies or errors in such work that have been identified 
prior to, at, or later than such usage must be corrected by the Contractor to receive 
payment for the work.No occupancy or separate operation of part of the Work shall be 
accomplished prior to compliance with the requirements of paragraph 5.15 in respect of 
property insurance. 

 
Final Inspection: 
 
14.11 Upon written notice from CONTRACTOR that the entire Work or an agreed portion thereof is 

complete, ENGINEER will make a final inspection with OWNER and CONTRACTOR and will 
notify CONTRACTOR in writing of all particulars in which this inspection reveals that the Work 
is incomplete or defective.  CONTRACTOR shall immediately take such measures as are 
necessary to remedy such deficiencies. 

 
Final Application for Payment: 
 
14.12 After CONTRACTOR has completed all such needed corrections to the satisfaction of 

ENGINEER and delivered all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, 
Bonds, certificates of inspection, marked-up record documents (as provided in paragraph 6.19), 
and other documents—all as required by the Contract Documents, and after ENGINEER has 
indicated that the Work is acceptable (subject to the provisions of Paragraph 14.16), 
CONTRACTOR may make application for final payment following the procedure for progress 
payments.  The final Application for Payment shall be accompanied by all documentation called 
for in the Contract Documents and such other data and schedules as ENGINEER may reasonably 
require, together with complete and legally effective releases or waivers (satisfactory to OWNER) 
of all Liens arising out of or filed in connection with the Work. In lieu thereof and as approved by 
OWNER, CONTRACTOR may furnish receipts or releases in full; an affidavit of 
CONTRACTOR that the releases and receipts include all labor, services, material, and equipment 
for which a Lien could be filed, and that all payrolls, material and equipment bills, and other 
indebtedness connected with the Work for which OWNER or OWNER’s property might in any 
way be responsible, have been paid or otherwise satisfied; and consent of the surety, if any, to 
final payment.  If any Subcontractor or Supplier fails to furnish a release or receipt in full, 
CONTRACTOR may furnish a bond or other collateral satisfactory to OWNER to indemnify 
OWNER against any Lien. 

 
Final Payment and Acceptance: 
 
14.13 If, on the basis of ENGINEER’s observation of the Work during construction and final inspection, 

and ENGINEER’s review of the final Application for payment and accompanying 
documentation—all as required by the Contract Documents, ENGINEER is satisfied that the Work 
has been completed and CONTRACTOR’s other obligations under the Contract Documents have 
been fulfilled, ENGINEER will, within ten days after receipt of the final Application for Payment, 
indicate in writing his recommendation of payment and present the Application to OWNER for 
payment.  Thereupon ENGINEER will give written notice to OWNER  and CONTRACTOR that 
the Work is acceptable subject to the provisions of Paragraph 14.16.  otherwise, ENGINEER will 
return the Application to CONTRACTOR, indicating in writing the reasons for refusing to 
recommend final payment, in which case CONTRACTOR shall make the necessary corrections 
and resubmit the Application.  Thirty-five days after presentation to OWNER of the Application 
and accompanying documentation, in appropriate form and substance, and with ENGINEER’s 
recommendation and notice of acceptability, the amount recommended by ENGINEER will 
become due and shall be paid by OWNER to CONTRACTOR. 

 
14.14 If, through no fault of CONTRACTOR, final completion of the Work is significantly delayed and 

if ENGINEER so confirms, OWNER shall, upon receipt of CONTRACTOR’s final Application of 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-36 

payment and recommendation of ENGINEER, and without terminating the Agreement, make 
payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted.  If the 
remaining balance to be held by OWNER for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than 
the retainage stipulated in the Agreement, and if Bonds have been furnished as required in 
Paragraph 5.1, the written consent of the surety to the payment of the balance due for that portion 
of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by CONTRACTOR to ENGINEER 
with the Application for such payment.  Such payment shall be made under the terms and 
conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of claims. 

 
Contractor’s Continuing Obligation: 
 
14.15 CONTRACTOR’s obligation to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract 

Documents shall be absolute. Neither recommendation of any progress or final payment by 
ENGINEER, nor the issuance of a Notice of Substantial Completion, nor any payment by 
OWNER to CONTRACTOR under the Contract Documents, nor any use or occupancy of the 
Work or any part thereof by OWNER, nor any act of acceptance by OWNER nor any failure to do 
so, nor review or approval of any Shop Drawing or sample submittal, nor the issuance of a notice 
of acceptability by ENGINEER pursuant to Paragraph 14.13, nor any correction of defective Work 
by OWNER will constitute an acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents 
or a release of CONTRACTOR’s obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents (except as provided in paragraph 14.16). 

 
Waiver of Claims: 
 
14.16 The making and acceptance of final payment shall constitute: 
 

14.16.1 A waiver of all claims by OWNER against CONTRACTOR, except claims arising from 
unsettled Liens, from defective Work appearing after final inspection pursuant to 
paragraph 14.11, or from failure to comply with the Contract Documents or the terms of 
any special guarantees specified therein; however, it shall not constitute a waiver by 
OWNER of any rights in respect of CONTRACTOR’s continuing obligations under the 
Contract Documents; and 

 
14.16.2 A waiver of all claims by CONTRACTOR against OWNER other than those previously 

made in writing and still unsettled. 
 
 
ARTICLE 15 – SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION  
 
Owner May Suspend Work: 
 
15.1 OWNER may, at any time and without cause, suspend the Work or any portion thereof for a 

period of not more than ninety days by notice in writing to CONTRACTOR and ENGINEER 
which shall fix the date on which Work shall be resumed.  CONTRACTOR shall resume the Work 
on the date so fixed.  CONTRACTOR shall be allowed an increase in the Contract Price or an 
extension of the Contract Time, or both, directly attributable to any suspension if CONTRACTOR 
makes an approved claim therefor as provided in Articles 11 and 12. 

 
Owner May Terminate: 
 
15.2 Upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following events: 
 

15.2.1 If CONTRACTOR  commences a voluntary case under any chapter of the Bankruptcy 
Code (Title 11, United States Code) as now or hereafter in effect, or if CONTRACTOR 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-37 

takes any equivalent or similar action by filing a petition or otherwise under any other 
federal or state law in effect at such time relating to the bankruptcy or insolvency; 

 
15.2.2 If a petition is filed against CONTRACTOR under any chapter of the Bankruptcy Code 

as now or hereafter in effect at the time of filing, or if a petition is filed seeking any such 
equivalent or similar relief against CONTRACTOR under any other federal or state law 
in effect at such time relating to the bankruptcy or insolvency; 

 
 15.2.3 If CONTRACTOR makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; 
 

15.2.4 If a trustee, receiver, custodian, or agent of CONTRACTOR is appointed under 
applicable law or under contract, whose appointment or authority to take charge of 
property of CONTRACTOR is for the purpose of enforcing a Lien against such property 
or for the purpose of general administration of such property for the benefit of 
CONTRACTOR’s creditors; 

 
15.2.5 If CONTRACTOR admits in writing an inability to pay its debts generally as they 

become due; 
 

15.2.6 If CONTRACTOR persistently fails to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents (including, but not limited to, failure to supply sufficient skilled workers or 
suitable materials or equipment or failure to adhere to the progress schedule established 
under Paragraph 2.9 as revised from time to time); 

 
15.2.7 If CONTRACTOR disregards Laws or Regulations of any public body having 

jurisdiction; 
 
 15.2.8 If CONTRACTOR disregards the authority of ENGINEER; or 
 

15.2.9 If CONTRACTOR otherwise violates in any substantial way any provisions of the 
Contract Documents, 

 
OWNER may, after giving CONTRACTOR (and the surety, if  there be one) seven days’ written 
notice and to the extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, terminate the services of 
CONTRACTOR, exclude CONTRACTOR from the site and take possession of the Work and of 
all CONTRACTOR’s tools, appliances, construction equipment, and machinery at the site and use 
the same to the full extent they could be used by CONTRACTOR (without liability to 
CONTRACTOR for trespass or conversion), incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment 
stored at the site or for which OWNER has paid CONTRACTOR but which are stored elsewhere, 
and finish the Work as OWNER may deem expedient.  In such case CONTRACTOR shall not be 
entitled to receive any further payment until the Work is finished.  If the unpaid balance of the 
Contract Price exceeds the direct, indirect, and consequential costs of completing the Work, 
(including but not limited to the fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other 
professionals, and court and arbitration costs) such excess shall be paid to CONTRACTOR.  If 
such costs exceed such unpaid balance, CONTRACTOR shall pay the difference to OWNER.  
Such costs incurred by OWNER will be approved as to reasonableness by ENGINEER and 
incorporated in a Change Order, but in finished the Work OWNER shall not be required to obtain 
the lowest price for the Work performed. 

 
15.3 Where CONTRACTOR’s services have been so terminated by OWNER, the termination shall not 

affect any rights of OWNER against CONTRACTOR then existing or which may thereafter 
accrue.   Any retention or payment of monies due CONTRACTOR by OWNER will not release 
CONTRACTOR from liability. 

 
15.4 Upon seven days’ written notice to CONTRACTOR and ENGINEER, OWNER may, without 

cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, elect to abandon the Work and terminate 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-38 

the Agreement.  In such case, CONTRACTOR shall be paid for all Work executed and any 
expense sustained plus reasonable termination expenses, which will include, but not be limited to, 
direct, indirect, and consequential costs (including but not limited to the fees and charges of 
engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and court and arbitration costs). 

 
Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate: 
 
15.5 If, through no act or fault of CONTRACTOR, the Work is suspended for a period of more than 

ninety days by OWNER or under an order of court or other public authority, or ENGINEER fails 
to act on any Application for Payment within thirty days after it is submitted, or OWNER fails for 
thirty days to pay CONTRACTOR any sum finally determined to be due, then CONTRACTOR 
may, upon seven days’ written notice to OWNER and ENGINEER, terminate the Agreement and 
recover from OWNER payment for all Work executed and any expense sustained plus reasonable 
termination expenses.  In addition and in lieu of terminating the Agreement, if ENGINEER has 
failed to act on an Application for Payment or OWNER has failed to make any payment as 
aforesaid, CONTRACTOR may, upon seven days’ notice to OWNER and ENGINEER, stop the 
Work until payment of all amounts then due.  The provisions of this paragraph shall not relieve 
CONTRACTOR of his obligations under paragraph 6.29 to carry on the Work in accordance with 
the progress schedule and without delay during disputes and disagreements with OWNER. 

 
 
ARTICLE 16 – DISPUTE RESOLUTION  
 
16.1 Pursuant to the provisions of Public Contract Code Section 20104, et seq., all public works claims 

of $375,000 or less between a contractor and a governmental agency, unless the public agency has 
selected to resolve pursuant to Paragraph 16.2 (PCC Section 10240 et seq.), shall be resolved as 
follows: 

 
 A “Claim” means a demand by the contractor for any of the following: 
 (a) A time extension; 

(b) Payment for work done pursuant to the contract for a public work and for which payment 
is not otherwise provided for or that the claimant is not otherwise entitled to; or 

 (c) A disputed payment amount. 
 
Procedures: 
 

16.1.1 The claim shall be made by the contractor in writing and include documents necessary to 
substantiate the claim and must be filed on or before the date of final payment. 

 
16.1.2 The local agency’s written response shall be made as follows: 
 

(a) For claims of $50,000 or less: either a written response within 45 days of receipt 
of the claim, or a written request within 30 days of receipt of the claim for 
additional documentation. 

  
 If additional documentation is requested, the local agency’s written response to 

the claim shall be submitted 1) within 15 days after receipt of the additional 
documentation; or 2) within the same time period it took claimant to produce 
additional information, whichever is greater. 

 
(b) For claims of $50,000 to $375,000: either a written response within 60 days of 

receipt of the claim, or a written request within 30 days of receipt of the claim 
for additional documentation. 

 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-39 

 If additional documentation is requested, the local agency’s written response to 
the claim shall be submitted 1) within 30 days after receipt of the additional 
documentation; or 2) within the same time period it took claimant to produce the 
additional information, whichever is greater. 

 
16.1.3 If the claimant disputes the local agency’s written response, or the agency fails to 

respond, the claimant may, within 15 days of response or within 15 days of the date a 
response was due, make a written demand for an informal conference to meet and confer 
in an attempt to settle the issue in dispute.  Upon receipt of said written demand, the local 
agency shall schedule a settlement conference within 30 days of the demand. 

 
16.1.4 Following the settlement conference, if the claim or any portion remains in dispute, the 

claimant may then file a claim as provided in Section 910 et seq.  of the Government 
Code. 

 
16.1.5 All civil actions filed to resolve claims subject to this article shall be in accordance with 

the provisions of Public Contract Code Section 20104.4 and 20104.6. 
 

16.2 All claims, disputes, and other matters in question between OWNER and CONTRACTOR arising 
out of, or relating to the Contract Documents or the breach thereof (except for claims which have 
been waived by the making or acceptance of final payment as provided by paragraph 14.16 or as 
resolved by Paragraph 16.1 above) shall be decided by arbitration in accordance with the 
Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association then obtaining 
subject to the limitations of this Article 16.  This agreement so to arbitrate and any other 
agreement or consent to arbitrate entered into in accordance herewith as provided in this Article 16 
will be specifically enforceable under the prevailing law of any court having jurisdiction. 

 
16.3 No demand for arbitration of any claim, dispute, or other matter that is required to be referred to 

ENGINEER initially for decision in accordance with paragraph 9.11 shall be made until the earlier 
of (a) the date on which ENGINEER has rendered a decision or (b) the tenth day after the parties 
have presented their evidence to ENGINEER if a written decision has not been rendered by 
ENGINEER before that date.  No demand for arbitration of any such claim, dispute, or other 
matter shall be made later than thirty days after the date on which ENGINEER has rendered a 
written decision in respect thereof in accordance with paragraph 9.11; and the failure to demand 
arbitration within said thirty days’ period shall result in ENGINEER’s decision being final and 
binding upon OWNER and CONTRACTOR.  If ENGINEER renders a decision after arbitration 
proceedings have been initiated, such decision may be entered as evidence but shall not supersede 
the arbitration proceedings, except where the decision is acceptable to the parties concerned.  No 
demand for arbitration of any written decision of ENGINEER rendered in accordance with 
paragraph 9.10 shall be made later than ten days after the party making such demand has delivered 
written notice of intention to appeal as provided in Paragraph 9.10. 

 
16.4 Notice of the demand for arbitration shall be filed in writing with the other party to the Agreement 

and with the American Arbitration Association, and a copy shall be sent to ENGINEER for 
information.  The demand for arbitration shall be made within the thirty-day or ten-day period 
specified in Paragraph 16.2 as applicable, and in all other cases within a reasonable time after the 
claim, dispute, or other matter in question has arisen, and in no event shall any such demand be 
made after institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on such claim, dispute or other 
matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. 

 
16.5 No arbitration arising out of or relating to the Contract Documents shall include by consolidation, 

joinder, or in any other manner any other person or entity (including ENGINEER, ENGINEER’s 
agents, employees, or consultants) who is not a party to this contract unless: 

 
16.5.1 The inclusion of such other person or entity is necessary if complete relief is to be 

afforded among those who are already parties to the arbitration; 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-40 

 
16.5.2 Such other person or entity is substantially involved in a question of law or fact which is 

common to those who are already parties to the arbitration and which will arise in such 
proceedings; and 

 
16.5.3 The written consent of the other person or entity sought to the included and of OWNER 

and CONTRACTOR has been obtained for such inclusion, which consent shall make 
specific reference to this paragraph; but no such consent shall constitute consent to 
arbitration of any dispute not specifically described in such consent or to arbitration with 
any party not specifically identified in such consent. 

 
16.6 The award rendered by the arbitrators will be final, judgment may be entered upon it in any court 

having jurisdiction thereof, and will not be subject to modification or appeal except to the extent 
permitted by Sections 10 and 11 of the Federal Arbitration Act (9 U.S.C. §§ 10,11). 

 
 
ARTICLE 17 – MISCELLANEOUS  
 
Giving Notice: 
 
17.1 Whenever any provision of the Contract Documents requires the giving of written notice it shall 

be deemed to have been validly given if delivered in person to the individual or to a member of the 
firm or to an officer of the corporation for whom it is intended, or if delivered at or sent by 
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the last business address known to the giver of the 
notice. 

 
Computation of Time: 
 

17.2.1 When any period of time is referred to in the Contract Documents by days, it will be 
computed to exclude the first and include the last day of such period.  If the last day of 
any such period falls on a Saturday or Sunday or on a day made a legal holiday by the 
law of the applicable jurisdiction, such day will be omitted for the computation. 

 
17.2.2 A calendar day of twenty-four hours measured from midnight to the next midnight shall 

constitute a day. 
 
General: 
 
17.3 Should OWNER or CONTRACTOR suffer injury or damage to his person or property because of 

any error, omission, or act of the other party or of any of the other party’s employees or agents or 
others for whose acts the other party is legally liable, claim shall be made in writing to the other 
party within a reasonable time of the first observance of such injury or damage.  The provisions of 
this paragraph 17.3 shall not be construed as a substitute for or a waiver of any applicable statute 
of limitations or repose. 

 
17.4 The duties and obligations imposed by these General Conditions and the rights and remedies 

available hereunder to the parties thereto, and, in particular but without limitation, the warranties, 
guarantees, and obligations imposed upon CONTRACTOR by paragraphs 6.30, 13.1, 13.12, 
13.14, 14.3, and 15.2 and all of the rights and remedies available to OWNER and ENGINEER 
thereunder, are in addition to, and are not to be construed in any way as a limitation of, any rights 
and remedies available to any or all of them which are otherwise imposed or available by Laws or 
Regulations, by special warranty or guarantee, or by other provisions of the Contract Documents, 
and the provisions of this paragraph will be as effective as if repeated  specifically in the dc in 
connection with each particular duty, obligation, right, and remedy to which they apply.  All 



 
Rev: 012199 GENERAL CONDITIONS GC-41 

representations, warranties, and guarantees made in the Contract Documents will survive final 
payment and termination or completion of the Agreement. 



SPECIAL PROVISIONS  PART I 
SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 



i 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS – SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
PART I - SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
 
TITLE PAGE 
 

 

SECTION 1 PRECEDENCE .................................................................................................. SC-1 

SECTION 2 DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................... SC-1 

SECTION 3 PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS .................................. SC-1 

SECTION 4 TIME FOR COMPLETION AND FORFEITURE DUE TO DELAY ......... SC-2 

SECTION 5 CONSTRUCTION REVIEW ............................................................................ SC-2 

SECTION 6 OVERTIME CONSTRUCTION REVIEW AND STAKING ....................... SC-2 

SECTION 7 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES ....................................................... SC-3 

SECTION 8 SAFETY .............................................................................................................. SC-3 

SECTION 9 REGIONAL NOTIFICATION CENTER CONTRACT ............................... SC-3 

SECTION 10 CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY INSURANCE ............................................... SC-4 

SECTION 11 ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT ..................................................................... SC-6 

SECTION 12 GUARANTEE .................................................................................................... SC-6 

SECTION 13 RETENTION OF PAYMENTS AND/OR 
 SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITIES ................................................................ SC-7 

SECTION 14 PERSONAL LIABILITY .................................................................................. SC-7 

SECTION 15 PAYMENT OF PREVAILING WAGES, 

 CERTIFIED PAYROLLS ................................................................................. SC-7 

SECTION 16 OTHER BASIC REQUIREMENTS ................................................................ SC-7 

SECTION 17 INCREASED OR DECREASED QUANTITIES ............................................ SC-8 

 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions - Part 1-Supplementary Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Project Page SC-1 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS – PART I 
SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 

 
SECTION 1  PRECEDENCE 
 
These Supplementary Conditions shall take precedence over similar items discussed in the General 
Conditions. 
 
SECTION 2  DEFINITIONS 
 
 AGENCY or OWNER: CITY OF LEMOORE   
     Department of Public Works 
     711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
     Lemoore, CA  93245 
     Telephone: (559) 924-6735 Fax: (559) 924-6708 
 
 ENGINEER:   Quad Knopf, Inc. 
     5110 W. Cypress Avenue 
     P.O. Box 3699 
     Visalia, CA  93278 
     Telephone: (559) 733-0440 Fax: (559) 733-7821 
 
SECTION 3  PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS 
 
3.1 Authority for the Work 
 
The Plans and Specifications for the Work will be ratified and adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Lemoore on    . 
 
3.2 Contract Drawings 
 
The plans or drawings for the Work consist of Exhibits in these Specifications for the Reclamite 
Project.  Said drawings are hereby referred to and made a part of these contract documents. 
 
3.3 Proposals 
 
Bids shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the City Council of the City of Lemoore and 
marked: 
 
 Proposal for: 

2014 Reclamite Project 
 

Bids shall be delivered to the location designated in the Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids): 
 
 Lemoore City Hall 
 119 Fox Street 
 Lemoore, California 93245 
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions - Part 1-Supplementary Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Project Page SC-2 

SECTION 4  TIME FOR COMPLETION & FORFEITURE DUE TO DELAY 
 
CONTRACTOR shall begin work within ten (10) consecutive calendar days after execution of the 
contract by OWNER and receipt of the Notice to Proceed from OWNER, and shall complete on or 
before the expiration of thirty (30) consecutive calendar days after the Notice to Proceed. 
 
Upon receiving the "NOTICE TO PROCEED", the successful bidder has TEN (10) DAYS to 
COMMENCE CONSTRUCTION.  The contractor shall pay to the City, as liquidated damages, 
the amount of $1,000.00 for each calendar day that the commencement of construction is delayed 
beyond the TEN (10) DAY PERIOD. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code 53069.85, CONTRACTOR agrees to forfeit and pay OWNER the 
following amount, which shall be deducted from any payments due or to become due 
CONTRACTOR, for each and every day completion of the work is delayed beyond time allowed: 
$1,000 per day. 
 
SECTION 5  CONSTRUCTION REVIEW 
 
ENGINEER or OWNER’s agent shall at all times have access to the work during construction, and 
shall be furnished with every reasonable facility for acquiring full knowledge respecting the 
progress, workmanship, and character of the materials used and employed in the work. 
 
Whenever CONTRACTOR varies the period during which work is performed, he shall give due 
notice (at least 24 hours) to ENGINEER or OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE, so that proper 
construction review may be provided.  Any work done in the absence of ENGINEER or OWNER’S 
REPRESENTATIVE will be subject to rejection. 
 
The review of the work shall not relieve CONTRACTOR of any obligation to fulfill the Contract as 
prescribed.  Defective work shall be made good, and unsuitable materials may be rejected 
notwithstanding the fact that such defective work and unsuitable materials have been previously 
overlooked by ENGINEER and accepted or included in a progress payment estimate. 
 
SECTION 6  OVERTIME CONSTRUCTION REVIEW AND STAKING 
 
If construction review services will be required by CONTRACTOR when the contract time has 
expired, the following charges will be levied against CONTRACTOR: 
 
 CONSTRUCTION REVIEW PERSONNEL 
  Regular Working Hours, including travel time 
  from Engineer’s office in Visalia, California   $148.00 per hour 
 
Should CONTRACTOR fail to complete the required work on the project within the number of 
calendar days set forth herein, he shall reimburse OWNER for additional construction review time at 
the rates set forth in this section. 
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions - Part 1-Supplementary Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Project Page SC-3 

SECTION 7  CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Until the formal acceptance of the work by ENGINEER, CONTRACTOR shall have the charge and 
care thereof and shall bear the risk of injury or damage to any part thereof by the action of the 
elements or from any other cause, whether arising from the execution or non-execution of the work.  
CONTRACTOR shall rebuild, repair, restore, and make good on all injuries or damages to any 
portion of the work occasioned by any or all causes before final acceptance and shall bear the 
expenses thereof. 
 
Where underground and surface structures are shown on the plans, the locations, depths, and 
dimensions of such structures are believed to be reasonably correct but are not guaranteed. Such 
structures are shown for the information and convenience of CONTRACTOR, but such information 
so given shall not be construed as a representation that such structures will, in all cases, be found or 
encountered just where shown, or that they represent all the structures which may be encountered.  It 
shall be CONTRACTOR’s responsibility to locate and protect or remove all structures as required. 
 
SECTION 8  SAFETY 
 
In accordance with generally accepted construction practices, CONTRACTOR shall be solely and 
completely responsible for conditions of the job site, including safety of all persons and property 
during performance of the Work, and CONTRACTOR shall fully comply with all state, federal, and 
other laws, rules, regulations, and orders relating to safety of the public and workers. 
 
The right of ENGINEER or OWNER’s Representative to conduct construction review or 
observation of CONTRACTOR’s performance will not include review of the adequacy of 
CONTRACTOR’s safety measures in, on, or near the construction site. 
 
SECTION 9  REGIONAL NOTIFICATION CENTER CONTRACT 
 
CONTRACTOR shall, except in an emergency as defined below, contact the appropriate regional 
notification center (Underground Service Alert 800-227-2600) at least two full days prior to 
commencing any excavation if the excavation will be conducted in an area or on a private easement 
which is known, or reasonably should be known, to contain subsurface installations other than the 
underground facilities which may be owned or operated by OWNER, and obtain any inquiry 
identification number from that notification center.  No excavation shall be commenced and carried 
out by CONTRACTOR unless such an inquiry number has been assigned to CONTRACTOR or any 
subcontractor of CONTRACTOR, and ENGINEER has been given the identification number by 
CONTRACTOR in writing. 
 
Emergency shall be defined as sudden, unexpected occurrence, involving a clear and imminent 
danger, demanding immediate action to prevent or mitigate loss of or damage to life, health, 
property, or essential public service.  Emergency includes such occurrences as riot, accident, or 
sabotage (Government Code Section 4216).  Subsurface installation means any underground 
pipeline, conduit, duct, wire, or other structure operated or maintained in or across a public street or 
public right-of-way (Government Code Section 4216). 
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions - Part 1-Supplementary Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Project Page SC-4 

SECTION 10  CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 
CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, save, keep, and hold harmless OWNER, ENGINEER, and each of 
their respective officers, agents, and employees against any and all claims, demands, causes of 
action, damages (including damages to OWNER’s property), costs, or liabilities (including cost of 
liabilities of OWNER’s employees), in law or equity, of every kind or nature whatsoever, directly or 
proximately caused by the performance of the contract, whether such performance is by 
CONTRACTOR, his subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by him.  
CONTRACTOR shall, at his sole risk and expense, defend any and all suits, actions, or other legal 
proceedings which may be brought or instituted by third parties against OWNER, ENGINEER, and 
of their officers or employees on any such claim, demand, or other legal proceedings.  OWNER will 
not be liable for any accident, loss, or damage to the work prior to its completion and acceptance. 
 
CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims 
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by CONTRACTOR, his agents, representatives, employees, or 
subcontractors.  The cost of such insurance shall be included in CONTRACTOR’s bid. 
 
10.1 Minimum Scope of Insurance 
 
Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
 

10.1.1 Insurance Services Office form number GL 0002 (Ed. 1/73) covering Comprehensive 
General Liability and Insurance Services Office form number GL 0404 covering 
Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability; or Insurance Services Office 
commercial General Liability coverage (“occurrence” form CG0001). 

 
10.1.2 Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 (Ed. 1/78) covering Automobile 

Liability, Code 1 “any auto,” and endorsement CA 0025. 
 
10.1.3 Worker’s Compensation as required by the Labor Code of the State of California, 

and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 
 

10.2 Minimum Limits of Insurance 
 
CONTRACTOR shall maintain limits no less than: 
 

10.2.1 General Liability:  $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily 
injury, personal injury, and property damage.  If Commercial Liability Insurance or 
other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit 
shall apply separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be 
twice the required occurrence limit. 

10.2.2 Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily 
injury and property damage. 

 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions - Part 1-Supplementary Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Project Page SC-5 

10.2.3 Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability:  Worker’s Compensation limits 
as required by the Labor Code of the State of California and Employer’s Liability 
limits of $1,000,000 per accident. 

 
10.3 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 
 
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by OWNER and 
ENGINEER. At the option of OWNER and ENGINEER, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects OWNER, ENGINEER, and each of their 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers; or CONTRACTOR shall procure a bond guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigation, claim administration, and defense expenses. 
 
10.4 Other Insurance Provisions 
 
The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 

10.4.1 General Liability and Automobile Coverage 
 

(a) OWNER, ENGINEER, and each of their officers, officials, employees, and 
volunteers are to be covered as insureds as respects: liability arising out of 
activities performed by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR; products and 
completed operations of CONTRACTOR; premises owned, leased, or used 
by CONTRACTOR; or automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by 
CONTRACTOR.  The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the 
scope of protection afforded to OWNER, ENGINEER, and each of their 
officers, officials, employees, or volunteers. 

(b) CONTRACTOR’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects 
OWNER, ENGINEER, and each of their officers, officials, employees, and 
volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by OWNER, 
ENGINEER, and each of their officers, officials, employees, or volunteers 
shall be excess of CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall not contribute with 
it. 

(c) Any failure to comply with the reporting provisions of the policies shall not 
affect coverage provided to OWNER, ENGINEER, and each of their officers, 
officials, employees, or volunteers. 

(d) CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against 
whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the 
insurer’s liability. 

10.4.2 Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coverages 
 
The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against OWNER, ENGINEER, and 
each of their officers, officials, employees, and volunteers for losses arising from work 
performed by CONTRACTOR for OWNER. 
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions - Part 1-Supplementary Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Project Page SC-6 

10.4.3 All Coverages 
 

Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall 
not be suspended, revoked, voided, canceled by either party, or reduced in coverage or in 
limits except after thirty (30) days’ prior written notice by Certified Mail Return Receipt 
Requested, has been given to OWNER and ENGINEER. 

 
10.5 Acceptability of Insurers 
 
Insurance shall be placed with insurers with a Best’s rating of no less than A:VII. 
 
10.6 Verification of Coverage 
 
CONTRACTOR shall furnish OWNER with certificates of insurance and with original 
endorsements effecting coverage required by this section.  The certificates and endorsements for 
each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 
behalf.  The certificates and endorsements are to be on forms provided by OWNER (see the end of 
the Bid Conditions section of these documents).  Where, by statute, OWNER’s Workers’ 
Compensation-related forms cannot be used, equivalent forms approved by the Insurance 
Commissioner are to be substituted.  All certificates and endorsements and are to be received and 
approved by OWNER before work commences.  OWNER reserves the right to require complete, 
certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 
 
10.7 Subcontractors 
 
CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish 
separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor.  All coverages for subcontractors shall 
be subject to all of the requirements stated herein. 
 
SECTION 11  ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT 
 
CONTRACTOR shall not assign this contract, or any part thereof, without the approval of OWNER, 
nor without the consent of Surety unless said Surety has waived its rights to notification of 
assignment.  All assignments of funds are subject to the prior lien for services rendered or materials 
supplied for the performance of the work called for in favor of all persons, firms, or corporations 
rendering such services or supplying materials. 
 
SECTION 12  GUARANTEE 
 
CONTRACTOR shall guarantee the project against all damage due to faulty materials and 
workmanship provided or performed by CONTRACTOR.  This guarantee shall remain in effect for a 
period of one year following the date of final acceptance of the project by OWNER. 
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions - Part 1-Supplementary Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Project Page SC-7 

SECTION 13  RETENTION OF PAYMENTS AND/OR 
SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITIES 

 
13.1 Progress Payments 
 
When a progress payment is due CONTRACTOR shall submit an estimate in writing of the total 
amount of work done and the acceptable materials furnished and delivered by CONTRACTOR to 
the time of such estimate and the value thereof.  OWNER will review the estimate and make 
necessary corrections thereto as a basis for approval.  OWNER shall retain five percent (5%) of the 
approved value of the work completed. 
 
13.2 Final Payment 
 
ENGINEER shall, after the completion of the contract, make a final estimate of the amount of work 
done thereunder, and the value of such work.  The final payment (the retained 5%) shall not be due 
and payable until the expiration of thirty-five (35) days from the date of filing the Notice of 
Completion.  The final payment shall not be made until OWNER has been provided with 
certification of releases from any and all liens associated with the project. 
 
13.3 Substitution of Securities 
 
Notice is hereby given that for any moneys earned by CONTRACTOR and withheld by OWNER to 
insure performance of the contract, CONTRACTOR may, at his request and expense, substitute 
securities equivalent in the form and manner and subject to the conditions provided in Public 
Contract Code § 10263 and 22300. 
 
SECTION 14  PERSONAL LIABILITY 
 
No director, officer, employee, or agent of OWNER, ENGINEER, or their consultants shall be 
personally responsible for any liability arising under or by virtue of the contract. 
 
SECTION 15  PAYMENT OF PREVAILING WAGES & CERTIFIED PAYROLLS  
 
The City of Lemoore is a charter city and has passed City Ordinance 2000-07, exempting the 
payments of (State) prevailing wages on City projects.   
 
SECTION 16  OTHER BASIC REQUIREMENTS 
 
All work embraced herein shall be accomplished in accordance with the applicable portions of the 
State of California, Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Standard Specifications (May, 2006 
edition), except as modified by the Bid Conditions, the General Conditions, these Supplementary 
Conditions, the Special Provisions, City Standards, and the project plans.  In case of conflicting 
requirements, the precedence of the Contract Documents shall be in descending order as follows: 
 

1. Special Provisions Part II – Construction Details 
2. Special Provisions Part I – Supplementary Conditions 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions - Part 1-Supplementary Conditions 
2014 Reclamite Project Page SC-8 

3. Project Plans 
4. General Conditions 
5. City of Lemoore Standard Specifications for Public Works Improvements (Current 

Edition) 
6. Caltrans Standard Specifications (May 2006 Edition) 
7. Other Standards 

 
Payment provisions of referenced Caltrans Standard Specifications, or any other referenced 
specifications, do not apply. 
 
The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the wastewater discharge requirements of the California 
Regional Water Quality Board, Central Valley Region, Board Order No. 93-230 as applicable.  
 
Whenever reference is made to a standard, code, specification, or test, it shall mean the latest 
revision of such standard, code, specification, or test adopted by the initial issuing agency or 
organization and in effect 30 days prior to the date of Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals (Bids).   
 
SECTION 17  INCREASED OR DECREASED QUANTITIES 
 
The phrase “differs materially and significantly” as used in the General Conditions, Section 11.9.3, 
to refer to increases or decreases in quantities of Unit Price Work, shall be defined as a quantity 
increase or decrease of 25.0% from the contract amount.  The procedure outlined in the Caltrans 
Standard Specifications, Section 4-1.03B will be used as a guide only in determining any changes in 
the contract amount which may arise from increases or decreases of more than 25.0% in the contract 
amount of any item. 
 



SPECIAL PROVISIONS  PART II 
CONSTRUCTION DETAILS 



i 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS – SPECIAL PROVISIONS PART II 
 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS 
 

TITLE PAGE 
 
 
SECTION 100 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS ............................................................................... CD-1 

SECTION 200 MOBILIZATION ..................................................................................................... CD-7 

SECTION 300 PERMITS .................................................................................................................. CD-7 

SECTION 400 MAINTENANCE AND CONTROL OF TRAFFIC .............................................. CD-8 

SECTION 500 ASPHALT REJUVENATING AGENT ............................................................... CD-11 

SECTION 600 STRIPING AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS ...................................................... CD-15 

 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 1 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS – PART II 
CONSTRUCTION DETAILS 

 
 
SECTION 100 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
100.01  GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE WORK 
  
The work to be completed under this contract consists of furnishing all labor, materials, tools, 
equipment, transportation, supplies, and incidentals for performing all the work involved in the 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project in the City of Lemoore, in accordance with Plans (Exhibits) and 
Specifications. 
 
• Total Bid – Item No. 1:  Mobilization 

This lump sum price shall be full compensation for the movement of personnel, 
equipment, supplies, and incidentals to and from the work sites, and as indicated in 
Section 200 of these Special Provisions and shall include permits as indicated in Section 
300 of these Special Provisions. 

 
• Total Bid – Item No. 2:  Provide, and Remove, all Temporary Signage and Traffic 

Control 
This lump sum price shall be full compensation, in accordance with Section 400 of these 
Special Provisions and the Plans (Exhibits). 

 
• Total Bid – Item No. 3:  Apply Reclamite Seal Coat; Street Sweeping, Distribution, 

Sand Spreading, and Sand Sweeping 
This lump sum price shall be full compensation, in accordance with Section 500 of these 
Special Provisions and the Plans (Exhibits). 

 
• Total Bid – Item No. 4:  Replace All Existing Striping Reflectors and Pavement 

Legends Except as Noted In These Specifications 
This lump sum price shall be full compensation, in accordance with Section 600 of these 
Special Provisions and the Plans (Exhibits). 

 
100.03  PRECONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE 
 
Contractor shall contact Quad Knopf at (559) 733-0440 to arrange for conference date and time.  
Conference shall occur no later than 10 days after the Award of Contract.  (The Contractor shall 
maintain contact with Quad Knopf regarding the status of contract award).  Conference will be 
held at the City of Lemoore City Hall for the purpose of reviewing the construction program with 
the Contractor, and onsite as required.  At this conference a preliminary construction schedule, 
traffic control plan, proposed sequence of work, public agency and property owner notification 
procedures, and construction procedures shall be discussed by the Contractor.  The Contractor’s 
superintendent for this project shall be present and shall have reviewed the contract documents 
and be prepared to discuss the work.  
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 2 

100.04  LOCATION OF WORK 
 
The project sites are located in the City of Lemoore, Kings County, California.  The specific site 
locations are shown on the Exhibits (Plans). 
 
100.05  QUALIFICATIONS OF THE CONTRACTOR 
 
Contractor, in order to qualify for award of contract, shall have been engaged in the construction 
of Reclamite or asphaltic emulsion fog seal coat street projects similar to that specified herein.  
Concurrently with submittal of the proposal, Contractor shall submit to the City the length of 
time during which he has been engaged in this type of work, and names and phone numbers of 
up to five public agencies for whom he has completed such projects. 
 
Contractor shall ensure, to the satisfaction of the Engineer, that the personnel assigned are 
experienced and competent to carry out the proposed construction. 
 
100.06  CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE AND ORDER OF WORK 
 
Contractor shall submit a construction schedule in conformance with Section 2.6 of the General 
Conditions.  This schedule shall indicate job completion within 19 calendar days after the Notice 
to Proceed.  If at any time the average rate of daily progress is applied to the remaining contract 
time with the result that late completion is indicated, the Owner may order a new schedule to aid 
in timely completion of the project. 
 
100.07  COOPERATION WITH OTHERS 
 
At all times, Contractor shall extend full cooperation to other contractors and to all others 
performing work within or adjacent to the project areas, including employees and contractors of 
owner and all utilities and their employees. 
 
100.08  MATERIALS SUBMITTALS 
 
Contractor shall review, stamp with his approval, and submit for review by Engineer, three 
copies of materials submittals as required by the General Conditions.  Unless otherwise noted 
below, within seven (7) calendar days two copies will be returned to Contractor following review 
by Engineer.  The submittals shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following items: 
 
 Traffic Control Plan 
 Asphalt Rejuvenating Agent 
 Traffic Striping Paint 
 Sand 
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 3 

100.09   PROJECT SITE MAINTENANCE 
 

100.09.1 Protection of Existing Improvements 
 
All existing improvements, including fences, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, landscaping, irrigation 
systems, structures, signs, poles, etc., located adjacent to the work area shall be protected from 
any damage and preserved in their previously existing conditions throughout the duration of the 
project.  Should any improvements become damaged through the actions of the Contractor, it 
shall be repaired to its pre-existing condition at no expense to the Owner.   
 

100.09.2 Protection of Existing Utilities 
 
All existing utilities adjacent to the work area shall be protected from any damage and preserved 
in their previously existing condition throughout the duration of the project.  Any damage to 
these lines shall be repaired to the satisfaction of the respective utility company and at no 
additional expense to the owner.   
 

100.09.3 Cleanup and Dust Control 
 
Throughout all phases of construction, including suspension of work, and until final acceptance 
of the project, Contractor shall keep the work site clean and free of rubbish and debris.   
 
Materials and equipment shall be removed from the site as soon as they are no longer necessary.  
Upon completion of the work and before final inspections, the entire worksite shall be cleared of 
equipment, unused materials, and rubbish so as to present a satisfactory, clean, and neat 
appearance.  All cleanup costs shall be absorbed on contractor's bid. 
 

100.09.4 Sanitation 
 
Contractor shall provide and maintain enclosed toilets at a location or locations accessible to and 
for the use of employees engaged in the work.  These facilities shall be maintained in a neat, 
sanitary condition.  They shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations 
regarding public health and sanitation. 
 
100.10   WATER FOR CONSTRUCTION 
 
The use of water for any construction purpose shall conform to the provisions of Sections 17-
1.02 and 17-1.025 of the Caltrans Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.  Potable 
water for construction will be provided by the City of Lemoore from existing City facilities.  
There will be no charge for such usage.  Contractor shall make all arrangements to transport 
water and shall, at his own expense, provide facilities for conveying water from a fire hydrant to 
the point of use.  Full compensation for developing and applying water shall be included in the 
various other items of work, and no additional compensation will be made therefore. 
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 4 

100.11  TESTING DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 
Initial tests of materials will be performed at no expense to the Contractor.  However, the cost of 
all retesting required due to failure of the material or workmanship to meet specifications will be 
deducted from the money due or that may become due Contractor under contract. 
 
100.12  CERTIFICATES OF COMPLIANCE 
 
Contractor shall furnish certificates of compliance for all materials furnished (i.e. that they 
comply with the Plans (Exhibits) and Specifications, and with previously approved samples and 
submittals). 
 
100.13  STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS 
 
City of Lemoore Standard Specifications shall mean the October 2003 edition of the City of 
Lemoore Standard Specifications for Public Works Improvements, copies of which may be 
obtained at the City of Lemoore Department of Public Works.  Cost is $40.00 plus applicable 
sales tax.  Standard Drawings shall mean the City of Lemoore Standard Drawings, a part of the 
October 2003 edition of the City of Lemoore Standard Specifications for Public Works 
Improvements.  Standard Specifications shall mean “State of California, Department or 
Transportation Standard Specifications” (May 2006) edition.  The Standard Specifications and 
Standard Drawings are available for inspection and purchase at the Lemoore City Hall and the 
offices of Quad Knopf, Inc., at 5110 West Cypress Avenue, Visalia. 
 
100.14  CONTRACTOR’S INVESTIGATION OF JOBSITE 
 
It is the Contractor’s responsibility to inspect the jobsite and familiarize himself with all 
conditions which may affect the work described herein whether or not such conditions are 
correctly represented or shown on the drawings.  Contractor shall take all such conditions into 
account in the preparation of his bid and shall provide Owner with a complete, satisfactory 
project as specified.  Submission of a bid shall indicate the contractor's evidence of jobsite 
inspections and familiarization with conditions. 
 
100.15  STORAGE OF SUPPLIES, MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, ETC. 

 
The Contractor shall obtain the prior approval of the City of Lemoore (City) for any area or 
space required for Contractor’s storage during construction operations.  Materials, equipment, 
etc., shall not be piled or stored in any location which shall interfere with the conduct of normal 
City functions and shall not constitute a hazard to persons or property.  Any required safety 
precautions such as signs, danger signals, lanterns, barricades, etc., shall be installed by the 
Contractor during construction operations.   
 
100.16  SIGNS 
 
No advertising signs of any kind will be permitted except by written permission of the City. 
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 5 

100.17  FIELD OFFICE 
 
A field office as such is not required. 
 
100.18  TEMPORARY SERVICES 
 

100.18.1. Fences, Barricades, Warning Signs, and Lights 
 
A. To conform to CAL-OSHA regulations, other State of California and local codes, rules, 

regulations, and ordinances for protection of workers, public and private property, 
provide, install and maintain barricades, warning devices and other protection required 
therefor. 

 
B. Provide temporary fencing, etc., as required to protect stored materials, equipment and 

miscellaneous items from theft, vandalism and unauthorized access. 
 

100.18.2. Contractor’s Access, Work and Storage Areas 
 
A. Contractor to be limited to area shown on drawings, or as directed by the City. 
 
B. Delivery to and removal from the work area of equipment and materials shall be the 

responsibility of the Contractor. 
 

100.18.3. Telephone 
 
A. Contractor shall provide cellular telephone service to the site at all times when contract 

work is being performed.  Contractor shall arrange for such telephone service and provide 
the City with the telephone number.  

 
100.18.4. Field Toilets 

 
A. The Contractor shall furnish, install, and remove at the completion of the job, all sanitary; 

i.e., portable toilet facilities required for the completion of the job.  The type and location 
of the facilities shall be subject to acceptance by the City. 

 
B. All sanitary facilities shall be made available for use by all workers, subcontractors, 

consultants, and City personnel associated with the project. 
 
C. The Contractor shall maintain the sanitary facilities in a proper, safe, and sanitary 

condition for the duration of the work.  Facilities shall be provided in sufficient quantities 
to comply with CAL-OSHA regulations. 

 
D. Existing facilities shall not be used by Contractor’s employees or subcontractors. 
 

100.18.5. Water 
 
A. The City will supply water for the construction sites:  see Section 100.10 for details. 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 6 

 
B. The Contractor shall not use any of the water supplied by the City for any purpose other 

than that designated for the project.  Water is and will be available near the sites under 
certain constraints, and will be identified by the City during the pre-construction meeting. 

 
100.18.6. Noise Control 

 
A. It is the Contractor’s responsibility to meet all ordinances regarding noise and noise 

control. 
 

B. Maximum acceptable noise level, in dB, 100 feet from site shall be 65.  Upon the request 
of the City, the Contractor shall make available a decibel meter and a qualified operator 
to measure and verify the specified noise tolerances.  

 
100.19  SPECIAL SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Contractor’s workers and equipment shall be limited to the work areas as designated by this 
contract, or as directed by the City.  
 
100.20  DISPOSITION OF EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS 
 
All waste sand from this work shall be removed from the site and disposed of a legal location or 
locations by the Contractor at the Contractor’s expense.  
 
100.21  DEFINITIONS 
 
(1) Engineer: Harry A. Tow, P.E. 
   Quad Knopf, Inc. 
   P.O. Box 3699 
   Visalia, CA 93278 
   (559) 733-0440 
 
(2) Owner representative: 
 

This contract document has been written to provide one (1) Owner representative for the 
Contractor to officially correspond with in respect to contract administration; that being 
the Engineer.  The Engineer listed above will have full access to the jobsite. 

 
100.22  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 
Payment for the various items shall be based on the contract lump sum for each item and shall be 
compensation in full for furnishing of all overhead, labor, materials, tools, equipment, and 
appurtenances necessary to complete the work in accordance with the requirements of the 
Contract Document.  No additional payment will be made for work incidental to each item unless 
specifically noted or otherwise specified. 
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 7 

SECTION 200 MOBILIZATION 
 
200.01  GENERAL 
 
Preparatory Work:  Mobilization conforming to Section 11 of the Standard Specifications shall 
consist of preparatory work and operations, including, but not limited to, those necessary for the 
movement of personnel, equipment, supplies, and incidentals to the project site; for the 
establishment of offices, buildings, secured equipment and materials storage areas, 
demobilizations and other facilities necessary for work on the project; and for all other work and 
operations which must be performed or costs incurred prior to beginning work on the various 
contract items on the project site. 
 
200.02  RELATED INFORMATION 
 
The following documents contain information and requirements relating to this item, except as 
modified herein: 
 
 Caltrans Standard Specifications, Section 11 
 
200.03  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 
Mobilization:  Payments for mobilization shall be in compliance with Section 11-1.02 
“Payment” of the Standard Specifications except that no payment for mobilization, partial or 
otherwise, shall be made until the Contractor has secured all necessary permits, bonds and 
licenses and has paid all applicable fees. 
 
The Contract lump sum price paid for Mobilization shall include full compensation for 
furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the work 
involved in mobilization as specified herein.  The lump sum bid for this item shall not exceed 
five percent (5%) of the total bid price. 
 
SECTION 300 PERMITS 
 
The job site is located within Kings County and the City of Lemoore.  A City of Lemoore 
business license, which may be obtained at City Hall, is required. 
 
All work embraced herein shall be accomplished in accordance with all applicable Standards, 
Codes, Regulations, or Specifications issued by any governmental agency having jurisdiction 
over the work in progress.  Contractor shall prepare and deliver to the proper agency any report 
or record which may be required in connection with the project, and obtain any permits which 
may be required.  
 
Payments for obtaining permits shall be included in the item for Mobilization and shall include 
full compensation for all labor, materials, equipment, tools, and incidentals required to complete 
the work as specified herein. 
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 8 

SECTION 400 MAINTENANCE AND CONTROL OF TRAFFIC 
 
400.01  GENERAL  
 
All traffic control devices and sufficient personnel shall be provided to maintain a safe and 
orderly flow of traffic around the construction operation. 
 
400.02  RELATED INFORMATION 
 
The following documents contain information and requirements relating to this item, except as 
modified herein: 
 

City of Lemoore Standard Specifications for Maintenance of Traffic and Detours 
 

Caltrans Manual of Warning Signs, Lights, and Devices for Use in Performance of Work 
upon Highways 
 

400.03  MATERIALS AND METHODS 
 
Traffic control devices shall conform to the State of California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) Manual of Warning Signs, Lights, and Devices for Use in Performance of Work upon 
Highways, latest revision.  Maintenance and control of traffic shall conform to the Standard 
Specifications for Maintenance of Traffic and Detours, the traffic control requirements of Section 
37 of said Standard Specifications, and to the City's Standard Specifications for traffic control as 
appended hereto.  The Contractor shall submit a traffic control plan to the City for approval prior 
to the initiation of reclamite operations (see 400.05).  Contractor shall provide traffic control 
devices and flagger personnel sufficient to maintain a safe and orderly flow of traffic around the 
construction operation. 
 
400.04  PARKING & NOTIFICATIONS 
 
Advanced Public Notification 
 
Three days prior to beginning Reclamite seal work in an area, the City will deliver a written 
notice to all adjacent residents and businesses and tenants.  Copies of notices will be posted by 
the Contractor on the NO PARKING signs when they are erected or posted. 
 
Notices for Reclamite seal work will include the following: a general description of the 
Reclamite seal process, problems associated with the staining of material by the asphalt, the date 
and approximate time that a particular street is to receive this treatment and a list of other streets 
included for that day, expected traffic delays, no parking requirements on the street, the 
possibility of towed cars, and the name, address and phone number of the Contractor's 
superintendent and the City Public Facilities Department. 
 
The Contractor will be responsible for posting "No Parking" signs, with date and time of work at 
least 24 hours in advance of construction.  Any required removal of parked cars shall be 
coordinated through the Public Facilities Department and the City Police Department.  Towing 
fees will be paid by the City. The "No Parking" signs shall be removed within 24 hours of the 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 9 

completion of the Reclamite.  All signs to be provided by the Contractor shall be approved by the 
Engineer before they are delivered and installed by the Contractor. 
 
The City will be responsible for all noticing of residents.  Notices will include Contractor-City 
approved dates for the work.  
 
The Reclamite seal work shall not occur on waste pickup days.  It is the contractor's 
responsibility to coordinate with the City in this regard. 
 
The notice will inform all residents not to leave waste containers on the street until the scheduled 
pick-up day. If waste containers are left on the streets, it shall be the Contractor's responsibility 
to remove or arrange for proper removal of the containers at no additional cost to the City.  
Likewise, if the City must return for pick-up due to unscheduled Contractor activity, any 
additional charges shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. 
 
The City will also notify the following: 
 KCart 
 U.S. Postal Service 
 Emergency Services 
 School Districts 
 
400.05  TRAFFIC CONTROL 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for: 
 
 The Contractor shall submit, for City approval, at the pre-construction meeting a traffic 

control plan for the work. 
 
The plan shall incorporate: 
 
(a) The proposed schedule, including times-of-day, for Reclamite distribution, sanding, 

and sweeping to maintain maximum access to adjacent properties for all streets. 
(b) The proposed schedule, including times-of-day, for Reclamite distribution, sanding 

and sweeping. 
 
The timing of work for these streets, and the maintenance of half-street access for all 
streets as required to accommodate through street traffic flows and business and 
commercial access during business hours, shall be scheduled and provided to the City's 
satisfaction. 
 

 Provision of written notice each work day to the City’s Project Representative of the 
access, egress, and traffic diversions proposed for the following work day, to allow traffic 
control provisions to be timely discussed and to provide timely notification to the police 
and fire departments, Postal Service and KCart. 

 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 10 

 The Contractor shall place proper detour signs, barricades, flagmen, cones, and other 
warning devices prior to the work each day and shall promptly remove them when the 
work has been completed. 

 
 In addition to and in modification of Section 37 of the Standard Specifications, 

requirements, the following traffic controls are required.  These additional requirements 
in no way relieve the Contractor from its obligation to comply with the other standards 
set forth in Section 37.  ROAD CONSTRUCTION AHEAD (type C-18) signs shall be 
placed on all public road approaches to any project site before any work commences on 
the sites.  C-6 LOOSE GRAVEL signs shall be used on all streets receiving the seal. W-6 
(15 MPH) signs shall be used on all streets receiving the seal.  These signs shall be 
maintained for the duration of construction, including sweeping, and shall be removed 
once construction and sweeping are complete. 

 
 LOOSE GRAVEL (C-6) signs shall be furnished and placed adjacent to both sides of the 

traveled way on each block.  Additional signs shall be placed at a maximum of 500-foot 
intervals and at public roads entering the seal coat area.  The C-6 signs shall be 
maintained in place at each site until final brooming of the surface at that site is 
performed.  C-6 signs shall conform to the requirements for construction area signs in 
Section 12, “Construction Area Traffic Control Devices,” of the Standard Specifications. 

 
 Maintain at least half street through access at all times on all streets (except cul-de-sacs 

300 feet or less in length) including all streets providing sole access to abutting 
properties. 

 
 Provide flagmen, signs or lights, as required, to assure that damage does not occur to 

fresh seal coat or traffic markings. 
 
 Take all feasible steps to minimize project impacts upon traffic flows, access and egress 

while protecting workers and work in progress. 
 
 Respond promptly and effectively to any traffic safety, access and egress concerns 

expressed by the Engineer or the City’s Representative and by local public safety (police 
and fire) personnel. 

 
 The Contractor shall be totally responsible for traffic control.  Failure or refusal to 

construct and maintain detours and controls at the proper time shall be sufficient cause 
for closing down the work until such detours and controls are in satisfactory condition for 
safe use by the public. 

 
400.06  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 
Payment for traffic control shall be included in the lump sum contract price bid item for 
Maintenance and Traffic Control, and shall be compensation in full for furnishing all overhead, 
labor, materials, tools, equipment, and appurtenances necessary to complete the work in 
accordance with the requirements of the contract documents.  No additional payment will be 
made for work incidental to each item unless specifically noted. 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 11 

SECTION 500 ASPHALT REJUVENATING AGENT 
 
500.01  GENERAL  
 
  500.01.1. Description of the Work 
 
This work shall consist of furnishing all labor, material, and equipment necessary to perform all 
operations for the application of an asphalt rejuvenating agent to asphaltic concrete surface 
courses.  The rejuvenation of surface courses shall be by spray application of the contract-
specified cationic rejuvenating agent composed of petroleum oils and resins emulsified with 
water.  All work shall be in accordance with the specifications, the applicable drawings, and 
subject to the terms and conditions of this contract. 
 
500.02  MATERIALS AND METHODS 
 
  500.02.1. Materials 
 
The asphalt rejuvenating agent shall be Reclamite, an emulsion composed of a petroleum resin 
oil base uniformly emulsified with water.  Each bidder must submit with his bid a certified 
statement from the asphalt rejuvenator manufacturer showing that the asphalt rejuvenating 
emulsion conforms to the required physical and chemical requirements.  No substitution for the 
specified asphalt rejuvenation agent will be accepted after bid opening. 
 

SPECIFICATIONS 
 Test Method Requirements 

Tests ASTM AASHTO  Min. Max. 
Tests on Emulsion:    
Viscosity @ 25°C, SFS D-244 T-59 15 40 
Residue, % W1 D-244(Mod.) T-59(Mod) 60 65 
Miscibility Test2 D-244(Mod.) T-59(Mod) No Coagulation 
Sieve Test, %W3 D-244(Mod.) T-59(Mod) - 0.1 
Particle Charge Test D-244 T-59 Positive 
Percent Light Transmittance4 GB GB - 30 
    

Tests on Residue from Distillation:    
Flash Point, COC, °C D-92 T-48 196 - 
Viscosity @ 60°C, cSt D-445 - 100 200 
Asphaltenes, %w D-2006-70  - 1.00 
Maltene Dist. Ratio D-2006-70  0.3 0.6 
    

PC + A1
5    

 S + A2 

   

PC/S Ratio5 D-2006-70 - 0.5 - 
Saturated Hydrocarbons, S5 D-2006-70 - 21 28 
1  ASTM D-244 Modified Evaporation Test for percent of residue is made by heating 50 gram sample to 149 C (300 F) until foaming ceases, 

then cool immediately and calculate results. 
2  Test procedure identical with ASTM D-244-60 except that .02 Normal Calcium Chloride solution shall be used in place of distilled water. 
3  Test procedure identical with ASTM D-244 except that distilled water shall be used in place of two percent sodium oleate solution. 
4  Test procedure is attached. 
5  Chemical composition by ASTM Method D-2006-70: 
     PC = Polar Compounds,     A1  = First Acidaffins 
     A2  = Second Acidaffins,   S  = Saturated Hydrocarbons 

 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 12 

  500.02.2. Material Performance 
 
The rejuvenating agent shall have a record of at least five years of satisfactory service as an 
asphalt rejuvenating agent and in-depth sealer.  Satisfactory service shall be based on the 
capability of the material to decrease the viscosity and increase the penetration value of the 
asphalt binder as follows.  The viscosity shall be reduced by a minimum of 45 percent and the 
penetration value shall be increased by a minimum of 25 percent.  Testing shall be performed on 
extracted asphalt cement from a pavement to a depth of three eighths inch (3/8”).  In addition, 
the pavement shall be in-depth sealed to the intrusion of air and water. 
 
The bidder must submit with his bid the manufacturer's certification that the material proposed 
for use is in compliance with the specification requirements.  The bidder must submit with his 
bid previous use documentation and test data conclusively demonstrating that; the rejuvenating 
agent has been used successfully for a period of five years by government agencies such as cities 
and counties; and that the asphalt rejuvenating agent has been proven to perform, as heretofore 
required, through field testing by government agencies as to the required change in asphalt 
binder viscosity and penetration number.  Testing data shall be submitted indicating such product 
performance on a sufficient number of projects, each being tested for a minimum period of three 
years to insure reasonable longevity of the treatment, as well as product consistency. 
 
RECLAMITE®, manufactured by Tricor Refining, LLC. is a product of known quality and 
accepted performance. 
 
  500.02.3. Applicator Experience 
 
The asphalt-rejuvenating agent shall be applied by an experienced applicator of such material.  
The bidder shall have a minimum of three years experience in applying the product proposed for 
use or other asphaltic emulsion fog seal or asphalt rejuvenator.  He must submit with his bid a 
list of five projects on that he applied said rejuvenator.  He shall indicate the project dates, 
number of square yards treated in each and the name and phone number of the government 
official in charge of each project. 
 
A project superintendent knowledgeable and experienced in application of the specified asphalt-
rejuvenating agent must be in control of each day’s work. The bidder shall submit a written 
experience outline of the project superintendent.   
 
There will be no exceptions to or variances from these provisions. 
 
  500.02.4. Product Standards and Alternates 
 
The product “Reclamite”®, as manufactured by Tricor Refining, LLC. for the asphalt 
rejuvenating agent is the standard for these specifications and the prices quoted on the Bid Sheet 
Base Bid shall be for this standard, or approved equal. 
 
Bidders may offer before bid opening an approved equal for the Standard specified in the 
Specifications provided the bidder adheres to the following: 
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 13 

A. Furnishes complete specifications and descriptive literature for the approved equal.  Such 
descriptive and detailed information shall be complete and at least equal in detail to the 
city’s requirements for the specified item for which the alternate is offered. 

 
B. Submits a current Material Safety Data Sheet for the alternate materials.  The City will 

give the alternate consideration. The Contractor may furnish only those alternate items 
included in his proposal and approved by the City prior to bid submittal. 

 
500.03  EXECUTION 
 
  500.03.1. Application Temperature/Weather Limitations 
 
The temperature of the asphalt rejuvenating emulsion, at the time of application shall be as 
recommended by the manufacturer. The asphalt-rejuvenating agent shall be applied only when 
the existing surface to be treated is thoroughly dry and when it is not threatening to rain.  The 
asphalt-rejuvenating agent shall not be applied when the ambient temperature is below 40° F. 
 
  500.03.2. Handling of Asphalt Rejuvenating Agent 
 
Asphalt rejuvenating agent contents in project site tank cars or storage tanks shall be circulated at 
least forty-five minutes before withdrawing any material for application.  When loading the 
distributor, the asphalt rejuvenating agent concentrate shall be loaded first and then the required 
amount of water shall be added.  The water shall be added into the distributor with enough force 
to cause agitation and thorough mixing of the two materials.  To prevent foaming, the discharge 
end of the water hose or pipe shall be kept below the surface of the material in the distributor that 
shall be used as a spreader.  The distributor truck will be cleaned of all other asphalt materials, 
and washed out to the extent that no discoloration of the emulsion may be perceptible. 
Cleanliness of the spreading equipment shall be subject to the approval and satisfaction of the 
Engineer. 
 
  500.03.3. Applicating Equipment 
 
The distributor for spreading the emulsion shall be self-propelled, and shall have pneumatic tires.  
The distributor shall be designed and equipped to distribute the asphalt rejuvenating agent 
uniformly on variable widths of surface at a readily determined and controlled rate of 0.08 
gallons per square yard of surface, and with an allowable variation from such specified rate not 
to exceed 5 percent of the specified rate at any one location. 
 
Distributor equipment shall include full circulation spray bars, pump tachometer, volume 
measuring device and a hand hose attachment suitable for application of the emulsion manually 
to cover areas inaccessible to the distributor.  The distributor shall be equipped to circulate and 
agitate the emulsion within the tank. 
 
A check of distributor equipment as well as application rate accuracy and uniformity of 
distribution shall be made when directed by the Engineer. 
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 14 

The truck used for sanding shall be equipped with a spreader that allows the sand to be uniformly 
distributed onto the pavement.  The spreader shall be able to apply 2 pounds of sand per square 
yard in a single pass.  The spreader shall be adjustable so as not to broadcast sand onto 
driveways or treelawns. 
 
The sand to be used shall be free flowing, without any leaves, dirt, stones, etc.  Any wet sand 
shall be rejected from the job site.  
 
Any equipment that is not maintained in full working order, or is in the sole opinion of the 
Engineer or the Project Representative, proven inadequate to obtain the results prescribed, shall 
be repaired or replaced at the direction of the Engineer. 
 
  500.03.4. Application of Rejuvenating Agent 
 
The asphalt-rejuvenating agent shall be applied by a distributor truck at the temperature 
recommended by the manufacturer and at the pressure required for proper distribution.  The 
emulsion shall be so applied that uniform distribution is obtained at all points of the areas to be 
treated. Areas inadvertently missed shall receive additional treatment by hand sprayer 
application.  Application at intersections shall be by straight-through truck patterns.  Remaining 
surfaces, to fill in curves, shall be treated by hand application. 
 
Application of asphalt rejuvenating agent shall be on one-half width of the pavement at a time.  
When the second half of the pavement is treated, the distributor nozzle nearest the center of the 
road shall overlap the previous application by at least one-half the width of the nozzle spray.  In 
any event the centerline construction joint of the pavement shall be treated in both application 
passes of the distributor truck. 
 
Before spreading, the asphalt rejuvenating agent shall be blended with water at the rate of two 
(2) parts rejuvenating agent to one (1) part water, by volume.  The combined mixture of asphalt 
rejuvenating agent and water shall be spread at the rate of 0.08 gallons per square yard. 
 
Grades or super-elevations of surfaces that may cause excessive runoff, in the opinion of the 
Engineer, shall have the required amounts applied in two or more applications as directed. 
 
Where more than one application is to be made, succeeding applications shall be made as soon as 
penetration of the preceding application has been completed and the Engineer grants approval for 
additional applications. 
 
Truck spray applicators shall be sized or adjusted to avoid excess application of Reclamite 
adjacent to gutters to avoid drift or leakage onto gutter surfaces.  
 
After the rejuvenating emulsion has penetrated, a coating of dry sand shall be applied to the 
surface in sufficient amount to protect the traveling public.  Sand gradation shall conform to the 
requirements of Section 37 of Caltrans Standard Specifications. 
 
Application shall be by hand sprayer at intersection corners or cross gutters as required to 
prevent surface “misses” and to avoid overspray to concrete surfaces. 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 15 

 
The Contractor shall furnish a manufacturer-certified quality inspection report showing the 
constituency, and the date shipped, for each load of asphalt rejuvenating agent. When directed by 
the Engineer, the Contractor shall take representative samples of material for testing.   
 
  500.03.5. Street Sweeping 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for sweeping and cleaning of the streets prior to, and after 
treatment. 
 
Prior to treatment, the street will be cleaned of all standing water, dirt, leaves, foreign materials, 
etc.  This work shall be accomplished by self-propelled street sweeper. 
 
All sand used during the treatment must be removed no less than 24 hours and no more than 48 
hours after treatment of the street. This shall be accomplished by mechanical sweeping.  All 
streets must be cleaned of any material to the satisfaction of the Engineer.   
 
If, after sand is swept and in the opinion of the Engineer a hazardous condition exists on the 
roadway, the contractor must apply additional sand and sweep same no later than 24 hours 
following sand removal.  No additional compensation will be allowed for reapplication and 
removal of sand. 
 
500.04  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 
Asphalt rejuvenating agent will be measured and paid per lump sum amount, and shall include 
full compensation for all labor, materials, equipment, tools, and incidentals required to complete 
the work as shown on the Plans. 
 
In order to receive any payment, regardless of the lump sum bid, the Contractor shall 
furnish with his payment request: 

(a) A certificate from the asphalt emulsion supplier that he has furnished to the jobsite 
the specified, undiluted emulsion concentrate in the amount necessary to provide the 
2:1-diluted application for the project square yardage. 

(b) A certificate from the contractor that the has received the material described in (a) 
above and has utilized it only on the project. 

 
SECTION 600 STRIPING AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS 
 
600.01  PAINTED TRAFFIC STRIPE AND PAVEMENT MARKING 
 
Painted traffic stripes (traffic lines) and pavement markings, including glass beads, shall be 
applied in conformance with the provisions in Section 84, "Traffic Stripes and Pavement 
Markings," of the Standard Specifications and these special provisions. 
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 16 

Paint for traffic stripes and pavement markings shall conform to the following State 
Specifications:   
 

Paint Type Color State Specification No. 
Waterborne Traffic Line White, Yellow and Black PTWB-01 

 
All paint shall be applied in two coats.  The second coat shall not be applied until 10 days 
following the first coat application.  There will be no exceptions to this delay period. 
 
Glass beads shall conform to State Specification No. 8010-004 (Type II) 
 
Traffic stripes and pavement markings shall be applied only on dry surfaces and only during 
periods of favorable weather.  Painting shall not be performed when the atmospheric temperature 
is below 50°F when using waterborne paint; when freshly painted surfaces may become 
damaged by rain, fog, or condensation; nor when it can be anticipated that the atmospheric 
temperature will drop below the aforementioned 50°F temperatures during the drying period. 
 
Each coat of paint for any traffic stripe, including glass beads, shall be applied in one pass of the 
striping machine, regardless of the number, widths and patterns of individual stripes involved. 
 
The use of permanent tape instead of paint will not be permitted. 
 
Unless otherwise directed by the Engineer, glass beads shall be uniformly incorporated in all 
coats of paint concurrently with the application of the paint, except that glass beads shall not be 
applied to black paint.  Beads shall be embedded in the coat of traffic paint being applied to a 
depth of one-half their diameters. 
 
Traffic stripes and pavement markings shall be free of runs, drag marks, stretch marks, and 
debris. 
 
600.02  PAVEMENT MARKERS 
 
The Contractor shall, except as described hereinafter, replace all existing striping and reflective 
pavement markers. 
 
Pavement markers shall be placed in conformance with the provisions in Section 85, "Pavement 
Marker," of the Standard Specifications and these special provisions. 
 
The Contractor shall furnish the Engineer certificates of compliance for the pavement markers in 
conformance with the provisions in Section 6-1.07, "Certificates of Compliance," of the Standard 
Specifications. 
 
Retroreflective pavement markers shall be marked as abrasion resistant on the body of the 
markers. 
 



 
City of Lemoore Special Provisions –Part II-Construction Details 
2014 Reclamite Seal Project Page CD - 17 

Where striping joins existing striping, as shown on the plans, the Contractor shall begin and end 
the transition from the existing striping pattern into or from the new striping pattern a sufficient 
distance to ensure continuity of the striping pattern. 
 
600.04  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 
Full payment for all work described in this section will be the bid lump sum. 
 
 



EXHIBITS 



O 5110 W. Cypress Ave.     Tel: 559.733.0440
Visalia, CA 93278            Fax: 559.733.7821

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

Lemoore Pavement Management
City of Lemoore, CA 1,000 0 1,000500 Feet

Notice:
This map contains data described above. This map is preliminary and subject to 
change; please use at your own discretion.  Quad Knopf disclaims any responsibility 
from the subsequent use of this preliminary map.

2014 Reclamite Project

LEGEND:
Planned Maintenance Areas/Type

PFMD Zone 2
Basic Program

Path: L:\Projects\2014\L140053 - Reclamite\GIS\Reclamite2014.mxd
Date: 2/10/2014



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 Maintenance &     
Fleet Divisions 

 

711 W. Cinnamon Dr. 
Lemoore * CA 93245 

Phone *(559) 924-6739 
FAX * (559) 924-6808 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 7 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director 

Date: February 21, 2014  

Subject: Local Transportation Fund Share, Resolution 2014-06  

 
Discussion: 
The City has received the “Estimated Fiscal Year 2014-15” Transportation Development Act Shares 
from Kings County Association of Governments (KCAG) regarding Fiscal Year 2014-15 Local 
Transportation Fund (LTF) Claims.  LTF shares are based on annual Department of Finance population 
estimates that will be released on May 1, 2014.  KCAG’s estimate of the City’s share of streets and 
roads, based upon the May 2013 population estimate of 25,262 is $581,665.  Minor adjustments will be 
made upon receipt of the final report and adoption of KCAG and KCAPTA budgets.  Attached is the 
Article 8 Claim Form requesting Lemoore’s share of funds needed for the Kings County procedural 
records. 
 
KCAG also included an Article 3 Claim Form for Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities funding.  However, 
this year, as in the past none of the agencies will be requesting these funds to be separated from the 
general LTF shares.  This procedure allows all agencies to use these monies where needed and ties no 
strings for its uses.  Staff recommends that the City of Lemoore not request funds under Article 3. 
 
As part of the requirements to request funds under Article 8, the City must provide a list of those 
projects for which the funds will be used.  The attached schedule of Capital Improvement Projects is a 
listing from the approved 2014-2015 Streets Capital Improvement Plans Project Budget that have yet to 
be completed. 
 
All agencies filing a claim for funds are required to hold a public hearing to determine if unmet transit 
needs exist within their jurisdiction.  The Kings County Area Public Transit Agency (KCAPTSA) held 
public hearings on February 26, 2014 and another will be held on March 26, 2014 on behalf of its 
member agencies. 
 
Budget Impact: 
Article 8 estimates the City will receive $334,142 of the $581,665 shown and is to be used for local 
streets and roads.  The remaining funds will go to KART and KCAG.  Local Transportation Fund 033 
was projected based on the 2013 funding and will be updated as the funds are received. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that City Council: 
1. Approve the environmental documentation. 
2. By motion adopt Resolution 2014-06 making a determination regarding public transit needs and 

designating the City Manager to submit the TDA claim application including any needed 
amendments after the 2014 population figures are released. 

 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

 
 
 

FINDINGS REQUIRED BY PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE 
CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 8, SECTION 99400 

 
 
 

1. The total expenditure for the coming Fiscal Year for projects of maintenance and 
construction are twice the allocation requested. 

2. See Attached City of Lemoore Street Capital Improvement Budget. 

3. The funds will be expended only for purposes necessary and convenient to the 
development, construction and maintenance of local streets and roads, including 
planning and contributions to the transportation planning process. 

4. See attached Notice of Exemption. 

5. The funds requested do not exceed, as a proportion of the total fund, the ratio the 
population served by the City of Lemoore bears to the total county population. 

6. See attached Notice of Hearing and Affidavit of Publication. 

 



CITY OF LEMOORE 
NOTICE OF EXEMPTION NO. 2014-15 

 
 
 
TO: County Clerk    FROM: City of Lemoore 
 County of Kings     City Clerk 
 Kings County Government Center   119 Fox Street 
 Hanford, CA  93230     Lemoore, CA  93245 
 
 
 
Project Title – Application for Local Transportation Funds for use in public 
transportation and maintenance of existing streets and roads. 
 
Project Location – Specific – Various streets within the City. 
 
Project Location – City and County – City of Lemoore, County of Kings 
 
Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project – Application for funds to 
fund the Kings County Rural Transportation Agency Program and to reconstruct existing 
City Streets for the benefit of vehicular traffic. 
 
Name of Agency Approving Project – City of Lemoore 
 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project – City of Lemoore 
 
Exempt Status: (Check One) 
________ Ministerial – Section 15073 
________ Declared Emergency – Section 15071 (a) 
________ Emergency Project – Section 15071 (b) and (c) 
___X____ Categorical Exemption – Section 15301 (c) and 15302 (c) 
 
Project will not result in an expansion or intensification of use of streets.  Streets are 
receiving surface repair. 
 
    Jeff Laws      (559) 924-6700 
Contact Person     Telephone No. 
 
If filed by applicant: 
 

1. Attach certified document of exemption finding. 
2. Has the Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency 

approving the Project? Yes     X___   No _______ 
 
Date:  __________________   ____________________________________ 
      Jeff Laws 
 



ATTACHMENT “B” 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014 –06  
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE MAKING A 
DETERMINATION REGARDING PUBLIC TRANSIT NEEDS WITH THE CITY OF 

LEMOORE AND DESIGNATING A RESPONSIBLE PERSON TO SUBMIT A CLAIM 
APPLICATION FOR TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2014-15 
 

 
 At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on 

March 4, 2014 at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council Member _________________, 

seconded by Council Member __________________ and carried that the following Resolution 

be adopted: 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Lemoore has participated with the Kings County Area Public 
Transit Agency (KCAPTA) to provide a Public Transportation Program for the City of Lemoore; 
and 

 WHEREAS, KCAPTA is currently providing the City of Lemoore with a modified fixed 
route bus system; and 

 WHEREAS, KCAPTA and the Kings County Commission on Aging are consolidated 
into a single public transportation entity; and 

 WHEREAS, The City Council, at its March 4, 2014 Meeting, requested public comment 
regarding unmet transit needs; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on February 26, 2014 and another public hearing 
will be held on March 26, 2014 by KCAPTA on behalf of its member agencies to determine if 
there exists unmet transit needs; and 

 WHEREAS, this joint effort is reflected through the Kings County Regional Planning 
Agency; and 

 WHEREAS, one of the functions of said Agency and its member agencies is to submit an 
approved Claim for Transportation Development Act Funds. 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
hereby finds and determines based upon the testimony and evidence considered that there are no 
areas within its jurisdiction with unmet public transit needs which could be reasonably met by 
the expansion of the existing transportation system or by the establishment of a new system.  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemoore claims the 
unused balance of the Local Transportation Fund, not used for public transportation, for 



maintenance of local streets and roads, and finds that maintenance of streets and roads is 
categorically exempt from environmental review. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Lemoore City Manager is hereby designated as 
the authorized person to sign and submit the City of Lemoore’s request or amended request for 
the use of Transportation Development Act Funds. 

 Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore held 
on the 4th day of March, 2014 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINING: 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      William R. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS )   ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE )  
 
 I, Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore do hereby certify the foregoing 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was duly passed and adopted at a Regular 
Meeting of the City Council held on March 4, 2014. 
 
DATED:  March 4,  2014 
      __________________________________ 
      Mary J. Venegas,  

City Clerk  
 



 
 

                               ATTACHMENT "C"  
    
    
    

         CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PROJECT 
    

     
    

C.I.P. Description/Project No. Project Cost    2014 
    

 Reclamite Street Project    $           242,689   $         242,689 
       
    
    
     

  TOTAL  $             242,689   $           242,689  
        
    
    
     

 







“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  Office of the

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 

              City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

              
To: Lemoore City Council 

From: Jeff Laws, City Manager  

Date: February 28, 2014 

Subject:       Activity Update 
 
 
Reports 
 
 19th Avenue Update  




	Agenda 3-4-14
	Agenda Back
	SS Item 2 - Water Conservation
	Item 3A - Minutes 2-18-14
	Item 3B - Warrant Register 2-27-14
	AC0304-ETA
	AC0304-GLTA
	AC0304-GLTA-FBC
	AC0304-RTA

	Item 3C - Staff Report - CIP Budget Amendment
	Item 4-1 - Staff Report - LPD Annual Report 2013
	Item 4-2 - LPD Annual Report
	Item 5-1 - Staff Report - Kings Mosquito Abatement District Appt 2-26-14
	Item 5-2 - Kings Mosquito Abatement Interest Ltr
	Item 6-1 - Staff Report - Authorize Bid Reclaimite 2014
	Item 6-2 - Reclamite Seal Projects 2014 - City of Lemoore
	03 Bid Conditions-2013 Reclamite Seal.pdf
	INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
	A. CONDITIONS OF PROPOSAL
	CITY COUNCIL
	CITY OF LEMOORE
	KINGS COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

	CITY OF LEMOORE

	STATEMENT OF LICENSURE
	KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that
	THIS AGREEMENT, entered into by and between      hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”, and the City of Lemoore, hereinafter referred to as “the City;”
	A. SCOPE OF WORK
	B. COMPONENT PARTS
	C. TIME OF PERFORMANCE
	D. PAYMENTS
	Attest:


	I, ____________________________________________________________, certify that I am the
	KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that ____________________________________
	LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND

	KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that
	STATE LABOR CODE SECTION 3700

	CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE
	Yes

	WORKERS' COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY
	GENERAL LIABILITY SPECIAL ENDORSEMENT
	Signature _______________________________________________________                                                                                     

	AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY SPECIAL ENDORSEMENT
	Signature _____________________________________________ (original signature required)


	04 TOC-General Conditions.pdf
	TABLE OF CONTENTS GENERAL CONDITIONS
	TITLE PAGE

	05 GENERAL CONDITIONS.pdf
	GENERAL CONDITIONS
	Agreement
	The written agreement between OWNER and CONTRACTOR covering the Work to be performed; other Contract Documents are attached to the agreement and made a part thereof as provided therein.
	Application for Payment
	The form accepted by ENGINEER which is to be used by CONTRACTOR in requesting progress or final payment and which is to include such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.
	Bid
	The offer or proposal of the Bidder submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the prices for the Work to be performed.
	Bonds
	Bid, performance, and payment bonds and other instruments of security.
	Change Order
	Contract Documents
	Contract Price
	Contract Time
	CONTRACTOR
	Day
	Defective
	Drawings
	Effective Date of the Agreement
	ENGINEER
	Field Order
	General Requirements
	Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations
	Notice of Award
	Notice to Proceed
	OWNER
	Partial Utilization
	Project
	Resident Project Representative
	Shop Drawings
	Specifications
	Subcontractor
	Substantial Completion
	Supplementary Conditions
	Supplier
	Underground Facilities
	Unit Price Work
	Work
	Work Directive Change
	Written Amendment
	Delivery of Bonds:
	Copies of Documents:
	Commencement of Contract Time; Notice to Proceed:
	Starting the Project:
	Before Starting Construction:
	Pre-construction Conference:
	Finalizing Schedules:
	Intent:
	Amending and Supplementing Contract Documents
	Reuse of Document:
	Availability of Lands:
	Physical Conditions – Investigations and Reports:
	Physical Conditions – Underground Facilities:
	Reference Points:
	Performance and Other Bonds:
	Contractor’s Liability Insurance:
	Contractual Liability Insurance:
	Owner’s Liability Insurance:
	Property Insurance:
	5.7 OWNER shall purchase and maintain such boiler and machinery insurance or additional property insurance as may be required by the Supplementary Conditions or Laws and Regulations which will include the interests of OWNER, CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors...
	Waiver of Rights:
	Receipt and Application of Proceeds:
	Acceptance of Insurance:
	Partial Utilization – Property Insurance:
	Supervision and Superintendence:
	Labor, Materials, and Equipment:
	Adjusting Progress Schedule:
	Substitutes or “Or-Equal” Items:
	Concerning Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others:
	Patent Fees and Royalties:
	Permits:
	Laws and Regulations
	Taxes
	Use of Premises:
	Record Documents:
	Safety and Protection:
	Emergencies:
	Shop Drawings and Samples:
	Continuing the Work:
	Indemnification:
	Related Work at Site:
	Coordination:
	Owner’s Representative:
	Visits to Site:
	Project Representation:
	Clarifications and Interpretations:
	Authorized Variations in Work:
	Rejecting Defective Work:
	Shop Drawings, Samples, Change Orders, and Payments:
	Determinations for Unit Prices:
	Decisions on Disputes:
	Limitations of ENGINEER’s Responsibilities:
	Cost of the Work:
	Contractor’s Fee:
	Cash Allowances:
	Unit Price Work:
	Warranty and Guarantee:
	Access to Work:
	Tests and Inspections:
	Uncovering Work:
	Owner May Stop the Work:
	Correction or Removal of Defective Work:
	One-Year Correction Period:
	Acceptance of Defective Work:
	Owner May Correct Defective Work:
	Schedule of Values:
	Application for Progress Payment:
	CONTRACTOR’s Warranty of Title:
	Review of Applications for Progress Payment:
	Substantial Completion:
	Partial Utilization:
	Final Inspection:
	Final Application for Payment:
	Final Payment and Acceptance:
	Contractor’s Continuing Obligation:
	Waiver of Claims:
	Owner May Suspend Work:
	Owner May Terminate:
	Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate:
	Procedures:
	Giving Notice:
	Computation of Time:
	General:


	06 TOC-Special Provisions Part I.pdf
	TITLE PAGE
	SECTION 1 PRECEDENCE SC-1

	07 Special Provisions-Part I.pdf
	SECTION 7  CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
	SECTION 8  SAFETY
	SECTION 9  REGIONAL NOTIFICATION CENTER CONTRACT
	SECTION 10  CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY INSURANCE
	10.5 Acceptability of Insurers
	SECTION 11  ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT
	SECTION 12  GUARANTEE
	SECTION 13  RETENTION OF PAYMENTS AND/OR
	SECTION 14  PERSONAL LIABILITY
	SECTION 15  PAYMENT OF PREVAILING WAGES & CERTIFIED PAYROLLS
	The City of Lemoore is a charter city and has passed City Ordinance 2000-07, exempting the payments of (State) prevailing wages on City projects.
	SECTION 17  INCREASED OR DECREASED QUANTITIES

	08 TOC-Special Provisions Part II.pdf
	TITLE PAGE
	SECTION 100 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS CD-1

	09 Special Provisions Part II.pdf
	SECTION 100 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
	SECTION 200 MOBILIZATION
	SECTION 300 PERMITS
	SECTION 400 MAINTENANCE AND CONTROL OF TRAFFIC
	400.01  GENERAL 
	All traffic control devices and sufficient personnel shall be provided to maintain a safe and orderly flow of traffic around the construction operation.
	400.02  RELATED INFORMATION
	The following documents contain information and requirements relating to this item, except as modified herein:
	City of Lemoore Standard Specifications for Maintenance of Traffic and Detours
	Caltrans Manual of Warning Signs, Lights, and Devices for Use in Performance of Work upon Highways
	400.03  MATERIALS AND METHODS
	400.04  PARKING & NOTIFICATIONS
	SECTION 500 ASPHALT REJUVENATING AGENT
	SECTION 600 STRIPING AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS



	Item 6-3 - Reclamite2014 Exhibit
	Item 7-1 - Staff Report - Local Transp Fund Share 2-2014
	Item 7-2 - Notice of Exemption 2014 - Local Trans Funds
	Item 7-3 - Resolution 2014-06 - Local Transp Fund
	Item 7-4 - Attachment C - Local Transp Fund
	Item 7-5 - Claim for TDA Fund
	Activity Update 3-4-14
	Activity Update Memo 3-4-14
	19th Ave Update




